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we expect to attract many of Toyota's suppliers and to
create a larger economic spinoff. We are excited to capitalize on
the growth potential we see in front of us.
We believe Thilawa SEZ will continue to be seen as the best
destination for investors to locate their factories, despite increase in
competition in the near future, due to strong support of both the Myanmar
and Japanese Governments for the improvement in surrounding infrastructure.
A major road linking Thanlyin Bridge to Thilawa SEZ is near completion and will
ease the traffic congestion and reduce traveling time for both people and goods
Additional infrastructure projects include a water supply and purification facility from
Lagunbyin Reserivor to meet the future demand of Thilawa SEZ and a new bridge ovel
the Bago River in parallel to the existing Thanlyin Bridge with expected completion by
2021. These efforts will further improve the attractiveness of Thilawa SEZ in the coming
years.

In commemoration of Japan-Myanmar Joint Venturé\Bniversary, MTSH Board
Members visited Japan. During this trip, we met with the Deputy Prime Minister, H.E Mr. Taro Aso
where we discussed about the future development of the remaining area from 2,400 Hectares
Thilwa SEZ as we believe that increasing the value and facilitating to reach to the fullest potential of th
Thilawa SEZ is the best for our Nation's economy as well as our stakeholders and shareholders.

Anew port constructed under Japanese Overseas Development Assistance (ODA) named Thila
Multipurpose International Terminal Co., Ltd. (TMIT), was handed over &rDbtember 2018 and
operations have commenced. There is a growing need for an international port as well as logistit
operations as more and more factories start operating within the Thilawa SEZ. We are closel
monitoring the situation and planning for a multimodal logistic hub within Thilawa SEZ in the
near future. \We will be moving forward quickly with all these new opportunities.

Within the residential and commercial area developed by our subsidiary Thilawa
Property Development Limited (TPD), the Japanese international hotel chain Super Hote
Thilawa had a Grand Opening Ceremony ohiiérch 2019. This type of development
is complimenting Thilawa Industrial Zone and bringing us one step closer to creating a

regional city center. TPD is also finalizing the design for Thilawa Community Shopping
Mall and we expect the development work will commence in late 2019 with a
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On behalf of the Board and myself, | wish to thank aIIozgozeqz?ﬁ’qfiaﬁgﬁem?me?? EHOOIEINCHE .00
the shareholders for your investment in Myanmar ThiIawamm?“?:ﬁ?:’f’mg‘;ocfp"?cfm’ ©0% SOPRRRIOCRY
SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited. | also wish to thank” X&' °%REIREPIe < EWQ:C‘?‘?G?"CS‘”Q’J‘??P’?
our new CEO, U Kyaw Zaw Wai, and his executive teamb’ Al S0P OORYH PYBD9oPige ey SqAR Al
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and employees who deliver great results year-on-year arftig> 2§ 26502 §Ceqpoepm [Bpodievdesnopaie

for the continuous support from our partners and ThiIaw@“c’G@"& elgoozpea66laoghi
SEZ Management Committee Chairman, His Excellency
Dr Sett Aung, and the committee members. We remain
committed to doing all we can to build long-term value
creation for shareholders and stakeholders connected to
our business.

WIN AUNG
Chairman




Corporate Profile /

Our company, Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public JOOQ §5, coo (?)qqgcﬁcgg @gmogmc;] sgog(g) acd
Co., Ltd. was incorporated on 3 May 2013 in Myanma[,., 168005008 mep,?émgga%gewo (,fgngggmng%
under the Companies Act as a public limited company. OL[g,?eogigco?gq%QP, 99"'38099?599@9 m%z?@wﬁa‘égem
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4

participating in the Zone A industrial park developmentym 1qo: scOl&sccone ogeq, mgl$mogaq méeaowgmemgg
O
within the Thilawa Special Economic Zone, which thegf,,oo&,eume g,oo,‘? q,eg,géog%o% B%,Qoqog? mmggp:@g

O
Myanmar Government and the Japanese Government hayg oS oo q%ooeomgé 016018008 B Ec s (,ggoqmé“

LO L

co-invested to develop pursuant to the Cooperation Memorandu_r,\gg.P &, gm (@)99 §=69005§=g<5@[§ Bg,magmo'] gmg(g)

L

On the 20 of May 2016, our company’s shares commenceds:aoS3:s8:005 900 18 18§ 0058Ec00 meddB800d
L LO

L

trading on the Yangon Stock Exchange. Our company k% omEm °ngcgo']oae,, Joo@ 2881 coO (JO)GIO’S&?

Ld

the second company to be listed on the Yangon Stoq}semgﬁ g,oocmqgmgc@wmggm@g qg,mgmm 3%@
Exchange and the first developer of a Special Economchoaec ggncgcm ch oc&cgo wé“ og@gqgmgoemo

L

of Myanmar to do so. 9353J$ 0né ooqc oc§caooe oooee 13016000 9200: 28: 2001648 @§
[ o4 [ Co C o

The nine founding shareholders of the Company ar®® ‘1: 136500010085 ogaBfybclooghs eeancoyop saepist
0

as follows: Lo
3 i ) c/C c C Crcy\\/C Q@ Q0 C
1. First Myanmar Investment Company Limited; o1 003(8)§er22E003(8)3($)org B30
2. Golden Land East Asia Development Limited; Ji eg8tioneq m0q8 [Grodionodes; cpgadcd8oa0d

3. Myanmar Agribusiness Public Corporation Limited; ! B%Oﬁfﬁog] 039?‘7300533035@0”?36%]& 38006h

4. Myanmar Agricultural & General Development Publicg [g§epcocSomagodmsse saeagecgd [Groorades
Limited; 22¢n:3E B80S (2266928 88920505)

5. Myanmar Edible Oil Industrial Public Corporation 91 @$eomuggwug(qg)9§l .
Limited;

6. Myanmar Sugar Development Public Company; B
Limited;

I
7. Myanmar Technologies and Investment Corporatioﬁ

Limited; ol s'aéj[:a)ozc'o |§l:09):0303361:9980 o383 d
ol L L LO
8. National Development Company Group Limited; el [c_?]leoag:»ogc'o @l:og:magsq: saqo:gémecﬁcsgmcf)o%
o O° L L LO L

9. New City Development Public Company Limited; 4 lar08 m0gcbangdedlé: (09,00 ) B:

With 17,032 shareholders recorded to date, MTSH ilg$er8ciac mogudomqterepisidlo
the public listed company with the highest number of? 02‘3@@]501032“

shareholders in Myanmar.

on
g ®
['Bn
)
5
o
0o _
g "
80
~8o
on

(=] C o [o4 C
o?gmgoogoocs'agoo H O:]O(D’\)OJ@?

Company Registration Number  : 151830293 ¢ ¢ SaSmsS s 66
QBOC§:®O’JCG8)’DCSCDOD@ H (JOO?—JOO?)
C

Certificate of Commencement : 66 of 2013-2014 00560592005
of Business
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VISION

To invest in the development of ThilaB&Z,
Yangon Region, for all round socio and economic growth
of the Republic of the Union of Myanmar aiecdbecome

a regional leader attracting foreign diréotestments

c (o OC. @. (] '] .9. o Y [og C
61§0?§020.GGOD HigevJabJe) %Q.O.QD.GSI.?§? o00C
C C [od OC o [ c _C

@eeooocoooeoo B§QO&CCGO’)’JCDOOQ: C\)G§QODO

L 0 L 1 L I

° o C -] o o C C ']
() @FOD:CDCDQI 0:00366120 i ORODONOS200M GBGq:O 038
O L I <] O° i aL ° s
SBGE.SGBGGD’JOSGBG?QJ’): GOTGg%:U%:@USMﬁ?@ 632000C3
OC o C OCe. cC o Coe ° Co O

§CCQJ’J:€YBO‘)CS &CCO‘JO’)’DG]C:&:B[O&Q SOQJ')ZSO:CDCDSS]

L (<] L 1| T L 1

0
20
0On
O
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©n
)
Cn
38
®n
20
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)
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f/ MISSION, VISION and VALUE /

MISSION

To create value for all our shareholders,
investors,partners, employees and communities by
investing angbroviding reliable, sustainable business
environmenthrough thedevelopment of word class
industrial andcommercial infrastructure with
responsible internationpfactices and good governance
ensuring long terrgrowth

A mogudwnolep: q&:&:(g6& et
28l P QC8:GI0§ RA:

4 IL

o3

2nn
Cn

1:80

[of C C o AS C Y C C N C o
C\BOG(D’) OOCOMH0: 0§00@3(ﬂ0.j§(_: GSQ)O&C:%%{S’BO&%‘).

ocbppforcSef caggSoncbBicphod

C OCe C Co C Ca-x C C "
830030) §CCO’)(’D’)G)&)9 CDOO§SCD&2 (\L)O O C\L)O§@q’3.l

908

2.

° c O C Corn S Qo CN L & C
O.E@e OCDQJG(T)’)C.%)§GQ)’) 099§.gﬁ@ﬂ9.§9 GQﬂe

C o Q. o C ° N [of CoQuC 2R,
0’)80?9@ O.gD.Gq.CDGg}DmSB%0.0gC qC.?.BlO?@.
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CORPORATE VALUE

The process followed diligently to manage
financial, social and environmental risks,
obligations and opportunities.

- There is a real need for the business to be
open with all stakeholders.

anofagfco:

Beyond normal CSR with a responsibility to
prevent human rights harms, whilst ensuring
corrective avenues are available for infringements.

Maximize outputs from given inputs, and in
doing so, minimize costs.

QCMPDHOIESEGEE

Significant, memorable and worthy of attention.

ua?cﬁuqaﬁmﬁ qﬁﬂuﬁ".ﬂrﬁu%cﬂﬁ

Focus on tasks and the end resulls of those tasks.

ettty coprie S =y

Develop employee skills to keep the business competitive.

Identify workplace health and safety risks and put together comprehensive risk
mitigation measures.

ANNUAL REPORT




CORPORATE STRUCTURE

8 Founding
Shareholders

Myanmuar
Thilawa SEZ
Holdings Public
Company Limited

55-‘\' < Public

Shareholders

o
M

Japan Internaticnal
Corporation
Agency

Thiliwn SEZ B Thilawa ! it
Munagement  § i Properiy Japan Thiluwa E
Commitice § 2{]‘«: :‘,' Development B Development B

Company Limited Limited Limited

““-\I MMS Thilawa
39 | < Development
Co. 1ad

Note: MMS Thilawa Davarﬁ;:menr Co., Ltd owned by (1) Mitsubishi Corporation,
{2) Marubeni Corporation, (3) Sumitomo Corporation (4) Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation,
(8) Mizuho Bank and (6) MUFG Bank

MTSH BOARD STRUCTURE




Board of Directors' Profile

U Win Aung is the Chairman of the Myanmar Thilawa Bro&:emEoopd Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public
SEZ Holdings Public Co., Ltd. He is one of the initiators Co., Ltd.& emg@%o’]wén §:o§:em5wé 9020 Bovol

and the lead negotiator between Japan and Myanmasa:8:goiegias sc0mémepd coleclodaniess 920305

(]

¢
Government leaders as well as founder Chairman fopo§§&ésé [g§e28E¢28:q98, ma[03ie203gproaozo: P38Ee
& 005

4
Myanmar private sectorsmvolvementlnthelmplementatlonep eeooégcr%s‘a@ 0o§8&s
[+
C
o

S _ §:oé:ssméooé Dagon Group of Companie$
of the Dagon Group of Companies since its establishment e co
OREC 95090 Gsoocooeeooocao']ooeu Dagon Group of
in 1990. Since 1993, Dagon Group of Companies has Y oe
Companles;@ 920 spco.[?ﬂ:eq:oem‘?:epwg ORE? ?§omoc
successfully implemented property development projects. e ° . e e S .
OCDC§ GS’B’)CBCO’J sraemocsraooeem eaoocgooéo’]oaeu
Dagon Group of Companies engages in wide range of business_ = =~ °

OO§ODO.)QC\)0 § GJOI
in general trading, residential and commercial development*
C\)Q%().)’)O%(TS(C):IG%C\E c%qoloo ?FB O’)GODO(D(D§G)O‘J 80%:
such as shopping malls, hotel development, integrated

Boocdvdes shopping makp: o0do

,.

CoO o4 [od C (o o4
ooomooeaooce :&C MO Csl GQ’JGO’J’J(D’J
agricultural development, value added food industry, logistics = " ¥3¢ foetlitlorRe e3¢

O(Y)QB SO@§@|F861 C\)OC§ QJ’) Hepl (.O'JGQJOCC\)JO’) 00D 0:0Ic )

and distribution, automobile distribution, petroleum

L

C$ ? (73 §eaoo G§:DCDO%§ QO @ o']ooeu &CCODO’.)’J
distribution, and in other business sectors. He is the Chalrmarf .
(03]

) o ) o?§ sonCiods o')c:amooogog 0 o§:e§cuogooo=
of Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Limited which
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specializes in agri value chain & infrastructure developmentyp:o3 oopdesoocdsrcoméscopdewilgl: 86c3§:03 cu5e200¢
such as Danyingon vegetables, fruits and flower wholesaleojo5§ 05 [§§6292050§ 9305(8)4]$: 92¢2:3EB8nad
market. He is also founder and Chairman of Golden LandMyanmar Agro Exchange Public Ltd. MAE)Q
East Asia Development Limited (GLAD), which is one of §:csooémécooo§q2 ec{gsm@%@éo’]wéu §:o<°::<;53'ao<°:::o@c
the founding public companies of MTSH. He is a boardMTSH 03¢ mg8: Bies0oécloéompieconéearn mep:dé
secretary representing Yangon Regional Government abgadepiozé ordesaclsodfgéeorn Golden Land East Asia
Yangon Metropolitan Development Public Co., Ltd (YMD) Development Limited (GLEAD} pgogood8icogh: [gdol
ajoint venture company between Yangon Regional Governmenbpb Gea[gé fiocteontaogh q§omsodtiesoolty sadqead st
and Myanma Construction and Development Public Co.[g$epes0003c06e6s8¢ &, Greq; s26pigéao0>adEeonn opgad
Ltd which aims to develop & upgrade greater Yangon Cityc38oo05 (Myanmar Construction and Development Public
& Yangon Region. He is also Patron of the MyanmarCo., Ltd.)o3 ¢:c0lé:G: q§00§[5,e0058@o3orcdeq;sS 92208
Construction Entrepreneurs Federation (MCEF) andgéoméee:od qpigade gops:ompdeconCaniaopd §§0§
Myanmar Licensed Contractors Association (MLCA) as well. 65§38 scdoearneé ocdocdmemdad8omas (YMD

U Win Aung was elected as President of Union of Myanmar Yangon Metropolitan Development Public Co., Li.)

Qn

Federation of Chamber of Commerce and Industries fromﬁ;oee%cg&esoa@ srao elsraco a oaao§eo qmmq q§m§c§

L

2011 to 2016. gao%:qsago.mo: creoooo:@ls'kamooo o?oosog.cﬁ mogé:eq:gu:

L

O‘J’)O$O9£ GOO’J§?O$®8:O’J’JO$®§:G®DEG§% ooo%e:cué:
He was also Chairman of ASEAN Business Advisory

Council (ABAC) (2013-2014) and Chairman of Greater
Mekong Sub-region Business forum (GMS-BF) (2012-

@C '] C C [og OC o C [o4 Y ocC [o4 C. C
©0loopon o @q;eo&pcssoomaeoeq.aocqo oCcHIqC
Qp:s'aa)&qlf) (MCEF) s sC B$eo% céo oéq mwoqmoaoqo
N [

mwé: (MLCA) oocﬁ $2002Q, oo op: @oo']a)eu
2014). He was also one of the members of National Economic

and Social Advisory Council (NESAC) & UN-ESCAP

CCECCD§OD@

e
o
O
[2)

(g C (o
16920800 @@eooo Qg |§ $628

eJo:?é 005000505 c 5198 1qeep: 08 aJltS (UMFCCI) &

Advisory Council. ot o o
pRGH[gd Jooo 258 ¢ Joob 98808 000§areaEGO>P
cloogSu

o%@é 920008 Jeels : 2oje0r 60¢&S (ABAC)A leale

2[4 Joop 98¢ Joog 25692D l\ea']ccsoag o:go:cq:che
(GMS-BF)& eg;;ssa@f: Joo :ﬁ&f Joog ?§59303 o&eand
N C o o [of ° co
30loopSt PG|po0nBigateqisc Yeeqim[pjeo: c0Cs

[

(NESAC)EE movoegeacg omgsé 08

GO
So

58¢ céep: Q-@l‘ H

o -~

L
coogee]: UN-ESCAPo%c%I s'a@eo:cmoégogg s'ago.ogo:a%

[+ C [of Y C
g)@@(\)&?: U)’JO?O.IEQO']CDQII




U THEIM WAI  VICE CHAIRMAN

U Theim Wai @ Serge Pun is the Vice Chairman of =~ B:3&:c000p5 mpgcd sl§odomeg @l sBwpagodd:
the Board of Directors and one of the Principal[g8@: opgadel quSoonmegpiad: 3EBEmepisagod dd:

L L

Shareholders of the Company. He is also the Chairman afclse0é[gdcloogi 220005 Serge Pun and Associates Ltd.
Serge Pun and Associates (SPA), First MyanmaiSPA), First Myanmar Investment (FMI), Yoma Strategic
Investment Company Limited (FMI), Yoma Strategic Holdings (YSH)§§ Memories Group of Limited (Memories)
Holdings (YSH) and Memories Group Limited (Memories). o3cloég opbiconiongd SPAmgadepizée (SPA Group)a

o

) i ) ) emsooo%é: @50’]03én
SPA’s flagship FMI, one of the first public companies . e o o . o
) _ _ oRR 95003¢ FMI ;e oo ogzeooocg@: QOCINOAD

in Myanmar, was established in 1992. In 2006, Mr. Pun led e oe. o . . ox oc o o
O2&CCOOC OC0EIAVIODPOCCOICISCIDD FQIOCMOCIOO0I
YSH to a successful listing on the mainboard of the yoRee® TR ) PR ‘
_ ] Eér}o']oaén Joo@ ?§5005 §:038:Goooé Yoma Strategic

Singapore Stock Exchange (SGX). FMI became the firs . °

N

) Holdingsa3 3:ea0n8onpbecnnédff: s2a3¢l Holdingsaopd
company to be listed on the new Yangon Stock Exchange o R .
) omcleoeos?sgoéj‘?: (SGX)eqropmng eoaoc|gcgs qoodposcs
on March 2016. On January 2018, the Memories Group,. e e . .
) _ _ o o']ooen Joob 3501 eodcoopc FMI oop> Yangon Stock
the Group’s tourism business successfully gained a |IStIn%
xchangeegop

[o]

C [og ° (o4 [ (=] C N "I C
_ MOC 0EVIQLIOCMET® @omgo 2001
on the SGX Catalist Board. R . ) . o
Jooo 280 e§§o']slcoogc Memories GrOUWBo?cﬁ aqoy:
c O C

Mr. Pun is currently a member of the World Economic codc§sadcogh: 0030060293685 (SGX)a Catalist Board
Forum ASEAN Regional Group, ASEAN Business ¢ com&gégolgé oog:oé3cloopdi
Council, Asia Business Council and a standing member of =~ §:33&:c0p5 wacva5§03é World Economic Forum
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference oARSEAN Regional Group, ASEAN Business Courxp‘.il
Dalian. Additionally, he served as an Honorary BusinessAsia Business Counci3él e3¢ 08oé3:(gégs Chinese

Representative of the International Enterprise Singapor@eople’s Political Consultative Conference of Datig

C o

for Myanmar from 2004 till 2006. 2[§oo&i928,081 Joog 2860 Joob 2sd9edd International

Ld Jd

Eep oadoieantdintes;
W L ||.. .o ° q‘

Enterprise Singapoée [§§e>86¢=d
o C o C CO. C. C N C
(7?(1)0’).0.?(.\)0)08.038. @0?0 ODEII
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U-'KHIN MAUNG AYE

U Khin Maung Aye is a Vice Chairman of the Board § Eeoneont oo@ mem%s']‘s:] ooosac\o.aﬁ ?03‘”8938
cc
§0

LO
C

of Directors of the Company. He is the Chairman of Newo>8g: o']oaen oaoae 7§63
City Development, which is one of the Principal Shareholder$¢ 3¢ soepicde 0o63:[gdo0pd New City Development
of our Company. New City Developmentis a Public Companyogg[géaop5i New City Developmenbhgadaogd [§§e288¢

that is engaged in town planning and infrastructurec etnlj:mcrsesao qzs§ﬁwao§mm$zc‘§:mmeoq$§§ [§$eo
development, with the objective of improving the living §é¢& [§,[03:qp:03¢ cpBieqabedemie coorSe@oogeoeq
standards of rural areas in Myanmar and relieving theqegwqjm@c |§l|§ 3o035:eq:0[gE:8¢ 9r6[gdmRem0o5 %)
population pressure in the big cities in Myanmar. pdesorabeqade§iod cbeanntapd sagpide mea%mo%?

U Khin Maung Aye established Kaytumadi Co., Ltd [g&aopSu
in 1991 and is also the Founder and Chairman of the Kaung  8:a€eeoéesasonpd Kaytumadi Co., Ltd.o3 opeo
Myanmar Aung Group. He is also the Chairman of theeséopé mpSecnE3(§: Kaung Myanmar Aungnéed
KMA Shipping Co., Ltd, Citizen Business Insurance Public >pSecoé s ppgoopdifgdolapdn xoopS Kaung
Limited, Myanmar Microfinance Bank Limited and Golden Myanmar Aung Grougé ocbaos0pd KM Shipping Co.,
Myanmar Airlines Public Company Limited (all of which Ltd, Citizen Business Insurance Public Limited, Myanmar
are associated with the Kaung Myanmar Aung Group)MicrofinanceBank Limited§,<f: Golden Myanmar Airlines
He is also the Chairman of Co-Operative Bank Limited Public Company.imited o3&l pgageopbigdcloogb opaopd
and the Chairman of the Central Cooperative SocietyCo-Operative Bank Limited paagsé oc3oeclowessoné:s
(CCS). A pepgopd: [gdcloogdi

U Khin Maung Aye was elected as Chairman of the §98c;eoc°:es'a 0p5 8adorno (9)qoo| Joos) 288
Myanmar Banks Association at its"1Bnnual General — ojé:op3 @§eo&ccmm9p DA (03) [6366[gocd
Meeting that took place on 4 December 2015. He is thsjoooocue gacogeogsraoe Hc7Y-YeH orgc DA ecg}:ss@@g
Chairman of Myanmar Investors Development Associationeg:com o méelgoosdqolooghi opoogs [§§929E:8:(5106¢
(MIDA), which was established in 2014, the main 0bjectiveaa50$:§159p: g@l:o%:mcﬁcq:moa&mﬁ ecggsmé a
of which is Bridging Myanmar to the world. :o8cenemionpd [gpSecmatomgm(g§erg§éseoms

He is a member of the Private Sector Developmeng&éeoSaogme wodeoseqiadianpy §EEemSwmgmg:d
Committee formed by the President of the Republic of the{ jg. co. Joob) qa58d] 928§¢[o35[grenseedd gp/ Joob (3¢
Union of Myanmar on 24 October 2016 by Notification 050085 ogcdmmand [GEcdiorcdes; fieantong &l 92908
No. 79/2016 of President’s Office. copd: [g6claogd

He is also a member of Farmer’s Rights Protection §a<°:eeo<°:esa 0pd op: @o e o$§ 13 0E[gE:BE

L
and Promotion of Framer’s Interests Steering Commltteemoep momcqoooem oooa@ mooep a)@ oslogoocugc

L

In additional to his expansive entrepreneurial duties ssooEgo5a063: coe @ooaen oaoae oot ojEfgevde
he is a well-known philanthropist. He accomplishes thegp:d eopaaifgoioogd 8odgao: oomoo§050 odagfoysoe c‘%@
humanitarian work with a unique passion and mnovatlon.@ e@omemc@cemoc eaoocamoa@u

C C c

U Khin Maung Aye graduated with a Bachelor of éaéeeoéss'a ooé oRPY 9§003C 61§<73$mc£
Science (Maths) Q2 degree from the University of Yangona3$o3, (o09p) Q2 33 [g¢ es20E[gédclaopdu
in 1985.

[o]

o ﬁ C °
MO ﬁlQ)Q)’JS?QJ’J:&B:
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Prof. Dr. AUNG TUN THET

" INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

N

Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet is an Independent Director  cleesmesldorm conagioncdaopd mgadel qgoded
of the Company. He serves as member of the Peaees sl§ob0:0063:[gocloopdi aro0pd §é:qéiegpemdegiel
Commission, Honorary Professor at the University 0fs2g 08c8:s265[gEcopSieonés messleée o§onon(§,§
British Columbia, in Vancouver, Canada, Chairman of théJniversity of British Columbiagé oabmiesoaéaolesaay
UN Global Compact Myanmar Network, Advisor to the saeggéoopSieaméi UN Global Compadtlyanmar Network
Union of Myanmar Federation of Commerce and Industriespé pomgeres(gécopdieomts [gpdectomgo(gsen§és

L

Visiting professor at Yangon University and Yangon Universityo§ copdepisé 0050c005¢c00c§iqEapiaacndiadel safojeo:

L

N

of Economics and National Contact Point for thesgécopheomnés q§oomngdcbsé q§0§8igaegrongaded

L »m L

N
n

Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development3él epicleenmpomdisacs(gé copdreomés Signieqsoicclés

(OECD) Responsible Business Conduct, Chief Coordinatassoségobesé ¢ [Grodioncbeqiadep 00§89 s2005:

° O-°

of Union Enterprise for Humanitarian Assistance mos@éme Organization for Economic Co-operation and

Resettlement and Development in Rakhine (UEHRD)Development (OECD)zagcgc National Contact Point

Member of Myanmar Investment Commission. me5[gécopdieonnés q%é@éyﬁmog& 19100820
Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet holds a Bachelor of CommercenmspSeconddoes [gscopdesepaconesy § [Greedoods:

from Yangon University, a Post-Graduate Diploma in(UEHRD)og¢ Chief Coordinatorss[gécopSseonnési q&:8:

4

Management Studies from the University of Brighton,[gidsesé orgaBep: pa§fogriedidigosant 928 080n63:92(gd

LO

M.Sc. in Operations Research from the University okopbieomé: 000§méieanéagadoloopdi

Warwick and a Ph.D, in Management Sciences from the o']eeoogcs']mmo esaocoggoomoa@ q<§o?$oooo03cﬁe

oM L d

University of Manchester and a Post-doctoral Researcig:o) saoscopdieonnés University of Brightors 86§3¢

Fellow from University of Marburg. He was awarded ang3&ep 93 c9§80c3enga:c0pdie0m&xn University of Warwick

L o

O

Honorary Doctorate D.Litt. Degree by the Yangone cgeuop (Operations Researchg:copxeonésUniversity
University of Economics in 2015. of Manchestep clgea} (Management Sciencesip:cops:
soxé&: University of Marburge Post-doctoral Research

Fellow 63o2o: q§30laopdi 0pa0pd q§0r§8ignieq; oogaadcde

Jd
C

:%:Béooé Qagoclz:ssoocczo']qgo?. (D.Litt. Degree)o?cu@:

C C [N C
JOO:] ??0080 61&1?0']&')&"
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UTIN HTUT 00 INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

o

U Tin Htut Oo is an Independent Director of the 1008ggBiaopd cgada cgc%w&eoaos’]%cﬁmsa@é
C [o]
ol & QO

Company. He was appointed in November 2014. Currentlyjoog 2 S0€onné 9§ 926(gE:q0loopSi b
he is the Chairman of Agriculture Group of Yoma StrateglcOcmﬁccgl ooslc.ogcegcv%@ogoaé Yoma Strategic Holdings

C C -3 c _C ﬁ

Holdings Ltd., a public listed Myanmar Company in Ltd o3¢ cood>ameigaicpocs:ee
Singapore and CEO of Agribusiness and Rural Developmenfgribusinessind Rural Development ConsultafA&RDC)&
Consultants (ARDC) in Myanmar. He is Chairing the Board s2co6 2062058 2gp§ 3|6 92(gdcopStemmnés omo0§¢picé:

eggsm@ﬁmé:smo&l

of the Center for Economic and Social Developmentezooéayjod§oloopdi opoopd S'm'eq'sécoec'o [@g Bronodeeg

ILILO® L

(CESD) and also an Advisor to Union of Myanmar Chambere&o» (CESD)@ sl§osomeed, pagordd:(gofd [geo8ce
of Commerce and Industry (UMFCGIpd Myanmar Rice  s0$ockaydegioncndiqioss [gpdecmntomgmfg§erdéemsaopd

4
H C [ o c _C C [og C 13 c
Federation. o8¢ omﬁc\:mﬁc\iaoc§.§lcop.sraa)c.a'”oc% m@.m§.
co

He holds a Bachelor of Agriculture degree (B. Ag) sa[pjeoisa(gd ea0oEgodagod§aloogd

from the Institute of Agriculture, University of Mandalay DDPS 0§eIDPRB0E VWIS YEEEE0PIIR 0D
L (2] m L 4 O° L

L

(1971) Myanmar and M.Sc (Agricultural Economics) from opoo 286038 q§3@3: seeofmslgpdecorieq Ohio State

o
Ohio State University (1985) USA. He was a Visiting University ¢ o%cﬁoj’l:cq:sgléqo Szgo:eq:emocé.c%m: oRnY

Research Fellow at the Institute of Developing Economics,ﬁf:ogé qqao’]ooén oﬁwé o'jo$f§:56| c%crﬁl@l.cgé ORRS ©

i

Tokyo, Japan in 1994-1995. oREY 2s69:ad Institute of Developing Economicz%é
From 2001 to 2009, he was the Director-General ofegiaecnad (Visiting Research Fellowdp[gé csooégodd
the Department of Agricultural Planning, Ministry of o']ooéu

C o C o

Agriculture and Irrigation and before that held various oo::oe Jooo a&oe JOOR 2§09 cowwoomqjleq

L
C C

posts in the same Ministry since 1974. He retired from thevem§ So.?cﬁ @ﬂ@o e QO smosra@o oooo§ooe te200C3qe

o C C

Civil Service in 2009. U Tin Htut Oo served as the Chall’manooc.eo?ce oL0§ ?§09q cuooooooooOJl cqE&C opoe(gact

L i

n

f)

[og C

of the National Economic and Social Advisory Council o§[3:go$03¢ epogimeao§aoglgé ox0§epicods eeoocao"loo@u
(NESAC), and Economic Advisor to the President, thealzooé Joo ?§59 Joo@ ?§59308 °°°°°§‘°S $cﬁ1 8%’0 e
Republic of the Union of Myanmar (2012-2016). m@eo:m@émé:cmoéu s'aej’l:oao:?):oo eq § z woc

o ILJL

[

[

In his capacity with the UN and international sa@co:cmégcﬁ eg):ssecﬂﬁ@mé:cmc: ooecsoocao']ooeu
organizations, he served as Senior Advisor to the Executivepoopd cycooeged sa0gbiqpiog€ 923¢0Es maes[gé 09008
Secretary, UNESCAP from 2009-2011. U Tin Htut Oo oo&csoséé@:l Joog :ﬁ&f Jooo ?.5.89908 m@:m$zm@eo:

has been awarded"®ioscoro L. Umali Achievement g6 UNESCAP s29ca0o8sacpiiaqsefpdiogé codiceoné

o 4 L

N

Award in Agricultural Development in 2015 which 3cloopSi c0opS 2660088209036 waSanddbddjeq;

o

recognizes exemplary individuals who have advanceds[§:c3:ooc5ec0dc§iep: 6a0oEgodepozé dlgodicdoddien(gd
agricultural development in Southeast Asia. Joo9 288038 cocdandaddes; &, [GEo3ion0de:920305

DioscoroL.Umali Achievementod co:=268:[gé[ge: 339

L

Of]ODéII




UAUNG NYUNT

U Aung Nyunt is an Independent Director of the °é°es'ao<c:eg$ooé s']%&msoc\oocméé @5@: Joob :ﬁ&

Company. He was appointed in October 2016. From 1966990mmooomeo§ cuoocuoeooo 31§05

[%

to 2007, nearly (41) years of services at Myanmar Tlmbebqu]ooeu o@@@ 9 Joon ?§os'aoo (c;o) §60§ @%moa cx38c$:-

4
C Qo

Enterprise — Finance/Account Department, Planningngeq:/ egooqligosss 86a3§:go90303¢

]

o
Department and retired as a General Manager (Planninggson¢3(3: seccgecgesesap (86058:) epopi{yé safGésomqup
&

Y C C

As an attached duty in 1991, he served as a Dll’ect(].ﬂoaen mwmmo§@c ORRO§OC e§§]5§ 5

o
C o 9

(Finance) for two years at National Industrial Holding qo5c3c5sé: orgadc88005 (NIHL) (s26p:dE ongad) o3
LO L LO o

L
o _C

Company Limited (NIHL) (Public Company). From 1995 &5§a$ sl§odom (ooc‘poeq.) o0§0&:6500836l0

L

(B

C

to 1996, he was a part time Director of Myanmar Foresbege) 258¢ opeb 2589203 [§§0r08600905 0gpbioc50s

co C

Products Joint Venture Company Limited (Forest J.V) ecmoeq q€:c380005 (Forest J.V)s2¢p:3& on

L L

cC
3o
~
20
on
lol)
3, B’

Myanmar Korea Timber International Company Ltd ec505-[g§e> 3§ e[gpSgedsdéep m§ag
(MKTI), Myanmar Seal Company Limited (M.S.L) and (MKTI): [g§eoa8:c50rga 380005 s¢
International Business Centre (1.B.C) Co Ltd. Startings3éepom§ogade 003gogmgadad8mdd (1.B.C)o3

I. AL

8

=
n
>

c _C

from 2008 to 2013, he was an Independent Auditor for thesdcxéc§:6i ﬁ 23§38:51§050002(gd 0m0§mea0rEgod3al

o)
o)

Union of Myanmar Federation of Chambers of Commerceopsi jooo 25600§) joop 2869 co08p§scerd, ooqc:

Jd

and Industry (UMFCCI), Myanmar Engineering Society 06s20p5[g¢ [gpSec0oEo[g§eo8E¢ m§apS /005e s208:96
(MES), NGO-Japan Seeds Asia Project, Trustee Board ¢JMFCCI) [§§e28&s280€§nsané: (MES) NGO-Ja-

C

Pyi Shwe San Taw Pagoda and International Businegsan Seeds Asia Projefip5[g, egsdeocdeclom ogaeos
Centre Company Limited (1.B.C) under the name of Aung<:8$m§.| m@é@és‘c}&p 8:g9:eq:oo§so§c33mcﬁ (1.B.C)

C C

Nyunt and Associates (Auditors). During his service at3op¢ (6) §ds§ cocdeodqgpdanerqi:cdcanlgs omosay

the Ministry, he has joined and attended various Financiadaoo&go>3[g: e2qE:06208qEs006p: co3[g§dcloopdn e28:q
[og

Management Seminars in (9) different countries. Heoo§[g¢

Co OC o C Qs CN N
CC(@) ?CC(TOJC U)sp’)GGI:OQOﬁgﬁOE’) eag:eg:ge H

0N

C N

attended the Audit Committee Master Programme in Aprikoodegpod3cloogdi aaaopd  joon 286 eoocpé IFC §&

2018 jointly sponsored by International Finance CorporatiotMyanmar Institute of Director (MloD$3e¢ ogé:0a00)

and Myanmar Institute of Directors. He was born in 1944AUDIT COMMITTEE MASTER PROGRAMMEo>¢ons:

and studied at Myoma National High School. He graduated3cogd: o>o5eqpad3cloogdi 0paopd 0pgg 28603 cgign:3(s

with B.Com (Accounting) in 1964 and Registered [§,os§oonimecoodmgieoypéiaé oprsopdieidcloogdn opbg
¢ ¢

Accountant (Full-fledge) (now CPA) in 1965 respectively. ssd03¢ B.Com (Accounting),oebs 9s8c¢ Registered

o
Y Q@ 9 _OoN

Accountant (Full-fledggos C.P.A) o5, g203:a3:9§36loogdn

o
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U Tun Lwin is a Director and the Secretary of the  Biop§:caCoopd creadel sl§odom063:

c c
A RO

Board. He has been the Chairman of MAGDPL since 2012,99@8 oooo‘%o%ooo:o']ooéu aaooé og@&

oc oc

which is one of the biggest shareholders of our Companyssep:ad: 3E3Eaepimegadbe 063:go0pd MAGDPL &
MAGDPL is a public company, and is currently developing pgge2(gd joo j 2sdmompbion 00§ mei6509E36loogbl

container and general cargo handling International TerminaMAGDPL o5 s26p:3Emed 063(gdom (sagaicrdesiap:
o L

L L

C

&C

Lo 1
o
o
i

(3 ﬁ C
MOCHECI 61030.)’3
e Lo bl

at plot number 29 of the Thilawa Port Area, among Others'ao']s'aog:) RPO$FOQYNEC TEQREQM O 085090368:
o 4 (<] o L L o
H H cC ocC c 9 ocC C C o C c oc
business operations. ©6BE0p) BeoolBomé: 205 (Je)q =[gpSgeddcep
He is the director of MAPCO and he is also the 36505029208 630005c05[gEis¢ 8des00Egad[geior cpdadé

Director of Myanmar Citizens Bank Limited. He is serving egcloopSu

as the Vice Chairman of National Resources Development  a00p5 MAPCO¢ sl§osom g oro0§coéesontesd

Company Limited too. 20pbn 2900p> Myanmar Citizens Bank Limiteeh sl§a502o
He is presently the Managing Director of Shwe Me o283:copi{gdclaopdn 220005 National Resources Development

Group of Companies. Shwe Me Group of Companies hasCompany Limited sowopgogeafgdeop omo§co&esontaqyed

been listed as'Bto 49" highest taxpayer in the country §cloog5u

for the Income Tax and Commercial Tax Categories from  2wpS [§§6200888a%§ jooo- Jooo ¢ jooo- oo
Financial year 2010-2011 to 2017-2018. And, on 2014, itogaosd920d sdofolecgsss m§ogudasm a0t (p) ¢ 208
has been awarded the prestigious “President’s Excellencige) s2c3é: segpiadicndicsonddffs joog 286038 §8¢c05
Award for Tax and Revenue Duty”. He is the Chairman wgomd §8¢c0590305 929§ D@00§ mig§0siceond
of SCG — Shwe Me Logistics (Myanmar) Co., Ltd. 0pd oadmieanéadediq§dopy Shwe Me Group of

c _C

He is currently serving as the Chairman of Myanmar Companiesh 2265 6¢s1§a50:00063:c0p5: [gSclaopdu
Pulses, Beans and Sesame Seeds Merchants Association, o5 SCG — Shwe Me Logistics (Myanmar) Co., Ltd.
the Central Executive Committee Member of UMFCCI & pggop: [gocloogdn apoogh [§§608E804j:dsé s&i0ns

n

Jd L
o

and the Treasurer of Myanmar-Japan Association. opbgprmadel pggpsgdGn UMFCClogé ou3sacnd

L L
C

. . L . o e A
The companies he is associating are currently exportingngsanésé Myanmar-Japan AssociatieBoa&cops: oogmo

agricultural products, importing construction materials andesgepoa[gé or0§002:3loogb

general cargo, providing logistics services, developing — adloéesonigadegonpd cgmepionpd codandoddses;

L

n

le]

[of

terminal at Thilawa port area, growing teak plantations cocbo$ep: [gpdooEdgen samncdapdeepogpdigpisé acogecy
and involving in other business sectors too. He attended»§opbep: 0o&03&:(g8[gp[ges ecr0503eamEess o§eaaEe
the Audit Committee Master Programme in April 2018 gpicosgés Bcocladdméicpé Bo50d000: copbesonddesy
jointly sponsored by International Finance Corporation andeeoogg[og|§5:§§ crgﬁ:oa%%cﬁcﬁl:eq:sod]saog gzgo:eq:mc‘pqlzée
Myanmar Institute of Directors. 035 0350$:epz esooégcﬁo’]oaéu
opoopd J0on2ss eeocpé IFCs¢ Myanmar Institute
of Director (MloD) 3 oy:o0p Audit CommitteeMaster
Programmenéong:adcopd: oodeqpa>3cloogdi




U THEIN HAN  NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

A |
U Thein Han is the member of the Board of Company. ~ 8:a3§::§00p5 o3
C

L
He served as the Managing Director in our Company an@écloopsi aaaps 031§63memd e s2696es1§cbomecs

o
also as the Chairman of Myanmar Japan Thilawa Developmefg¢cogbieanaé 88a3ci 0od0dmem(gdoogs [§§e2 qo§adaoal
Limited (MJTD) from 2013 to 2017. He is the Chairman of 8vec0§c88065 (MITD) ¢ sl§odomeeg @l pgrgeafgd

[

Myanmar Edible Oil Industrial Public Corporation Limited coe tcooCel Joop 98 §6 ¢ Jooo ?§§so08 moo.?ulzesooégo%:}
C

C o C C

(MEICO), which is one of the Principal Shareholders Ofo']oaen wwecra% o%oggcw%é\ 0OPIEDICI) PO

J

our Company. gpiogade 6d:gdpl [§§6992058:ma5 (5)g3|E:(cS)

MEICO is an Industrial Public Company engaged in saéschoco§gud ocdocodemddespgls
manufacturing, importing and in local distribution of various emg@oo’]wen MEICO ooe 020D
kinds of edible oil and oil related products. 0gpdigpicd cobedfgen on&ogts |§c | ooc?g@é gpicd bR

C C

He is the Founder of Golden Horse Company Limitedomﬁaeoc§.aeocrgcoa8 s'aep.teccregmc)oa otﬂoaén algooé

L

established in 1990 which is engaged in the business af@@oogé méeoooé:}e:m Golden Horse Company Limited

manufacturing, export, import and in local distribution of & c>pSec0n8on(gd[G GE:0reamd oo sbis¢ §6:B803 q0sacs
LO Jd d L L
various kinds of edible oil and oil-related products and alsaegao5a3 0r&opcs [gés oosod: :;8§<f:oc°>a>cﬁea>o ©odm§

o C cmc C C

export sesame seeds and sesame oil to Japan market. bigbiqp:o3 5d[ges cEoaésfgés mE3[E: [gilgpesptsay

L L L o
(o

served as a member of the Board of Director of Shw@&ep: cooooco’]ooeu 2po Shwe Taung Cement Company

n

C N _C

Taung Cement Company Limited (Apache Brand Cement)imited (Apache Cementpé sl§cbome28 08936 jooo

O°
C N

from 2010 to 2017. Currently, he is serving as one of thesée joog 2§69 da3E3G: cvod§opé Future Energy

di
C [ C

Directors of Future Energy Company Limited Company Limited sl§o5omegé es0oégadarjodgolaopd

0C.0

(Hydropower), both of which are part of the Shwe Taungeo&:opgad §dacdioog [g§e08E¢§ Shwe Taung Grouppé

L

Group in Myanmar. o'loé@o'looéu oiooé @$QO&CCGI ( )98@000 MYTEL
He is also a Director of Myanmar National Telecom s26p5§ s005a305eg:692506q0061 mgBiqudarnol sagp:de
Holdings Public Limited (MNTH) which is one of the ogaB[gdoogd [§§926$9E505 cbcBaps: Bicbaéid vod DL

C [ C Q

Principal Shareholders of thé ehobile telecommunication  c38c05038cwpS: s1§05090083:[gdcloopSn Bro8§200§ 00

o
(-]

operator in Myanmar with the brand name MYTEL. U @§eo&cc eoo?§ooe§<f: 930350$:9Jo:gaa>8: (Myanmar

L

Thein Han is a patron of the Myanmar Edible Oil Dealers’Edible Oil Dealer’s Association — MEODA) g>com[g:
Association (MEODA) and also serves as Vice Presidenfjpieconéowgmfg§e88e m§oopdepisé 0odecmdedes:
o

of the Union of Myanmar Federation of Chambers of gégpisaaéiqé (UMFCCl)opéaogh: sodwpmgoees(gé

L

Commerce and Industry (UMFCCI). mo%oiooo:(ﬂa)éu §:m§ oocané ongasﬁogé ) (eoo?eos)
U Thein Han graduated with a Bachelor of Scienceg}[gé §$02§8g0s¢ Boongrdcde eomtlgédcloogdi

Degree, majoring in Chemistry,B.Sc (Chem) from Rangoon
Arts and Science University (RASU) in 1972.
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U Aung Soe Tha is one of the members of the Board §
of Directors of the Company. He is one of the Board 0fo>68: [gSclaopdu oooaé q%&o%crg
Director of MTI Corporation, which is one of the Principal 3838 episgade 068:[gdpd MTI Corporationé

C

Shareholders of MTSH. MTI Corporation is a Public s ’]s‘ﬁo%ooosrw 08md8: [gdcloogdt MTI Corporationoogs

[og [o] C C C C

Company established to invest and to become a Iead|r|§§eo§ ¢onc oamc:soqmsammaoogogogequ mcﬁc@cg%:

o
C C Q [og C C C

player in the info-communications and telecommunicationsooageoees XIS MR§:0MROEE:ES aooSguSwémgp
H H . H C Cc o C o < [ co c _C C C

and telecommunications-related fields in Myanmar. He als@p:o3é qS:8:(g0§(§: B:ec008nb8:[gdqs qpSgadq)

performs as a Board of Director of Myanmar Information oopSecoo€aontaopd sagp:dEmemomdafgdcloopdi wopd

L LO L

co C cc o Oﬁ "IO C ~ C
S'?’JCO:Q)’)OD@ (78]&00)0’.)9(?)6] 81§ OO 0D2%20 OC
L L L0 O°
Q
o

(-] ﬁ C °
(@:81) ﬁl(DQ)DS'QQJ’JSSCI?S

n
[

TN

o4

Technology Pte Ltd since 2002. U Aung Soe Tha is thejoo j a§émogbior Myanmar Information Technology Pte
Chairman of Myanmar ComBiz Group, which is engagedLtd &  sl§o5o928,089[gd  ce0oEgodes0063:(gG
in the business of Construction, Real Estates & Propertgoomésagodsacocd socdogadespsé §pdtopmmal 8oddsesy
Development Export, Import and Distribution of Agriculture oggbigp: c§a3c5[géicdess eqpogodogpdiapiss o2(go:

c _C

Products, FMCG Products, Electronic Products, Petroleunm§gamngogeifgapdes s36fgelgeanncdandfgés cepionifgé:
Products, Constructions Materials, and various commoditiegdc §:0303 coda3éegearn Myanmar ComBiz Grouffgse?

oL L L

and the services in the information communications and:go:e0déc§ie) 620l pRgm[gd 000§mEica00E
technology sector. o5 §claopdi 0paopd Jooo 2§603¢ "ASEAN Business

He was conferred the ASEAN Business OutstandingOutstanding Entrepreneur Awardso: 96s&:[gé: 330l
Entrepreneur Award in 2011. He entered his steps to businesspdi apoop5 jooq 98803¢ “Myanmar ComBiz Group”
life in 2005 and became to get the Runner-Up of ASEANme[gé Sigoteggeconmal oéeepodafGe jook 25d03¢ “the
Business Award 2016 CLMV SME Excellence Awards: Runner-Up of ASEAN Business Award 2016 (Employment)
Employment Category in 2016 by creating the betteroo3 q§30lopSi saeomé:ad: (30090t 050 A qeos
environment and opportunities for employees. As reflectingzac§@§ Myanmar ComBiz Trading Co., Ltd:oé Jooo
the best effort, Myanmar ComBiz Trading Co., Ltd. wassséoaécoph: “Most Promising ASEAN Enterprise Award
proudly achieved Most Promising ASEAN Enterprise in ASEAN Business Awards 2017%: co:s268s[gS[gé:
Award in ASEAN Business Awards 2017 which he is 33q[§: s2c08mges0o8pmger(go cs0godaad§olaopdi
performing as the Executive Chairman. 1692088100005 cocbarbegigémbeanas(gdopdm[gé

Being Young and Active Entrepreneur, he is servings»¢ sopdip:dl oogneeaSiod:ipécopdiclodq ooy
many areas of associations with all of his professionalismesoo€gabayeb§claopdiopaops UMFCCI &l o3ucsongmosezop
He is a Joint Treasurer of the UMFCCI, and Joint Secretargégsafgé saoogodayoddploopdi opoogd Myanmar Computer
of the Myanmar Computer Federation.He has achieveérederatiorgtcoph: oyorcdesacpSieqreporddilgd: Joos) 950
Bachelor of Economic from Yangon Institute of Economic o3¢ q§0§8:gaseqiongpadcbe B.ECom&:goteqiopna) o
in 2005. He has joined in Doctorate program Ofslsi{;o']a)é”ooe 935035 MBA Szgo:eq:eooo 0P
Organizational Development in Assumption University q«‘i@:qmﬁ Assumption Universitysgé Doctorate program
after graduating Master of Business Administration fromof Organizational Developmesib: soc5co05e000050p580:

Yangon Institute of Economic in 20009. Qo5 §olaogdi

o

O r~




NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Nyan Thit HIaing is a Director of Myanmar Thilawa eslodomm ecﬁoo

on
‘-=80
on
9
(®n
)
—n
3
Lo
2
9,
)
3o
C
8o
?
3»

(MJTD) and Thilawa Property Development Limited @ooooj:o% oSmo’loespo’lm: 805060090¢B8m05 (TPD)A

e
C o

(TPD) as well. He is currently a Managing Director of the sl§o3000083:cop5: [gdcloopdi aaopd cocd§oaé sadjpoon:
National Development Company Group Limited (NDCG), ¢ [§gc3:onodeq; opg

L

which is one of the Principal Shareholders of our Companysl§oo:00083:cogb:

NDCG is a Public Company engaged primarily in the gebaxneagp:ad:d

business of construction, trading and general services. Hesooo5oSeqiadesi c§305[3éi0dcsi8¢ 60360y
C

L ]
C C oc (=]

is a Director of Proven Technology Industrial Co., Ltd o$caoo€gcxgoc §r9s oo caoocgooooe qp:

©n
)]

OCMOCOD
L LO
(TOYO Battery). He is also a Director of Small & Medium géoaén o.aooe Proven Technology Industrial Co., Ltd
Development Bank (SME Development Bank) which is (TOYO Battery)e sl§o502928,080088:{gdcloopSn 0go0pb
established to provide financial assistance to small anffp5cp&:§ secontenieé sacoddenicpdegiep:§ egelogadEep
medium enterprises (SME) in the country. He is Jointeconcbgcoiesaopd sremionisé sacoodenicpdess & [Gees
Secretary of Myanmar Construction Entrepreneurooéoops: slqedommddenfyd esontgosayosdids Myanmar

Association. Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing graduated with a Construction Entrepreneur Associatien 0'300089'3098:

Bachelor of Medicine from the University of Medicine (1) sqepcopbilgdoloogdn eslodommadondcdeonpd opes) 28603¢
Yangon in 1995. Q§m$emionmdS (o) ¢ Bachelor of Medicine} [g¢
GS?’)CB O'IQDEII
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U TIN MAUNG HLAING
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

founding shareholders of our Company. MAPCO is a Publidgéclaogdu MAPCO 05 09§603

%8
Company formed to mobilize public savings and to foster3édEwmepiangade 048G saep:lgpdope pesontiegap:
[y

broader investment in agriculture and agro-based industrie®o: oogh:q) [§§628E¢A codanddddjicasé doddieq;

C

L L
of Myanmar. He served as an Executive Director in thess[gdeor 0odg039cSeigpiaé oyadlgses S8t (g

L

o
Myanmar Automobile Development Public Company [g&:c3 sa:c0:q$qp5gadaodlgé oopdecoéoonionp sagp:d

Limited that manufactures and distributes of motoro?gmooo? @oo’]ooeu

H H H H C [ [ [ C chc o4 [o o4 o
vehicles. He has also been working as a Managing Director a5 sedeodangep: 00306[Fe:s¢ [g§gr[Eciep:ar

4

in Evergreen Autos Co., Ltd since the founding of theesoo&goso0pd Myanmar Automobile Development Public

[

company. He is also involved with Myanmar National Company Limitedopé se¢ez0oEsl§adommmsisncs(gs

Telecom Holdings Public Ltd., a company that focuses oroé:es0oé3cloogn opaopd Evergreen Autos Co.,Ltehe

o]

development of telecommunication sectors in Myanmar. sygcaBomEompdecorémmpdion 269 6¢sl§odommes(gé
[ o4 C cC O C C [of C

. . . . . . eaoocgmcgjm ﬂofloaen QEOD@ E§Q’)§CCG& aomooooeel

U Tin Maung Hlaing is also actively involved in

mc‘pep @ @lo% 0’.)0% @860TGOG]$ S'B’):GO:OE@E(S:O? 603

Myanmar Japan Association as Central Executive . “oe o c o _
Q02 0pY 2¢O ocmemmoe@oewo Myanmar National

Committee member. He graduated with a Bachelor of
Telecom Holdings Public Lteh&cogd: cloéaloogb

Science in Physics from the Yangon University in 1988

C c

ronEeentpéoopd Myanmar-Japan Associatiogecogp:

Ju

He attended the Audit Committee Master Programme in

[+] N [og [og ’]
owsfacuosfaeesoocemoemmg ocsra@o) mm@cgo oloé

April 2018 jointly sponsored by International Finance

saoocgmo’]oaeu Q)Q')e O@@O 2§ 8088 q$m$ooooa%c6?

Corporation and Myanmar Institute of Directors. He is

S]OGOSOSO » Eic GG?’)&ECQOFIODEII Q)Q')e JOOO 9&0 8[§C\)

¢ IFC

fluent in the Japanese language. é
€000y Audit Committee Master Programmegog:
T OO

Myanmar Institute of Director (MIoDﬁ

C C N\ f] C C [og o C
O’)GSTJ(T)?O O.)ell Oia)e OJ(.)§CD’)OJ’JO(7)’J:O?C\)@:




U Myint Zaw is the Sales and Marketing Director of ~ 8:[g§ea50p5 joop 286 mpgaBomEmpSeaéod
the Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Co. Ltd m§§.$omogomg<m mo%mCOng)é.
(MTSH) and also Admin and HR Officer & General 4 B" §[§CG@’J°DQ mwwomagm$§
Manager of Myanmar Japan Thilawa Developmentc\xD tn§00p5mE RS e w§mdogsSigp: S
Limited (MJTD). He joined the company since founded i mG & aj@éiu&cé o BorcSes 0‘?@90009&6:%:9 . cso;og)cx;
2013. U Myint Zaw has over 20 years of experience in the 88 GE]‘”L y
sales and marketing & trading of commaodity like agrlculture e c e

8§C GOEMOOCVO 3
products and palm oil, manufacturing of automotive spar ° o e o e

O(.;]:D@II OOS’DBC OMCI:§)L: H
parts, hospitality and services, construction and proper b t

Dg.@FGSI:C\eSC§!0J’Jt 0038(\)00§29J’)30)C FCcNCe

§
on
[

oC c_C [+ c _C [ [o] C C C C

development industry. He is a trading and investmert°®¥ ROCHPT RPOIT EmLosE A ?m:‘?‘;@i
veteran with background in the development of rentafe°°¥ 020pbRsEocb05q) mpapcdfgln q:dilgoafaeioiope
factory, condominium project, hotel and auto partsB (g ead00p ”G%-”@lﬂém$°im5°’“ 5: [g6cloopb
manufacturing. His primary responsibility at the momen{§§¢233c0cl 9205(8)s3:a05 GBiadi00500006 saeigé 035¢
is the new business development and sales and marketigg® 72838005 (MTSH)op¢ ifgéeesal s28mapdes:
at MTSH. He is also responsible to set up the new standacd90$ep'?o SigoteqrpSegiondep: gpegqsss qS:d:gdsm
C [o c ocC (o o

Brae %

operation procedure (SOP), new company rules angpc3omoancoqs saeepE:dSiséensaod cudeaessch
procurement policy together with Admin and HR esoocgo%qgo%@o%o']mgu MJITD 03¢
department matter and general affairs at MJTD. He is th@&? 8 63 dspSiep: (SOP

coordinator between Japanese and Myanmar Offlcergg rqySiopSiondigpi m00SemSc3pqSap:s
Shareholders, Directors and also between MJTD angoqsep 5005

5

)
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[
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C C C C ©Qo
o CQJ’) &CS’BO’J QO3 83’3:83610:8’3@0&0 00
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TSMC (Thilawa SEZ Management Committee). U Myint moqloeq go&p cﬁgngo ogcczcué 9, éee%:né 0088
Zaw obtained with a Bachelor of Science (Chemlstry) co c _co <
degree from Yangon University, Master of Busmess CE me§@c @20he0d SOPERT WIE
Administration (MBA) from University of Thai Chamber

of Commerce, Diploma of Business Law (DBL) from
Yangon University and Myanmar Directorship Certlflcatlone o .
which is a first Director course in Myanmar designed by"t";c""e‘\s-m‘aoaoo (MJTD) 5¢ mwag‘mo%’o
Myanmar Institute of Director Certification Program -0 N

(MloD) and Singapore Management University (SMU). GmCamco'%mﬁd]”@" BrfgSecdoog qfopgongyadade BSC
(Chemistry)s3, University of Thai Chamber @ommerce

¢ Master of Business Administratios; q§o§ooga3cde
Diploma in Business Law (DBL3c3 q§3(G: Singapore

Management University (SMUE [g§eosl8cdomoep: oatoddoy

C§ QJ'J S'DGOCGBGOJ’JGG g') GSO’Jgg 5

ocC

§Ceqp0
@§eogas]o§lqo. m(ogprpéoopbicomdn qE:§:[g|04

[§$9

o _C C C C
']G] ('DCD’DQJ’)' S'D@’J'O‘)CC\)E'GO’)’JC'I

Ooo

emdedd (TSMC) o3 safogniopCoopds p38E:[ge:

[ [ C C [og (=3 c o [o4 C [o4
BigEeadonpd [g§erBaoclerns(d )sra:emog:sc:omo:oao
saqp:&f:amgafééean oegcw%cggoo (MTSH)a eq:ogog
cwdez08eepslqudorfgdopdm(ge §§er00s Baodl Svear;

ot e prqor (MloD) o%g %:eofl&g.oé:ooo:em E$eo%8<':og§ oooe§:e§:

e$ 380065 (MITD) 0gécoph: cvgéioentsagé: s'a@o&c 06 A c ; , e c e
¢ oc 02 mc — "0 o oycsoopy Myanmar Directorship Certificatiofi DOEEPO?
S?OS'HOGS] a?cspsaspgsra@ocue cONDCil S?G@GG)%OSJ[OG L

e§c§qom@3coé:emo& CD’JO;ODGGO’)& 8(7)(\)']0) ﬂoflooeu
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Key Management

U KYAW ZAW WAI
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

U Kyaw Zaw Wai is the Chief Executive Officer of §:em4§ee')eooaé E$eoogcuo'] sacﬁ(ﬁ)s%:eogﬁzséz

C

Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Co., Ltd (MTSH) ocbomd sae‘]o:?éa)me?eéewo ogga%csgc)cﬁ(MTSH) §C

C C o (=]

and its subsidiary company, Thilawa Property DevelopmenMTSH oeB&l 0056920058 cpgaddondafgdean Bavdl
Limited (TPD) since January 2019. ossp(ﬂog' 8oeq0petcddond (TPD)G% saﬁcaoaf:saepgﬂla

3D|WO (ee] 9&01 Q@ Of] C\)QOO)CQ oooocoogzcaooéc\) O’S
U Kyaw Zaw Wai has extensive financial and operational, ? Joo€% # 1 j i i
(] ko)

management experience in leading Global and Americas

Real Estate Organizations, more than 27 years of, . e coco. o
COCOC mcggocsl & C\)OC§ (eC 099%
international professional experiences in Americas and A5|a e e o
:D O’.)O)B @OODES?@ (DG§9']I 9’36961(7)<§I OJO§I (I)C |
including Canada, United States of America, Thalland coc.
O)CCDDOl @§Q’) OOD@&CCQJ’) cﬁ 9’39[38@8’3& 8’30@ OJ’) O’)C

Singapore, Japan, and Myanmar with numerous senior.
Country Leader, Vice President Asset Management,

management positions such as Country Leader, Vice
Alliance Director, Director Finance and Accounting,

President Asset Management, Alliance Director, Director
Director Planning & Analysi®eoon epoo: oaooq;srao,]l eJ[ oo

Finance and Accounting, Director Planning & Analysis in
&OG(;]C: (JS) &@G(Y.ﬂ’.) CD’JO?@G:GSD’JCQ:DEO(;]ODEII 0‘)G§9']&CCI

(7)0’.)99 ao UBG S| COOC e oo OQG@OC 0‘)
he worked for the World’s Largest Commercial Real Estate Rarlld & “Gelogteiiy 8
ego0pd CBRE LIMITED op¢ Director, Country Leadeiogd

Firm CBRE, Toronto in Canada from 2006 to 2018, held

9900 QJ’) @C JOOGQ&OQ JOOQ 9&0‘3300 CT.)’.)O§Q)Q G@’)CQ

leading real estate organizations. Before joining MTSH,’

different management positions such as Director, Countr

oa@u 5 MTSH ooc emqnoooqeo:@m memcﬁ
Leader. In MTSH, he takes a leading role in the sectors of - -

(@l CT.E O‘JCD Qcagep@q ege@.s?csp oea‘gg@c.ooo@
strategic planning, development, asset management, afd™ . . e e .

OOO0DC 020§D 302C O’)C\)GSO(.)’]OJ cll 2020 me Sr]—

financial management. He is a founding member an c‘p; ° ¥ §lc JC ¥ c@ co C@ . ¥ R

. i i §Q’J<D g’) H~ GO’)’J C’ﬁ OCDCO’)&?GCI)OCO%O‘)OE:@OQ)@S’D (o]

Director at the Canada Myanmar Business Council. ¢ e .

Sl]GL]O)O‘)OU.)OE.C\)e. BO(.;]OJ&)‘II
C [o

U Kyaw Zaw Wai holds Bachelor of Commerce from  Sieobearcongs q§0§8igaieqiongadabe Bachelor of

Yangon Institute of Economics, Master of BusinessCommerces}; c3&:8&¢ Asian Institute of Technology
Administration from Asian Institute of Technology in Master of Business Administratia s¢ megslgés York
Thailand and Post-MBA in Advanced ManagementUniversitye Post-MBA in Advanced Management Program

Program from York University in Canada. 93,0303 q§eontop(gdclavgl




The profile of U Myint Zaw is on page no (23). Please refer to the page for the detail.
§:B§ee§cﬁ CT%OSGG]:S’BC)J@:GB’J: 0’)@JO%§’J(J?) cw%@ooo:@:@ﬁo']w@é SBSgLO'] O’JQJ(')‘S?’)OQS @éﬂ%é(ﬂ&éll

_PROJECT DIRECTOR

U Thurane Aung is the Project Director of our Brang§e990800pb 08603 EA 8503§:51§050:0[gd(G:
2

L L

c o

($les]
Company and Vice President of Myanmar Japan Thilawdg$e>-oo§3acl8oearne§B800d (MITD) 6 scdw
Development Limited (MJTD). His diversify experiences (Vice PresidentfyécloopSi 8:08$e0208e ep:@o:mdof)@

came from more than 17 years of service in Dagon Groupeeon cdc§i9603 :2(03jg:e0 30§ memepisndon
4 L O° 4 L LO L

L
which is one of the leading conglomerates in Myanmarcaodaos ogsdem)5 Siea0oérda3Cogpie q§an(gé:
with diversified businesses in sectors that include propert@éo’lwén

c

development and construction hospitality, timber 3

Lo}

On z0L0

C

corporations. Drawing from these experiences U Thurane»: ewoogo?$ ®odéeqEade st ep o'loco’ia:gu
Aung carried out the feasibility study and negotiated for  3:§$eoEoogd so§ong
the joint venture between MTSH and Japanese Consortiuma@o% o o$oo<5=eaooée§oéogé
to form MJTD from the beginning of MTSH. His §<; §ode0adg) ©
experience in property development in Dagon Group equimmoé@égoéjg&ﬁ %6 'Jcsraoo@soo esoocamgo']oaen
him with greater understanding of project managemenf:22§§cgoé @5%59@9J0:G(\;®090$:05@5:&§ é§6
and project implementation which was put to use by MTSHez0oEgaboep: [ge9d
when our subsidiary Thilawa Property Development@$eoo‘3c\ao 205 5) ohta0od03a8: ooo:»oaomep :8C 200OBDE
Limited was formed. 6207 Me@ddmad (MTSH) & m§e s'aoeoc MTSH s¢&
His primary responsibility in MTSH is to coordinate oo§adcé: ?ogc"i 00506006c§:[gdeon B§eo 0J0§a>coo'i
among the stakeholders for the smooth running of existingoecpe§c80305 (MITD) [goedl conesané [Frodiesondgod
business as well as develop new opportunities and@c LTt

C
investment within Thilawa SEZ and beyond. 8:008§69208A0 s0§medBap: eraooooc mehe@g@l:eq:

C o C
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He also contribute much of his time for the developmenkodc§igp: 65008 god3epeq§3comn besimeo safoep:
of the different business sectors he is in by joining thesogd 85c3§:85953[3E:6¢ 8o03§:92607E 920005665 63028 gD
Executive Committee Member of Myanmar Construction epogé oomag§eoméigseod og8603 [g§eo8c00l 9205(8)shacd
Entrepreneur Association (MCEA), Vice-President of 03:38:0050c06 sagpig§oadaddemd mpgada38mad
Yangon Region Young Entrepreneur Association(MTSH)&l co5es0058mgad[gdean Baclosgpolod:
(YRYEA). He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in 8oecoe8§ c58005 (TPD)ooéeoooéspogécoé: el o)

Business Information Management & Finance, which hesocr%l:@léo'loaéu

obtained from the University of Westminster, United = 3:008§c9028& [§670800l 9205(6)sB:a05 3:aé:
Kingdom in 2004. 00> mqp@éa:cﬁe?eéemo cregcﬁcsgmag (MTSH) s':]

o c _C [og co c _C C
2280006 §:00§ 610 LORdC§igP: Te0CegesPey e
C coc C c e C o c Qoc¢ C c _C
6s008ga8eqimmod q:&sgodopeiss P8 Ei[gCicpdes:
ep:s'a[gé Bcvol SEZsraogS:§§ o[goiesepap:
©bc§: mgémsindep: goeygcisd g
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OR03060q$ eaoocgm@c.ep.@oo oI

[~ ocC C cC © c _C O oo o C
Bron§eomioopd Sigateqrapdesionanddd [§l: oD

C [od OCo C
Gq.S'BO’.)CD B§Q’)&LCCGG)’)O‘.)C\20661.G)CSTJ NOC§.6109J0.

§SO€_§$G%’J(€Q§8€JOOC} ?ﬁ.o%oocc: E
B

Management & Financgf Sgo(oabo0:)03. 3 q§3op
[g8cloogl

U Myo Myint Aung is the Head of Finance of Myanmar  3:djs[gées2260p5 cpgadel oamegpadéep 22(dfie205
Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited and @g@, ggo%.c, ""8080?‘3“9’@53’é MJTDUO_,g oogpoeqzsiﬁ&p
concurrently the Chief Financial Officer of Myanmar Japan,, ‘*Pgngl‘c’”@“c’ 90§00
Thilawa Development Limited. ’
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(o4 CG. Co " [o4 C C [o4 cr/c (=] (o4
opoopd &EOsDYPis¢ sordbesEgIRE credapt:
U Myo Myint Aung has over 10 years of experiencedéméo3gé: oogmeqadéep 869§3[FEH gbiea0oEqpdBEep
in planning and budgetary control, financial and859§§ & mgpgsq:§§859°_§gq;g§égp msqéé mé@@é;.
management reporting, performance management, cagQG@,agg 855§3(&: B3¢ (00)sSem e 3§
t, financial and business analysis, investmerfs s e o o0, o\ /3P0RP PGB
?na;;agigﬁg i,nternal controls o BESNooet g Joogeabe Joogasdomoghi oficks
y ' es:§oaé Management Accountasgé copdieomacs
He worked as a Management Accountant for Puryoorzasoge Joogasgsaooéz o%m‘jloeooos%f)éj‘%: ooqé:occz

LJ 4 LJ [e] L °

Hlaing Siloam Hospital (formerly Pun Hlaing International "?‘3“8”69 Sa0pd NOK Corporations oémﬁmggé’e(f,

L

Hospital) from 2005 to 2007. During 2007 to 2017, hechemical Segmen} o&eepod3f:Finance Manages(é
worked in Singapore for chemical segment of NOK 3 .

. . QO
Corporation (a company listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange), o o e R .
and his last position with them is Finance Manager. Brdfpgéeseacoogd madigooqiiopmrsacyi(yq Bachelor
of Science} o3 oabaion§: (oceseao)gé Oxford Brookes

C C [og C [ f] C
E:GO’)OC: 03'.)O§9J’.)3CDQSGSD’JC?0 Q’.)ell

U Myo Myint Aung holds Bachelor of Science degree =~ SR8 SloacS o _
with first class honors in applied accounting from OxfordUMVersitye s228fgeadlarpdn opo0pt Institute of Singapore
Brookes University. He is also a member of Institute ofChartered AccountantdSCA) ¢ 08 &8:(g8[Gs
Singapore Chartered Accountants (ISCA) and a fellowAssociation of Chartered Certifigbcountant (ACCA$
ai:ng:b:)r of Association of Chartered Certified Accountanig|iow Memberos§S:copS{gslarpSi




HIGHLIGHTS of the Year

Visit of Vice, F’resmer_}gﬁHE U Hem’g,f Van IT|1110

rUF’IIDI"‘MIﬂIStEF HE U Than Myint
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC LIMITED
WELCOMING THE NEW YEAR 2019

ok ] Fas Facilic Tengen

i
Depaty Mimister of the Ministey of Planning
and Fimance and Chairman of TS

MYAN
MAR THILAWA KEz HoLqus PUBLIC LIMITED
WELCOMING THE NEW YEAR 2019

am Paci ﬂ Yam n
@ L 'ni - . 3

Deputy Minister of the Ministry
of Commerce

‘1 ' EJ w lcom"

ewYear™ ercelebration
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Japan and U.S.A Ambassadors visit

Canada Ambassador visit

2% Canada trade link visit |

I_.______| 'i:.f | -___, E
General Administration Department Officials

——

30| MTSH
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SUPER HOTEL Grand Opening Ceremony
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Anmversar
Cel ebraﬂon of

Japan-Myanmar
Joint Venture

= I 5 = L
32| MTSH L .




As invited by Mr. Hideo Watanabe, Chairman of Japan

Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Co., Ltd. (MTSH), Members
of Board of Directors, and Senior Officials from
MMSTD (Mitsubishi, Marubeni,Sumitomo) attended the
" Myanmar Economic Seminar " and "5" Anniversary
Dinner of the Signing of the MOU on the establishment of
Myanmar-Japan JV Company, MJTD to implement the
"Thilawa Special Economic Zone", celebrated in Tokyo,
Japan on the 29" of October 2018. HE Yukio Edano, who
was the Minister of Ministry of Economic Trade and
Industry (METI) during the initial negotiation to

establish Thilawa SEZ and U Thurain Thant Sin, #
Myanmar Ambassador to Japan attended the
Dinner Celebration. During the visit, MTSH had
the meeting with HE Taro Aso, Deputy Prime Minister
of Japan who provided tremendous support for the
joint establishment of Thilawa SEZ; Mr. Tatsuya Terasawa,
Vice Minister of METI; Chairmen from MMSTD; had
open and friendly discussions on the develuprnent ;
plan of Thilawa SEZ.

—,

Mr. Hideo Watanabe ( Chairman, Japan %

Myanmar Association) ¢ 8o quEte:
SBodfieat 0009381 camcioborncd (Je)ardosh

orofgiopdaopl "Myanmar Economic Seminar”
$¢ "obood mopidimieqiad iedi€imeomEmacopd
mﬁncgzmgrﬁ E$m§5 ruu$ Gﬁ’iﬂﬁﬂ;gfﬁﬂ:@& MJTD cy?:mp_Sncm

22092007 cwaSgcSaiafioag (9)$6efg0d +5u==5mém55m?05 20002
=808qpy MMSTD  Consortium  opga®el mmﬁﬁﬁmoﬁa}nﬁm? ;
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Performance Review

FY2018-19 Group Financial Highlights

Net Profit Earning Per Share

156,. 398

FY2018-19 MMK 15.6 bn FY2018-19 MMK 398

FY2017-18 MMK 12.8 bn FY2017-18 ~ MMK 310

Gross Profit Margin Return on Equity
6 0 0 / 1 ; 0 /
0 0

FY2018-19 6 FY2018-19

FY2017-18 48%o FY2017-18 14%

% CHANGE FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (MMEK '000)

Net Profit 20.0% 4,519,791 3,765,838
Share of Profit from Associate, MITD 25.5% 11,395,054 9,082,732
Profit Attributables to Equity Holers 28.4% 15,487,486 12,060,965
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 (MMK '000)

Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.7% 32,343,081 32,126,840
Total Loan and Borrowing - - -
Total Equity 7.8% 92,048,845 85,392,163
Debt to Equity Ratio - ; %




Operating landscape and outlook

We are exposed to residential and commercial real og§6c3mgadapd cocdesmnrdmemafgdean Baodl

estate sector through our investment in Thilawa Properfy;

L . . DIODICEDCEP 3265000039 meeaoomeq:mﬁc$:ep:oo
Development Limited, and industrial real estate sector ° ¢ ¢ ¢ ' < ‘1 9 °
cue.cmoczl GO’)OOG?S\CD@OGCDOE.?QO-Q]O.?CDC\)O 806
through Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development Limitede88cy05 (MJTD) ngsog oc,ggmgc$. g,ssomgms;,qm
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«0On On «On

]
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Following section discuss performance and outlook of re&b@GGOOCDGGOGSOOCGS]=0350$=9J°=°3° opdiemné: cloé
(=] o o4 [o
estate sector in order to provide better nderstanding of offS: @l"&qm‘l‘ﬂw@" RYWEN OigcH moc‘? i opbed:

00 cocC
Q')GO)’DQ’)G)‘DOGJ’D.CD (.e(f§93(\)e&i06061§ QBQBGB (6)’) GG]

business and business environment.

2]

mgp&cooooomé mcﬁgleq:crgm gBGBS?G?&C gB?’)OO‘JS?C\)O

. . . 0.)’39’3.0’.) GGBD(DGO‘D 0']0’3889’).030 990’)(\)0’) S
Residential sector performed poorly in 2018 and” "4 @ { § 3e2e
GC\)C\)’)&LCOFIOD&)'II
expected the trend will continue to 2019 due to oversupply Jooo ?§osa038:ogé IG‘?meq,)Gmssmg@g 025053
of properties in market, limited access to financing andognoops eoiR03§ eqpéiadsamigp: Jag(§s 00Sed o20:
C o [ c C N
weak demand. Although residential sector is gloomyF®R$R: gé:03e(o3¢ @Schiorefgoacsepronnieaa3qy:
. . OO 9&5 8(\) c: CIS:SDG§9?CO’J'9'BO‘)C 202 m(TSC\)GS
commercial retail sector shows robust performance a{ s “0c®emc c oc
) ) .(7) JG wgee@oo’]weu %&?8’3 sp GGOG&)’)C@C.C\EOC‘?.
average 90% occupancy rate with some major shopplrggg c0:8§omteapIconSopd: m§ndedEep mewmion
malls maintaining almost full occupancy rate throughoum8c$-q]o- & G§sp<}o:s]5:gﬁ$:oooz 0p5 s sioan(gs
eo/o @ mSJlGOD’) S'BG)C('DG] GOJ:OQ%OSO’)’) @:ep:ooé
C C

0'] SOCO§ OJ'.). 8’3@8@0 JOOO O’)O&OOU)QB:S?UO)CS GCD’JC.9§

c02 S'DG§9'BCDO.§].9<.;]:DEII GG’)B(.;] crﬁogcﬁﬁmc‘p?f: oogoamﬁ
Industrial estate maintained its star performance in 201§§q99359$,09:q5,gge ms?mwom&g cq mf,eé&gegg
L 1 L JL ale e

4

. . . . [o4 C. C C o C C. [o C C '] C
and demands for industrial land will remains strong due tepeaopd: 000§ CROIMSONCILFEFOPID SGPOCOI I
00’39(\)80$:GO'SG&)08653Q380$:Q)&%'JOOO ??6036
o [o C [o4 c_¢
s'aemoc.eo. %G§S?W):§ﬂ9[§’: OD§®ODQJOJ9LQBOC§SGI|OS q’):@’)t

Guide 2019” published by European Chamber of Commerce,_ BoGe: ot &

-

2018. We expect occupancy level and rental rates f(g

commercial sector will remains healthy for future years,

n

growing manufacturing sector. According to “Manufacturing

[og C o o C C C C
G@’DC_} omﬁ§me@ep.o? 91)(730)(7)9960’)’)093008
in Myanmar, manufacturing sector is a major source ds5q§ Ssabj0>§dlaopSi[g§eo8E¢§ EuropearChamber

Myanmar’s economic growth and will expand in comingOf Commerce °°°%G°°Dél Manufacturingﬁuide 20194

COO’)C\)OQC\)OC Heasl 20 G’.)&CC0.00.G CD.CD(T)QG%
years. As an only operational special economic zone aﬁ@'? froomaogd g} 61

‘339009'26 c.s'aqc.coo?@o@. one@?oep.ogcme. GBSCL)O’]
best industrial park in Myanmar at the present time, Thllawg) Sk opic

n

(7) @(DC\)O’)O’%‘O\J ooo:eé@o%oaéu Q93 0)(73?(70)0
Special Economic Zone is poise to reap the benefits arﬁeosccc‘"n meoméiadican 0059asm63(@d[g: wbcs:
JL L L :.: e

o
opportunities of this manufacturing growth. We belleve“’8°°°99°°°§~1‘”°%l‘”“l‘5w° Badlecy 4 RIOIGACYREOR
C\?OGC?.O’)(T)C\)OBC.CQII %SCS'BC\)G §(§ S'BCDOSGOD:%:

C

o,

Thilawa SEZ will continue to attract as the best destlnatlonL§ S co P
J'.).(T) qwaoo.&ceeme§s'aooo 33 GGPmﬂG? @00']038
03030189%.0.(6)’.).961.?§338 @8?30’)’)83%?603 009)19§Qg€@
Based on market outlook and industry analysis we believ®ds9o(gd &:8:[gi040pp:03 s0050005¢) o565l azn:@epdon

o

N

for investors.

CC O o C C
that industrial estate will maintain its strong performanc@'&l‘?"%“?@@&w@“ e e e e o .
A A ) GO:O;)(T)%Q)’J:S?C\)’)?? 0mﬁQBOC§:a)CGP GC\?C\)’)Q’?:ODO
for coming years, growing demand for commercial real . ¢ e ¢ & che ¢
q q’) 9’361 OCDQC\)OC§ G(.OOGSOOC@C: C\?O
estate especially for retail space while residential sectcg;,gelrrcocme Gmc.e‘?emqmsq,,w% 20050005 B§:3
c _C

will remain sluggish. As we are excited to capitalize on th90°°&cee|§0[§'l 93961090068000[§O'C\>OC§ Qpos 035 033000’3
8&.8(7).8:?803’)(\)&)' co§oaooeaocep GOJ 3889§:9J’J:C'I C{:)S'B
oPgd [géocdanepdgbeforps: wifegpddlaoghi sopaacda

our strategy and business plan in the lights of currerz\mgodgmme me@me§eJo.soTemej ooespogezej@

growth potential we see in front of us, have streamline

development in the market. oocrge@o% o S & e s'aos'aoeemac.ep.| emoqmmoep:@é
[<] L 2, o °
og@c%o%qo%c ¢205§ 030059 20008 mcuocmoc'ep 1038 &

©
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Integrated Report NPDd:EQES[gE:
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00)33(7)3)(7)ng§633’3 9’3?§10)(D’J

Blgéa) orS c csrad?'em'c:@ogooc'coo o
GOFRY:> Q92 LSS 9% (4

§0.G<.0’SGSO’)899J’) ('73 w%c%:méeaoocf:eozeé BGC)O']OJéII
business. In our endeavor to fulfil corporate mission o?o L et eme . c S
9’308’30 .@ﬁ Gl :OJO’)BOGOJ'D m?ﬂwwoﬂcqmcﬁ 9’3(7)'“2

creating value for all stakeholders in transparent, responsmge0 o

.
O

o'@ooo 16QE R0 05
pieq; 2§
C C

(6) @3 CD’JO%OgGCD’J
and sustainable ways, our business activities and subsequegéeS opdodepd §pS:c08:epz(gé @lgoégewgsmoéchﬁ

. . . . o f] (g [¢] [*] o [ od ﬁ
outcome have interactions with various type of resourcege! o1 B [3podigd
g)?’DOOgOSGCI @ml cuo&:sraozl C\)GGDOSODOSGGF&E) 200020
o [e] d e
[og

©cd0D 92 C'G’B [} ’.)O’DO% Cc: P csraco sraoo‘)'aoog
2o qC:02[goe:goc3st [g§oecos cead:

(“the capitals”) during the course of value creation proces

n

These capitals comprise financial, manufactured, mtellectual

qo']oo@u
human, social and relationship, and natural. o.og,cq,c\?ocggggogggcﬁchySQJg;§{;oogo;qsq gém&
g 31@ @'@ééemo sagqééoomé:@qagep'@@ 90
It is our responsibility to communicate to stakeholder 7% ce o

Q)’JSICGJ').G’)’J SO(DODQ):DCOC GO.GG] mg,x}oo&)' O'a&OCO
how we conducted our business activities in transpareggmc%lmqea gaemmoos?moqooc@ooqwe“ Dapes

and comprehensive report. Financial information alone i8éep s0S[gao50d20p5[gé A cdc§ieangodacd

not sufficient for comprehensive understanding of oufé 08‘990"5‘1é°J°"3 2050N §rropdsceogs ofgpd
c o ¢C C C C co

activities and performance. We have used mtegratetfaega?m Q‘mqﬂmqp'@g a‘lfjaoozﬁmefmoc"cmj?'
G(B’JG&)’JCQC\)OC§ QJ’)'CD mogww’)ﬂcep:e (ijO’JJ(D@ﬁg’D

reporting to link strategy, value creation process and 05 ¢ o ¢ groc ¢ ¢ ¢
§’.)'CDQCDGOD’)GO ('DGOGT??C C:C\)C:g’) ODC@&LCSI§ qegoa

° 1

performance to provides broader and deeper insight a@mﬁéqgwggeﬂgw oo Sme QJC,S (Integrated Repords%

to tell more coherent value creation story Moreover, ©opS:o&[ge[gé:[géclaopdi :2acloncbdmdqlsendd méfg
o4 cc o o4 C C C H H

integrated reporting link contribution of our activities [BEE og§6heh eamnbgodaadepioagh United Nations

Development Programme (UNDﬁ)Sustalnable Development

toward United Nations Development Programme (UNDP b

oals(eqqpbmpSodg [§reqrqpdesiqod)epiad [gp2sopd:
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), and |ntegrate,(;jmc,,,(,,‘;o.scODEQGEIc Sustalnablllty Repo(bqs]eoo@oo
report also serve the purpose of sustainability report. 23 EQesp s'aoslcaoo)é\ q@awqmmm@ @eoe.eo..?ceg

C C
O200l

[

Guided by our vision, mission and corporate value, our ' ¢ < cgSefiaos qobediaes coS8§o5a8Eq
LO 4 L L

©
d
strategy is to balance between conformance and performangé §:qp:ci c\)&%,%a'jcﬁqusémé 0g§603E g0}
. . . Q oCc oc¢ C [of C
aspects of governance, actively coordinating betweemoo'eq 99061’3 09'690’309&9 098?C=9? §P opoiQpopide:
C C c ¢ o
o

investments to capture the synergy among the investmerig Bobgoeciealoa: ciaodigeeqist Boepelgeeia;

[2]oH]] §8£CJ9LO)$<?L°:GBQ']l.9'BO’J:§9 CD&G§SPGJ’):GOT%O‘)8CG:D’)
and making focus investments in the real estate value chalflx,

n

,_

2@ §oopio 0colé: 5'3@6&9 DOqSemad §8é
J.‘|. 4 JL .J L .61 .J.‘l 4 JL Jl.sl 'j ° L Qﬂl.

asset class and location. The following diagram iIIustrateéﬁmogqg 95 gebenSeamnaras§dlapsi eoa05e6[alo
I H c CCOﬁ co, o c 9, C Cc o P < C
our value creation process. VPO 0Z$00CN MFIQ)D: VHOAREHIGIOICHQVOCHIOPM GV
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Boundary of reporting entity for financial capitalis ~ o03698qE5eo (Integrated Reporthé svgeonieon
the same as financial reporting entity for financialogeqsaqS:engboopd maeggéionéiediéigéogé cudl
statements. Financial information presented in financiangle;m Ggg@;g‘@éq@chﬁ@m(f,qﬁ:?@ %é‘ﬂ"’é“ gag%(ﬂ
capital are in consistent with financial statements. O%((pf,gq,ﬂgmggeo']&ql&fé %gémmmqg,éi$gémo,ngg,
financial statements are audited by independent auditq;eczqéijm?émé nggmgemmq&ogmg.m oéeso:@@:
and conformed to International Financial Reportinggc.] ¢

. o0 COEII
Standards (IFRS) and regulatory requirements.

For other type of capitals, the boundary of reporting e e ne co o
entity is broader than financial reporting entity. Non-2P1d) s2ef:onlgdeadiéongial oo
financial information and monetized value of other capital§9°¢gEgoegeacobiss ad:pdcsfgep:od

oy . [ C
are aggregate value of all entities net of intercompanfgooopSu
transactions. These aggregate values include the portion §8:ce56a008903 928¢o5g¢RBepRE Mo mRsed
not related to us by virtue of control or significant influencepesdléioéege mdoolmeadangtiangs: mlgsoecogeeptiage

L
H H H H C o c c o
as defined in accounting standards. The reason for goirR§eoo o8egdocdedds) 2200:00Eq§eaom§8:03 q
m

(%

beyond the boundary of financial reporting entityis thegé:gdclaopSn s38epe(g orpSear05e656505E 03

o)
o)
N

effect of risk and opportunities created from these activitie¢ s2qpdsreagieaéigf: adjioa[god(gdogs: colgioan:

o
C (o

[

3%
can better understand on aggregate basis. [g¢ 0y§603 92q8:m[gdor§Brepradcopd: BilgéeoidCopd
We define value created as total revenue of all entitiggdoogd jooo- joop oE§d03¢ M§F0emYS 96 Bcdad

within the group after eliminating intercompany (Joog- joo» »@§6x¢ M§dioermmME EoBB03)
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the real estate value chain. In FY2018-2019, created value
amount to MMK 76 billion (FY2017-2018: MMK 68 hillion)

and distributed to our stakeholders as follow.

Employees
4% (FY2017-18 : 4%)

Communities
1% (FY2017-18 : 1%)

Capital providers
20% (FY2017-18 : 15%)

Society through supplier
and business partner

Retained for future 53% (FY2017-18 ; 59%)

22% (FY2017-18 : 21%)

Value creation and distribution




Financial capital ogreqséegelogBéq 92qSiofgd

The group net profit for FY2018-19 is MMK 15.6 billion, ~ Jooo- joop :gs0¢ cpeaispded sag8scdfs saoomiont
which is 22% improve from previous financial year. Then[godoogs o6 (0g. 6)BBu3gdoopiercycd wedmarsd
main reason is due to MMK 2.3 billion increase in group’s¢ 8&:adclon (JJ) ep8Ess: [§8o0530p5¢s MTSH &

share of profit from Myanmar Japan Thilawa Developmenicodmgm(gdear [g§eo-0o§ BBcwcl 8vsanreé 38mad

c O C

Limited and MMK 2.0 billion exchange gain in currentgqoSan s2[gosq§egpd od( J. p)BBadad B[gE3[gess

o
N C

financial year. The exchange gain was resulted in FY20188&[g: egefpgicdaycdessiconiepio o316 (. 0) Bcdud q§3[gé:

C

19 due to currency depreciation of MMK against USD. o3e[o32¢[g6cloopSu

The Group reenue for FY2018-19 declined 51%,  Jooo- Joop o@o§603¢ caooddcobeqiadme ofeg
mainly resulting from MMK 3.5 billion decrease in o6 (p- ) 5c3a> oya08:032:[5¢:5¢ clggaiqoige qfeavsotes
construction revenue and MMK 2.7 billion decrease in lan@é (J- 9) 330> ccopspdiagaifgéiadslopé mpgaderbod

3

lease revenue of Thilawa Development Limited. DespiteSegoopd (90) epSEss: oysol:dqulooghn B3e0d wafo3é:

JL
Q

decrease in revenue, gross profit only falls 38% from MMH2[go500p5 035 (9. ) Bedads (p. J) 93cB0da] qp8Essioanifge
5.2 hillion to MMK 3.2 billion. The main reason was due tdpe%)o» oyeotaniggtel sadmseppiisaqier MTSHA
MMK 1.1 billion increase in commission income of MTSH, seeep&ieondegéardesie ofegogd o6 (0. o) 93cBud ox[ges
a comparatively high profit activity. Gross profit marging&:sfpp¢lgédlaoght e3¢ jooo- joop oogosdsacyad
remains high at healthy level of 60% for FY2018-19.  opgadead ?cﬁ m@e sra@ooep% §§:0005 (60%) 2B [§oncd

Cash generated from operating activities for FY2018-160>08:§3

is MMK 9 hillion and cash balance at the end of financial year

JOOO-JOO@ U)Cg__)’)ﬁdg%)é C\E(SC$:G&)’3€‘§(TSQJ(TSQJ’J:?
is MMK 32 billion, and the retained earning stood at MMK 46 ¢ s @ ¢ _co
OCGC('DJO (@)'J)(\)(qua@ mgpoeq ?00?§§1 G%‘G@ S'BGB
billion which is 17% increase from previous year. <

%G-?CDE O’)JO (?J)ogcxgu')@ﬁo"loaén czeaooé:ooo:éje::oo

Financial caputal FY2018-19 FY2017-18 FY2016-17
Return on equity (%) 17% 14% 26%
Return on assets (%) 16% 13% 24%
Current ratio (Time) 23 16 15
Quick ratio (Time} 13 9 11
Earning per share (MMEK) 398 310 553
Earning yield (%) 14% 11% 13%
PE ratio (Time) 7.2x 9.2 x 7.4x%
PB ratio (Time) 1.2 % 1.3 % 1.9 %
Dividend per share (MMEK) 250 230 260
Dividend yield (%) 9% 8% 6%
Payout ratio (%) B3% 74% a47%

ANNUAL REPORT | 39




. [Py <, o
Manufactured capital :2§20050C6g 92qC: g0

o C

Manufactured capital are physical objects that 9'a§'300')ocsc saslc s'aB D ga%éﬁ 9'a§ooogo§eg
oCc ocC o

are available to us for use in generating futurél“[“]gamm 929: ‘{I“GQ” °°9°°99J°‘?9§°%@&@5&Q’é"

(78]&00)039(.'8)038 Q’)C\)OF]OGSTJO']O) 806(\)’)98 C\%gooog

o C

(T PD)&C -0j0§ Dol Boeeccdd0005 (MITD) 030n¢
§oo-q0§ 293

revenue. Wénave generated following manufactured
capitalsthrough our investment in Thilawa Property .

qc :&: @loaeqjo E]lcoo@c Bc s'a§ooooocec s'aqc sra@f)e %05)

o

N r

DevelopmentLimited and Myanmar Japan Thilawa %o,).emcamcqmq&me" m§°om°gc 208 3088

Development Limited. We aim to make Thilawa SEZeq5g8e(a¢ qE08§58: qbesiqodep:fgé Bovoleacmidigaiee
a destination for “Work, Live and Play”. ?$[<_fa= @590TC\>09061$ @[305“\%0%%10']3386"

e N

N
Thilawa Property Development Limited Bavclosgpilod: §vecne¢ad8mad (TPD) o3 Beo

=)

3

(“TPD”) was formed to undertake the developmentg)m:%:(y):gq:@$?q(_\) c§520eps¢ BignreqiEdCep mes000I;P:

construction, marketing, leasing and operation oftwgJo o ¢ SG8 sopo SGEERSs &

(02) GIC & 03&?63)0(7)

Or:
oC

8 661:
[of

8 O%GSO’JCQC\)OC§ G(.V)GGD'JC@C

(2]
N
n

Residential and Commercial Area, Shopping Ma

3
oo

C\EOC?:({):GBC(?(D GB q&@
and Hyper Market in Thilawa Special Economic Zdrle o o c coe o R

) ) o . ) 003&?0?_0? Ga)’DCgCDSECGI§9'DCD('D Q)C\)OF]S’QOD:Q:O’):GSISG§
(“Thilawa SEZ").TPD is a joint venture withhilawa

[o]

Special Economic Zone Management Commitfge

C C oc oc [
Company Limited (“TSMCC?”) in which TSMCC ownfs| ¥ tedl&ongdeanéafofl: qu)‘fceqceepms‘?@? K
20% and Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Pub

\Limited own 80%. ) @o’]ooéu

L
oc ¢ C oc ¢ O oC
Lo2gade (00) ep3egieé TSMCCo (o) epBigs: 8688

Thilawa Garden City Booclpopp(§leos

H H H oc ocC c 9 Q co oc C
Residential and commercial land own by TPD has ~ TPDe 38a8Exp5 SBcudlsnc:digaieeiasq Re4 oo
(]

J

(J) o [ [of o C
total area of 34 hectares, of which 1 hectare was subleadtg* %P clgedo0esdlé: (og) 05o§oop) 22505
. . o)oomc)oooé éw&:ncs% s (o)) PR méaoc?oogé

to 8 major local banks where KBZ Bank is now unde e N o e 2 e o
clgeniqico3fis coad§ogé KBZ o ooars 926020V TPRO

construction and 0.6 hectare wsisbleased to Super ocneamabndesfigologdt wdsd Super Hotelsso:
Hotel. Super Hotel had commenc#ir operation on  efgeecycdea0§:(o. 6) o503 o?TPDe corqbreor 9[§| Joog

350! eo%mc:é Super Hoteb coco 3098 sra§o ch o&ca@
LJ 1 O°

(SC§ OO)CC\)eOO)C\'.)JCDS]OfIODéII C\)OOD’) S'DQGT)&C C\)G§

89$ Qj’) ooeesoomeqooé GBS&]OJ’J (O O) (D(DUJ’J(D

2019, we still have balance of 20 hectaaegilable for g0 @9@ @o(ﬂmen m@oo'lj Joo@ g§o| 0O (?o) slme.?el

L

future sublease and/or own development. gra€{|0°€3°C\>°’JG.P 9061 ®G§9°961’>&C 8: goseq; 99061086100’3

sraogc TPDe o?ooo?cooecsoom smcsoocsﬁsé slgord=0¢
Worker accommodations, shophouses, Super Hoteéb qc g&ﬁmmog mSommedlss (Jo)cq?qor]wé“
o ]

ATM from local banks and convenience store are c

March 2019. Another 1.1 hectare wese dfor development

L

QO
of worker accommodation and shophoussf 31 March aé

N

. . . . . oo?c\)ogsjorgc ngorleoope@l_cm%saogé: 803’)
operational in Thilawa Garden City currently. Upcom|ngg$,c5(3(\]%‘r)I pes3Eafiep Super Hotel[eScp o,mcwp o

Oo-

projects such as development of shopping mall, futsal court&TM oooep s Convenience Stomemoc$ sqp: @8 20050

branch of local bank, food court for Café, Japariesds, JL°§T’ c"é"“c’c"Jm‘l"%’@“ cq. mm“memem“@’

[o4 C
Thai foods, and Local & Chinese foods will increase the‘ § oeqo O‘?c GQ:‘J rocbabon wmwemwmc P @8

C‘DQGJ’JI em’msom OJO§€DO’) Herlrell ooqoosraoo 02| GL)C

N o
N

003 T
Q2 Qo

fOOt trafflc 3028 9’30’3?? B?O’Js@m 9'3009']'.) GGPC qeas?cm§ GJ'D 0']00
c c c ,0c¢ ¢ c ¢ Ao c
egsaogm Ei&?oisoep. OOOOCO’J.CD&BOCDR QJ’)oB’).C\J’JQE
Bo%@:l :le)C\)C;] cgso’)%s’)m&' 8‘(]3'9 'C\)E)CC° Gmg C7S9 2
2Rk B0 DiGIREEOCH: gln.ﬂ'
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Thitawa Garden City . & cLare . RErS |

Wiajors banks 1.4 1. L

Super Hotol o6 ]
Workers Accomodation | 0. o
| ‘\.:-l|:"||-:- 13,4 ] 1.k
Irr sk I'|--. i Fiilalic ﬂ'l:l:-u | 108 | 207
Avvailite for Tuture devs|opiment 0.3 5 7
| Toml Development Ares | 3.0 | D
oC C °
Property 200960V IR IOk
We own 24 units of shophouses in residential and cpess3Sepsédigaieqpadéepe§ong pesadcags (Jg)
commercial area through our subsidiary TPD and 20 unit$603 03§60361 mgad3fgdean TPD ¢ orpdesoodd3fg:
. . c . C Q c [ [ [ oc _¢C [
are still available for sale and/or rental. ¢2:95:q% (R00rd) cepliqq§er03cd cpesaBE§imagod ( o)

%88 o$§dloogd

Workers accommodation ©w6002: 936 gped:
Three dormitory building with 180 rooms available for ~ Bcodleaco:digaiecasd cpdooep: ¢oiqéiesBE8EqE

rent have completed by TPD and occupancy rate at 3dgadg 9295:e0lé: (om0

March 2019 is 35%. TPD o 6200050633 Joop 2881 ecdw (po) qodegel
C c C [og o C ocC C. o C o,
ch;m&] %9§:(}0:q@:ﬁﬁ§:m-me Gr.)?ci?. m.@g (?3 A)
o '] C
§10 Q)ell
Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development Limited [§§02-00§ Beval vearecad80r05 (MITD)03 Boodl

(“MJTD”) was established to undertake th¢ 2081001664059 0BG DPSEINDMEIE MR
development, marketing, leasing and operation of Indugt El
Area in Thilawa SEZ. Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdin@$ A

Public Limited is the largest shareholder of the MJTD and o

hold 41% of MJTD’s paid up shares capital. Sox mepiad&3&a

\. J \\ J

Industrial Area

Industrial parks under MJTD represent our largest  [g§eo-0o§Bcodl Sveane¢ c880o0> (MITD) o sacomt

C [ C C C

manufactured capital and Zone A has total salable area 36fopSee5 ca0oEgoda05§p Baocleman:digaieqiasd

hectares, of which 99% had leased out to 84 Compani&ﬁﬁemgcg%:e@%emogeq:mgpooé oglggo%s'aoodc) M[Densad:
Ju L L o L

P

Zone B phase 1 has salable area 83 hectares and 77% bagh ofegoql:im[gd[goclopdi Bcoclsmagdigaeqia

Oon -on

leased out to 15 companies. Zone B phase 2 has salaf@es)oyé co:q8:8Ee000 sfge§aneesdlé: (poo) wabornag
area 60 hectares and 3% had leased out. Zone B phase 3(@h qp8s§:90 cead (0g) 23 co:q&:3EH{gdclaopdn o§ (B

Ju

~

39 hectares of salable area and development works aresso¢ (o)og 18€ca elge§onedlé: (pp) 105 §0pd
()

on

service. B¢ (p) epEes:ad earqerconilgdcloopdi soodc0ad)
0§ (B) 90¢ (p)a c2:q&:§ean (pp) wodoM:ROS

U)éG&)’)CTS@[@CGGFQ?SC%:QP:C% Gaoof:g_ée‘?@:@ogo']oaén
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As of 31 March 2019, Thilawa Special Economic Zone 6§$>:95:369§g5 0fegepi=(gé oddeasmapé: a6068s
still have 1,778 hectares of land available for futuresqeo:eog ?8 B

[«
.. . . C ° C o C [+ C C'] C
development, and remaining land is about 3 times of o ? Qe$e02 006899810-99@]0090?00 @00 200l

completed development over past 6 years. JOOR 2861 60500 (po) qodegeedd Beodlercm:digrcgias
C C [+ C [o4 C c _C o
Announcement of Toyota Motor Corporation in May =06: dadeocbmeemopiend mpbemddaf slgedon

an

2019 to establish a factory assembling Toyota Hilux undg2edI: (0,020) B0 oysdes: moyderogioaiiyé (E)

C

Semi Knocked-Down (SKD) system in Thilawa SEZ raise®e%R8: sudeantiean cfgedund (p)eosg §dlodgdy
(o4 [+ [o .
the reputation of our industrial park to another level. We = JOO€ 2§ S00RRCRC Toyota MotorCorpaation

. ° . cre
are optimistic that growing demands for land in our industriaf Toyota Hilux &3 Semi Knocked-Down (SKDp#sfg¢

[o4 [+ C o4 C C o [od
park from supporting industries of Toyota Motor @9PCRP RO 005§o2d9a3 SBcodlmopidigoieqrasl

i i i i C [og C Eic C C [
Corporation is imminent. opdeccagarend os(gpefpgeinp o8003
o c [og c o [og [ [og [og o _C [ [

There are 105 tenants from 19 countries, tota?’°°°8°“l?§°ﬁ Qe E:a} cwb0égéoteniadodfgéiod

C

investment USD 1.6 billion in Zone A and Zone B of 482!
Qo Q c o4 H

industrial area. Following charts show their country of origin, Beodleacpidrgoreepagopé Toyota Motor Corporatior

c C c _C

operational status and composition of industry as of 3preparqliifyoiaticle GEisdmddodeon ecdgaoded:

March 2019. o wémé ofezp8eacp8: cooeqpad of:fi{go4le3cBepder

Operation status of tenants in
Industrial Parks oo

C .S, C C C '] C oc _¢, 2
C\EOC§.GSO’JC§O’)G§$ G)G@S?G§§9 o OCﬁGp?C&§.0J’J.O? GO’)@

ooo:@é:@o%o']::oén

Classification of tenants by Global Industry
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Thilawa SEZ Hectare Acre Intellectual capital

Industrial Area Zone A 361 893 Intellectual capital is an intangible asset that we use to
Industrial Area Zone B Phase 1 101 250 create value for all stakeholder, develop new business,
Industrial Area Zone 8 Phase 2 77 190 improve existing business or provides competitive advantage.
O TP T 49 171 Our intellectual capital comprises organizational knowledge,
_ _ information system, procedures, corporate brand and
Residential & Commercial Area 34 84 ] _ _
reputation retained even when key employee left the entity.
Availble for future development 1,778 4,393
Like all intangible assets, intellectual capital is subjective
Total Development Area 2,400 5,931

to measure and difficult to quantify. So, we choose to use
narrative explanation of our effort to improve and preserve

Water purification plant and sewage treatment plant _ _ o
the intellectual capital at organizational level.

MJTD owns water purification plant with tloapacity _ _ _
Since prior tocommencement of Thilawa SEZ, we have

of 6,000 niper day and sewage treatment plant with th%onducted numerous assessments and planning of project

capacity of 4,800 fiper day. In addition, MJTD is under area covering land use and reclamation, road and drainage
constructing a water receiving facility with the capacity ofSystem, water supply, power supply, telecommunication,
Igreening, flood control, contamination control, population
o and socio-demographic study, and biodiversity. Knowledge
demand. These are another source of our recurring inCOMg,q information generated from these studies and planning

works are shared, disseminated and discussed among all

Factory and office space level of management.

We also have twelve factories, and office spaces Ve are closely working with TSMC and JICA in our
engagement with both communities affected by and

available for rent under MJTD, where 100% OCClJpamc)éurrounding Thilawa SEZ. Operation and management of
rate for factories and 82% for office spaces. Another fdustrial park at Thilawa SEZ is currently led by dispatched
factories are under construction. These will form part ogxpert from our partner organization such as Sumitomo
Corporation, Marubeni Corporation, Mitsubishi Corporation,

Mizuho Bank as well as from MTSH.

3,000 niper day to accommodate for increasing wate

our recurring income base.

cq 8¢ cqBio§odocsy We aim to transfer knowledge, skill and expertise of

X dispatched employee to local staff and retain within the
organization. System, standardized procedure and work
instruction are imperative to realizing our aim. We focus
on enhancing our system and standard operating procedure
to facilitate transfer, retain and improve the operational
n0: cqmadle ®588mEa0epicirs mbes kr?owled.ge. We have launched automated billing system
poSors (p,000) oS c0Ecan qum°8m$og MITD o ywth-onllne customer pqrtgl f.o.r our tengnts to dgwnlogd
' ; ) . . invoice from us using their individual log in credential. This
is an important achievement in the development of our
intellectual capital during this year.
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e e One of the intellectual assets we have cultivated is
ODQEC QPP demographic information of our tenants.We believe our tacit
s'acoo:oo:§§ samogm:o:gn:eq:cng)c%:qjczsaogag sraélooé knowledge of our tenants will give competitive edge in
993§=Ei[§36]$61é303§ MJITD o wggJ (oJ) €J§=§ ngg$,eJogo<§ development of future industrial parks.
9’3%1& cq05§1sp o(‘ygg:]enggg;ggc\?go% ?”“1‘5‘%85‘ <l g:]gg$g?ggqggg We also maintain the database of all enquires, complaints
¢ and request from tenants and potential tenants. In addition
to taking quick action to resolve the issue, these data are
analyzed and for improvement and prevention of
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recurrence. Our accumulated knowledge of needs and ogé:oy€oprgepsel saBopyl e0s0ps¢ 0gdionE
concerns of our tenants become part of valuable intellectuabp:o3 88c30§m&iep: wEwalqdeoqsst =2 s20p5:038
I L [ iLO ° L1 s O° (o}

capital.

As a public company listed in Yangon Stock Exchangeepg @,ngqsemgg@éggqgmogcﬁ ﬁ’é“’@"ﬂ”' éﬁ,w §
we are always dedicated to good corporate governanc&,gcg,@%@ggqagepmé @mgogwcq,@w']mé“ C,glggm.
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transparency and public disclosure. Our dedication Wa% 5 cobe§roopbocses cdeadaogd saBoprep:idd dodddee
L L 2. L L

recognized by the Myanmar Centre for Responsiblg1$l
Business (“MCRB”), ranked as"7n Pwint Thit Sa 2019

Transparency in Myanmar Enterprise (TIME) report. W
believe this recognition is an important contribution to our o

brand and reputation.
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Human capital Ve&isn: :2qCim(gd
o

Employee play important role in our value creation — o$co&iepioopd 0315603 9@ EN0§3: 0§Br0PINGCE:

process, we entrusted the resources in them to increagg;géso d@oeq M§RBNES PMO§E PeMDOsE

L A L LJu
C

L
preserve and transform our financial, manufacturedpomosdeep 9qS:m(goep: svdesonéompdorlgggarespont
intellectual, social and relationship, and natural capital. Wessepoyea see§iongne Slofegoopdsecaypod saqpboacog:

are always committed to attract, upgrade and retain skillefgdocgé:a€eom 0§0:ep:q§8Eq§ 035503 :050860$

[

trained, talented pool of employee. We have provided variougos:cloopSi 93(géclg) 0§codiepieionéorgeeaaad §eoéien

C

JL
[o c _C c _C o4
type of support for learning such as class room lecturesyéagzepi ogo@qwo 16Q8 sraogaoeep 5 COOC$13CEC QVOCH:IC

L
seminars, knowledge sharing session, on the job training€omgpi wEmemn0d §:9)$ 1053 gpiea:

o
off the job training and study time-off. The training receivesngadmcbe $3ic0:300p51 Ba3ea0oEgorgeiongd 38603

N
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%
by our employee will not only intend to contribute our businessgB =205 [g§cobsead[g|§Ecog§omem &3 2005
0

C c _C N

but to enrich their personal and professional developmengeoé secconcssmgeoqsst qpead mopbiogé Bies0ns

o 4 O°

and to create future business leader for society. qp: eolgiancoqs qebgady oB:coigésfgdoloogd
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Our group manpower strength at the end of FY2018-  o3§603 ogBmbepé mnasd Jooo- joop 20p¢:
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19 is 203 (FY2017-2018: 175) and it is 16% increase from$coé:dieq jo
previous financial year. 33% (FY2017-2018: 37%) of oupb ¢3¢
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workforce is female employee and 97% (FY2017-2018: 97%$5 o9 sp§5i$:9o o §p0diep:gdly@: walsdo oo
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motivation program and engagement program to retaimec:se[gd869§3¢ ogéioyCoprglapilgé cagies: o3

talented employee. Ble263: copfgEcvdemracoreq gooaapr sayoyEoodfogaies
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We have achieved over 1,400 man-hours of training»8seodeps 8odsmioncd(zesisé decsiatand e caybesy
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and 0 workplace accidents and injury for this financial yeag8sodep: eggadcsdeanédclapdi

C C cc o (-] C C ocC [
QMW SO0DC CTgI&OO’)CDQCDO’.)O’)Q CDCODGS'BQJ§8’BO:@C
L 170 L Lo 1 L °

o c O [od C C C C hY
§’)61 (o,goo)eoopo? 0§CDQ:9J’):8’BO’°)CD @ESOE!GO:Q H
[+ C C. [of 2, o [og C. cOoC
C\EOC gCS'BCTgC. GGO’)’)O’)&)ﬁ C\?.OG&]GOSl§C\De. Geoocg_m%c

\o']oaéu

ANNUAL REPORT | 45




QUALITY i ]

B BECENT WINY AHD g RS WL
HBUCATION IRy EC{wIMGE LR

Mi| &

Social and relationship capital

We believe that trust in our organization by stakeholders is social license to operate our business. Our social
and relationship capital is the trust and long-term relationship with all the stakeholders we have nurture over the vears,
We will continue to focus on building up the trust and relationship with all stakeholders. In addition to distributing the
value created which we have discussed earlier, we also engaged following activities with stakeholders to enhance the
trust and relationship. We are glad to report growing numbers of engagement program and activities in this year, and
how these activities contributed toward the achievement of UNDP Sustainable Development Goals.
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Stakeholder Engegement activities

Shareholders  «  Maintain good relationship with nine founding shareholders

*  Meeting and providing information to equity analysts from Securities
Companies for equity research report enable

= Convened fifth AGM in September 2018

= Directors attendance of The Audit Committee Master Program conducted
by Myanmar Institute of Directors (MloD)

* Director attendance of Director Certification Program conducted by
Myanmar Institute of Directors (MloD)

*  Appointment of independent invigilator for AGM voting process

= Engage through timely disclosure in YSX, Corporate websites and
Facebook page to Ensure all shareholders have equal access to information

+« Ranked 7th in PwintThit Sa 2019 Transparency in Myanmar Enterprises
Report

= Best Return on Equity Award by Yangon Stock Exchange on YSX Listed
Companies Award 2019

= Highest float stock in ¥'SX with highest % of shares available for trading

*  Publication of FY2018-19 Annual Report

sk
-

Business *  Maintain good relationship with Mitsubishi Corporation, Marubeni,
partners Sumitomo, JICA and TSMC
= Welcoming 2019 dinner with our business partners

=
L |

Supplierand  + Conduct our purchasing activities in a fair, honest and legal manner with
contractor openness and integrity
*  Award contracts on the basis of value for money, not simply lowest price
= Prompt payment and making complaints courteously
*  Ensure that all tenderers have equal access to information
= Work with local business and voluntary sector support organizations (o
promote the opportunities o work with us

Qoo g
B8E88 8
BEBE8 B

Tenants = Convene regular meeting with tenants

*  Quickly resolve all enquiries, complaints and concerns raised by tenants
within 14 days

*  Analyze and review tenants calls for prevention and improvement

= Invited industrial waste treatment operator to Thilawa SEZ

*  Retention canals and ponds for flood control in Thilawa SEZ

= Water purification plant in Thilawa SEZ

*  Review, enforce and discipline environment report of tenants

«  Operating industrial park with tenants from diverse range of countries and
industries

*  Online weather monitoring system

= Online, automated invoicing system

Community « Regularly conduct Thilawa Community Coordination Meeting
* Public consultation of project before commencement
* Thilawa Complaint Management procedure to receive, investigate and
facilitate resolution of grievance caused by Thilawa SEZ activities
+  Supporting land compensation, resettlement, Income Restoration Program,
Vulnerable Support Program, Vocational Training Program

@ 1] s R ' Ues ' 1136w 12
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Engegement activitics SDGs

Government -

Employee ’

General public -+

Electricity support to monastery in the vicinity of Thilawa SEZ n m
Contribute and lead the community relation program with our tenants, the
program covers
o Education support (Free English class. Stationery Donation “4th nﬂ nm
Back to school program™ for 2,700 students, Furniture &
computers donation to schools, Scholarship for Primary, Secondary
and University Students)

o Infrastructure support (Library, School building and Road n ﬂ m
construction, Drainage repair in villages) .
o Social welfare, Health and Environmental Support (Nutrition H Hm

program, Kahtina robe offering, Myanmar New Year Festival,
Health awareness program, Hygiene and sanitation program,
Free health check program, Drug abuse awareness program,
Clinical equipment donation, Trash collection activity, Schools
sport program)

Contribute to government with timely and correct payment of income tax, m m

commercial tax, tax withhold from supplier and employee

Participate in various programs organized by governmental agencies such m

as TSMC, SECM and DICA

Paid Kyat 755 million net commercial tax to Internal Revenue Department mm

in FY2018-19

Received visit of government delegation from General Administration m

Department to Thilawa SEZ in Sep 2018

Received visit of Union Minister U Thaung Tun for Ministry of Investment

and Foreign Economic Relations in Feb 2019

Fair compensation, training support, safe working environment, subsidy of

medical cost nﬂ Enu m
Equal employment opportunity and gender equality in hiring, training and
promaotion

Vaccination program

Team building trips and staff appreciation dinner

Continue support of anti-corruption through UN Global Compact
Participate in various seminars, workshop and events organized by YSX
and Securities Companies

Support data to researchers working for master degree thesis

Internship program for students from Technical University

Plantation of trees, shrubs and bushes, and creating green space

Blood donation activity

Responsible use of water only from reservoir, not from aquifer
Treatment of used water before discharge into creek

Regularly monitoring environment in Thilawa SEZ covering, water and
waste water quality, air quality, noise vibration, soil contamination, waste
disposal, and ground water quality

Contributing to Myanmar Economy and country GDP through attracting
FDI and Job creation in Thilawa region (105 tenants from 19 countries,
investment totaling USD 1.6 billion and over 9,000 jobs created)
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qudoongEygp: +  mpSionpdecnéeonayictioe) 98¢ combigieornmadadeqem: iB§:a88:[gE:

«  Securities ;mgofe quiunsobiodoyypianguiomnayemongsdetdoaoyad
20008z gEdanoadypd{gt:

« Jooe 9881 0050Eamcongd vgum|ols meogeymopSimcoiayfolgs:

+ Myanmar Institute of Directors ¢ oy€:wa0pd engiedeabocd mogiootondiad
3§ odonmgofyp: coodeepadfgé:

+ Myanmar Institute of Directors ¢ oy€:000p) si§oSommfgd sealaagobgrondecd
208k dfoSommgole oodaeepadge:

«  meagecgmophimcaicyé aSornyp: SeuegiguS§éizaogo’ agobeobeor 8od
ograpSoqiand of wORE:

«  opgafial soooéimgobmnoniypio? qudumngypiamind: googroooiaybideogd
opgial websiter facebookenyo5§28§ YSX website g€ mod§gfooomEiogobigf[at:

*  Joog gEoobomdalionnyé gEaobifgangraomtiadbg§glizcyed mwf q 16|
00dyoddefge:

* JooeR§b20p05 qimbecondBaidfiy cumbean mfgodfjfeugs: wypadiepad [
0§26E

»  gfopfoconzdcddfiopt apodeoden eepiondffaamn qubomuwmmaygpiad:§ge: m
$& eepErocdeanepdlghieapia:{sbfge:

« Jooe- joog mpnsdmeoye’ sducdoopd mdqfsencod[glge:

Bigrocdyp: «  Mitsubishi Corporation, Marubeni, Sumitomo, JICA 8§ TSMC o20p] 8ipieodypis
am&:ﬁammﬁaﬁeqﬁ cﬁ$x::3:5:m:u:$5|§5: m

o BuynBobecdypis§ joog $6006[fpoeneng [girob3[Ee:

ogpdiopliogapisé . puessmplonepigiongfeané qt:coéiogudogeamnspbiood:gé ouduyeamiqay nﬂmm
mboo§oSomgp: :
qpegieeo(ge
+  wbjeancybefipron: eqpgdraschiad: mpboyeefglienyoial mboyeomnegal::  E NN
Gl 038 mﬁn&:&:cé:m.ﬁ&:qﬁﬁ&mmﬂ qmén:}:ﬁuﬁﬁ-&t
*  [@§mfeorcgeoeqqep: [opseisé o3Eofrgapramineoygrgscotigiat: I NI
«  0o8dlp8005a0050088 mEmgeSzaconiyp: googradeoFt: 1] 8 [10]18]
* [Ge8ogBiogbofipipé cocppufcodimccncimmfgmy.qpiod oydbods oSy [N IEN I
p8BELEQE mgfmadiypiaug:
R 17 e | 16 e R 10
SUSTAINABLE s f=Edn -~
DEVELOPMENT T
GQALS L

ANNUAL REPORT | 49



B ?#-n-

EAER N :é;:::.:::,.":
el M| G| W

b "i"- <

S:grioobooodogep: Ge0n€qodPaopd crbedieamnéomyp:

goqdipbofoqyp: o alg 3pbd meanodmBicnabiogupisd GeEmopSimeoryp: [Girob[EE: m
* grabrpqprol gebigqpn weobusligapn §:80gofqupi} of admoyt: oqffste [T
e[gqéieu:lgé:

o qfdicdincbysd [gBediEeamnmgapSupie 0fd6EEqmagod caqbiapyp:di m

ofredl fqypio] osboooy goSonbioomf[8: sofioblgé:

dScodlmag:Bignieqiabanogod ealyglobogpbidaqmg, dcbadl3fge:

eg[ofigolomnogudel opialptisd mbypiam: 05booyBEio8E:000:ge:

Beodlmog:dinieaaioé equofofocionpbesmod[gé:

¢eGioobodEopypiai aoomovcbofioelEep :Bafdorypiodadiandomn cdmbanad

meepog[gén opbiomnb:odsiaBi(g:

o §EemaBiBicpbeclimdpmondy ¢21qbi0pbolEagupigé oodqefmagt: cobekiyp:
opbesonécopbocdeolgé:

o mEcdlmalgly| epBpoyooimgrbamcociypio8f§Eoopdosd madig(gl:

o RESEmaglg cmengpadegeonéisoy qupiiaplosd madifyge:

comobmofbimofs +  samicyorst BfreqmonSimacipiyerden B

o opbehiyproocnédogagst cop ajeapiegaé:

*  "Boodlgbsngaiopadalygiequrpbefiod” §§xop8 [gpSpegara $84oqqpiod
cocbdodielgqlievigé:

. ofarncierypoiogeofatia} sancioqeabinodi BicomSappammon
cpdcfigpr eanndogoydiolag goomalgesad [gfropSepodfeousl :bmod
wo0fgb:5¢ cood[ofqudaiap: cppleenegpoderiadaned maonhegiodieoqpt:
vpabyprecgoyi§ offopieuglimdmeSypieanigosge:

»  Bcodlmdiofiqfl opfimodlolieoqpéian: oqibodliqfeeqfogudondieuigé: n m

o Beodld eagbiopbolean apbefiqupisémcy eamoidlapbebigpiod Bieeoné
dlo€[gé:

0  opPGEEeeodIGyp: ( Begmedbadbomntomn coygmidelgrod "eoypé: n E nm
g¢q$ " P8mefmqpoipbionidieq jqoo 0god exeqradfmgpicgidibges
or208ampliqpiol, mpffdjomsé ofeomaqpioyidlfigln selgdopns semd
& uponempéomiemplagymodvpmnaotaygpieu:sad[gs: )

o wmegémesncdnaimaecnadmdyp: (eofogpdood eogpén cobn cogpgpyp: H ﬂ ;fl_‘j
wopbieqelgéiqp: rocdgfgéas:)

o wvobofionfi oqfneqsé cpqeqmeonadmdup: (Ioumedicdemypes: 38 2] 3] n m
0p B§oocdEiencdondG [g8nr§iepsboqig ogfiwnegmaBopneu: 8
2051 0060805 eqoofqbieqmbmod 208 oyfweaiobecicufglu g0
awu’hmnﬁa’gmq uyau:mﬂméu awﬁfnmﬁ:#ﬂﬂmmﬁ%:ﬁﬁn
¢6dlE: m§oSeomnaiP cogpé: cpdimmmengyp:)

15




$eocsofin

ofoodigp:

wapipSopmodp
[Glegdeiqp:

)

SUSTAINAEBLE
DEVELOPMENT

GOALS

ANNUAL REPORT | 51

rgBsinfioSgfi ofcobiypial 0283iqfiobagghi mfogcSepbesigh ogaSicoiayts
apqpiai qaogooplegeliy §odugeuinEieg eeonmbicantefngs mgfmoyp:
o} BmpEonEgroodicené[g:

TSMCi SECM $¢ DICA ojojeommed:qaegmopbiypiy [0figpoyéiocom mdmedyp:
op€ gredi€:lodfgé:

Jooe- joog 2epn§bo€ [pdop€iamgiapididiscy. geedimpogudef myboo:
edlE: qgg oofcorog€igfae:

J0oo 956 oodonfomoonyé mecgeoymbgbeed:8igse 2Brqomalodicdyp:
aBcodlasog:Biniearalal coneepadenpomnigé:

Joog 956 coscddfcomt qf:f{g0895¢ §Ec[gbignanodogudeqofoiigs
[gebeccnégolh:dieomntiogfialoodiasogidipieqipdad coneepodecponi(gé:
coméigfqoneomncomenteggln oybiogqoofoniyp: somncdfeugéa a3y
eoncpbesigéfgboofgén goooydigmogod somaSdegauigé:

ofcobirein sxBoshoofGBus popobEEtuprosS PRyl
o0 mglaeqaeefst:

onmSesichijacasdmodyp:

woé:mg dodeantgaiodieoqs of:8odcu(gbsé ofcobiypidi caonégodqed
pcsoSagcieanmf§h gosearydeot:

UN Global Compact goodeoé seac3cdodenigododgedeqiamniofeoniolgod smew:
eoonadggeuilge:

E'[-ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁm?t-anaﬁgqﬁ securities r!'l:-:srﬂ-:.p:? E:qm&uﬂmnuﬂe@gl sanfﬁq
ea:g:sﬁ:ﬁq# maﬁ:mw:q:u:rgﬁ qmﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁ@&

Fogenombigpiancgod c§mebeonmgrdaecoodypigieodlgé:
spdwpmongyalcbe eoqpéiooieoqpiogypiencyed meepbonémdaodyp: [gipd
coifgé:

maaleﬁpEﬁnﬁGEu$03:$Equngrﬁ m&rﬁmuﬁpuﬁpﬁrﬁcﬂl@&

Baamﬂﬁ&mﬁmé

s[gedl eqoamesbonoyad:§gén s288sqamadiefg[at:

2%:g@:eqeomtiypio] [ghegpliypisacp€iog§udl [g§copbaofot(gé:
Beodlmag:Bipieqefnaptieqseqed:mapdmenyy scompmgpSareagn sgpdgs
elgaBagpyodBig gf vbugpSigfadiyl sldemncieqmepimaagiofalolEiongd
¢esobeeo:gé:

Beodldigmeqalaoyt: §Ecfiqt:§ 08 qqp: sfcant[glisé mapbmadl mpé
smcobigp: o§odicuglfeé [GFurdipicqisé §Edi f88c3ionaSenqf cbacné
mbesepy dlo€fgdeopbigts( §E¢ediE: op EE¢¢ garqbipboBEay ocug Bu qf:f:
1644 US Dollar 0.6 28cB8u34§ mcpbmoEafcB:Eq| ( pooo ) 9)

11 i';:'["é‘éj‘ﬁ .- :||:l 13 Eil.'ml!
A F

H B8 BBE H E
=1

—h
-]

&)

& Eﬂ%ﬂ&ﬁ B0 B8




[

Natural capital 00092qE:92(g0

Q):D’DOOO)O$:<‘DJ6:DEC CTgJé;SC%@% 8’30‘3“:8:8’):930308

Environment is the most valuable natural capital not onIy c ¢ . c co o c

oMo C\I)sraco moezwo?agzsraogm 8’366]:010’):?(3:JC\JDOD >

for our business, but also for society as a whole. In the eggoooogaqc'sa& §8100pSt oy§6B0pS cuead mepSich
[ 3 O°

of epidemic natural disaster, global warming and climate>o§§eag 0€mbimacsgé 03863 sa0oEgodaodepielo3né

° L

C
change, we are obliged to minimize environmental |mpa6P0361°°']9J°o' 330’-’90633-90&619090.]9-' 0’39’3@=°G§=®°ﬁ§9

o

of our activities as a responsible member of society. PBporewddgiy empiomoodiofioyiBéep wod:
C C o [og co C

i DMe (‘DQQ'):(‘D S QO29) o020 (5] 0'103 Il
As an investor of property developer, owner and TR A% Pt Eoc o
GBOJOGGOG)CDCDI G@OD‘)/S?GGO‘JCDS’BS?OC&?CCD ODGO?CD

LL L (3
manager, major source of environmental |mpactcomefrom. ex._ o ¢

69§3000302¢ qE:8:[g0sopercsgs 0z8603EN codesondeep:
electricity consumption, water consumption and Wastg§ o5 aySosdlcssarasiger cqadide Ocooc,geoge 5950
a J ° L.OJL L.OJL °§. L dL 1ed
generated from our activities. 0050§:0EBDEGP 0DeEPIdReRicd [goedl sl
. . . . [of C. o 20N OC. (g C
Power intensity ratio for FY2018-19 is 4.82 (FY2017- (Jooo- Joog) >g§de¢ gimataiguoeom §Eioopod

C C C C C

18: 2.06) and this is 134% increase from previous yea?r'm'“’an (9 ) B8F: cobrovomargd axofad (. oF) 46

§&:pclon (0pG%) c%'@qmo@&@goaéu B303[gG oo
The increase was due to increasing number of our tenar ¢ e o . .

C.Q’)e (\)OC§ C\)go ﬁOgC [PI2H %CGNQg?QG@’D?GOﬂ)

C N\
o0

. . . . . . . . L
starting their commercial operation within industrial parks 3 ¢ < ¢ e
algoonodigopcdcicodegigp: eEcopdoodamneonelpé (4o
rather than inefficiency of our operation. We expect the, S cqod:dos0rcd cass &:22[§803 cqecorbondapioqdf:
P2 CRIPRI QPP eqFqC: O M 998G

o C ° N\

power intensity ratio will continue to rise in the future assges»ocdeqa3 wodaaadiggeieqoli e[gunodigarep:ieé

L L O

-

[ C
more tenants commencing commercial operation. OuRgPeR60epie agffipgamodaocar eqoedmd (9g%)od
[

Q e o ° o o
source of water for consumption come from reservoir, an@‘?mem%m ¢ [oeaprproacgbiof gopddfat fgbcloophe
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Thilawa Special Economic Zone A and Zone B are 03|§803mé a%mo’lgaoo,g,gmgq,@
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te Governance

: stainabi!ity through governance based upon

the principles of transparency, accountability,

responsibility, independence and fairness.

. To realize the empowerment of the function and

independence of each corporate body: the general
shareholder's meeting, the Board of Directors
and the executive management.

. To realize a condition in which all corporate bodies

make their decisions and implement them on the
basis of high moral values and adherencelta

existing laws and regulations.
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GOALS

1.

To improve our Company’s performance threugh
the creation of decision-makinggpieEcesses?
cydandiimpreving

improving operational efficié
services to stakeholderst

. To improve corperateivalielbylimprovingifinancial

performanceiandiminimizinglinvestmentidecision
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“Corporate Governance Roadmap & Implementation”

As Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Co., Ltd. (MTSH) principles in the four main areas of Human Rights, Labor Rights,

is a publicly listed company, it is committed to build good gpyironmental Rights and Anti-Corruption guided by the United

corporate governance on the foundations of accountabilityystions Global Compact (UNGC), and then those principles are

faimess and transparency. To be a sustainable and responsiflg| integrated into our business strategy, culture and daily tasks

business, MTSH has made a great effort to promote the longsng gperations. In line with our aim, “to deliver a long-term and

term benefits for shareholders and have public trust by shaping,stainable benefit to all shareholders empl:oyees and

up well in our management and performance of our company.ommunity”, the Board frequently reviews and updates the

Accordingly, the board of directors and key management S&fjated guidelines in order to achieve strong corporate governance

standard of operating procedure (SOP) and the norms of integrity ihe Company.

and ethical behavior, which will be applied in the respective

tasks of employees and officers. In addition, the Board ofgoyernance Scorecard for this year is 60% (FY2017-18 : 57%). « .
Directors has full responsibility to serve as a prudent fiduciaryye have benchmarked our score against average score of listed
for shareholders through the best practice in good corporatgsmpanies, private and public companies and ASEAN average
governance. In Annual General meeting, the shareholders elegajlaple from an assessment jointly published by International L7

and designate the Board members year on year with the aim @fanance Corporation, Securities and Exchange Commissiorof

Our self-assessed corporate score using ASEAN Corporate ,

overseeing their interest in the long-term success of the bUSi”esrviyanmar (SECM), Directorate of Investment and Company

Afterward, the Board serves as the ultimate decision-makingygministration (DICA) and Yangon Stock Exchange (YSX). Even

body of the Company, with the exception of the matters that i%hough our score fare better than Myanmar average, we

concerned with Shareholders’ decision. The Board chooses thc‘?cknowledge there are potentials to improve our corporate

most suitable members of senior management who will Operatﬁ’overnance practices to catch up with ASEAN avérage.-

and implement business plans according to the Board of

Directors’ guidelines.
The Board of Directors has established Corporate

Governance Guidelines which provide a framework for the

effective governance of the Company. The guidelines addr
matters such as the Board’s mission, Director’s responsibilit

and qualifications, Board Committee structure, Managil

As one more significant step towards a sustainable &
responsible business, MTSH has participated in the Unii

Nations Global Compact and has become one of the meml

Director performance evaluation and management success I

since June, 2015. Since then, MTSH has complied with

Benchmarking MTSH Corporate Governance Score

T
s
I :I‘.

Liinnel terriies Privets corpesie Pulihs cormasion  Myasmar A1man Araings
Aymrage
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Board Committees
Interim Management Committee

Chairman - U Tin Htut Oo (Independent Director) <erle - BronCapgB (qgBvdeon sl§adom)
Members - Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet Gmgeoge'a&.oéeo: - o']ceocrges']ogmoesraoéogq%:a)og
(Independent Director),
U Aung Nyunt (Independent Director),
U Aung Soe Tha, Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing,
U Tun Tun, U Tun Lwin
Pursuant to the instructions given by MTSH Board,
Interim Management Committee was founded on

(o]

((\)03(\)8603’3 8']8]630)9)

o L

3 [ c C C ’]O C
e:es'aocg‘% (C\O)CDC\)OGOD’JS GI].(DCO'J)I

[ co ’] C C cC ocC
e!GGB’DC?:OJDI (=3} moooemoooaﬁm

e, C. C. e, C. C
Bropficpdu Broghicgs

Interim Management Committed MTSH & s26q)6¢!
17.10.2017. U Tin Htut Oo has been acting as the Chairmagléa$5ecgog 720§ 56508 059§ 920305 MTSH ;3523 &8
°OdL I° L o L O°

of the Committee which consists of seven Committeem,)o$30:9‘]0,3%61 00-00- 000 €508 00383 053015
members. The Committee appointed a CommittegnSocBmE ¢3¢ 0&s 59,0']°|§, o g,@.g 8:nénéSio

3 g.oc¢%0p0lg: RS e T
member, U Aung Soe Tha, to assume the role of MTSH’%’)’JO%Q&GGOOSgogco']crgé’]o']oaéu mg‘ﬁ$@éemoégcﬁ%éeé
managing director until a full-time CEO is appointed for sa¢es00é 22qp§ 668 02§ 28020 MTSH &
MTSH. The committee meetings were held for (13) timessp0gj6eslaedoom0§ad 9308 Biee20E8io00920: cordecde
and (110) points of meeting resolutions were made. O@r0§c0:36loogdi emSedmes[gé meopdisco: (0p) (36
2" January 2019, the Board appointed U Kyaw Zaw Waisméa“S@@‘ 9?=[§°5°J<7360']& (°°°) °J‘73 9J?°g°°°°é@l

as MTSH CEO and he has been transferred to the IMC’§9°°58‘53;8§°’]°°8°" J2-JooE Gﬁ’-‘%g BOD 92¢ ¢ 95926
responsibilities. ooé CEO §:chgecoco o] em%eo%cﬁmo$qo:o% C};DGEO&

C N '] C
€0:309 O (D&)'II

Remuneration Committee mae@:ecem%eog

Chairman - U Tin Htut Oo (Independent Director) aYerte - BronCaggds (agodawdeannsl§odon)

o
Members - Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet (Independent
Director), Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing
The Remuneration Committee supports the Board of

[ o4 @ _C ’] f] C [ C
G(T)‘DGO)OCG'P: -0 GO’DO;)GS (DO)’DGS'D‘DCC%)§:OD(D
[of [o4 ']O [+ f] [+ [og c oc
(C\gd)C\)OGOD’)S GL]CDCDO)I (~32] CDO)O@CD:DOCRC
f]O C Y [ C o o4 C
S]OOO’)')UBQ OCQJ’)‘&C UBGOOO’)JGQ)’J UBQGSO’JCQJ’J'S'BO’)O’)
U)SG@.GCSOCST)GO']SG{) | (D(D§’)GSO’JCS](7)S]§G{) &C 00:6@006]@
MTSH’s compensation strategy, guidelines and performance
m@msﬁmm ooooeoosﬁ&c s'aaﬁ&coaeEi 103031000 ¢)
criteria as well as preparing the proposals to the General, e
OCDEQJ’).O? GaGQgGGgS?O@.S’BGO.QJ0.0gC ‘336?@[?061§

Meeting regarding the compensation of the members o]:moog msc@wgsm%w%wé squ(ﬁmmgop% m@@{@é@

Directors in establishing and periodically reviewing

the Board of Directors and of Key Management personnelé ¢
The Remuneration Committee consists of the Chairman

(an Independent Director of the Board) and a minimum of c S cocSe

9'3%0 OC(J)e 0’]6198 9'396@ GCG(‘D’)QCD e J

2 other members. The Remuneration Committee currently N ( )8 @C 3 oé ot o'loogu

G5 laogSi

GCﬂDQCD (0] 9'3@ C\)O’SC\)OGCD’JSF] (DU)’JCDOSG 89’3
E&S S % 2§ 2%

(®n

o3
on

consists of 3 members.

(5] GPS’B&S’)B’J 9(7)(3 O’)JC(DGJ’J Hl oeosléep'm' GO’)’J(S'0$

4
o

The success of MTSH is dependent on its ability to ¢
goopy sopdontgdepieots) qosw9§momo :[gé:efo30¢
attract, retain and incentivize the right talented employees.
emcﬁlesmc CG(‘? ?CQ’JS'ZD H={opsple] GOOr]QDEII O§COQ GHO C%I

O
MTSH employee remuneration comprises of fixed and S coS:
LO230%: QCQJ’J (021 b] Ocwd07 QCS?BC 0308 SJC OG%

variable components, with the variable components dlrectly S "

L L

Slé é 0?63(?%6‘?\ 8.89.661.8208’99%’3.8’360 S'DG(D’)C
correlated with Key Performance Indicators aligned with® ¢ coe ToonoS 08 mCRE, . s _0C ¢
OZ)&)' LO’J&L LGJ’J.GO ﬁm&?&j %(EQ].B(}BC.QJ’J. 90’3.&;_061{;

the Company’s Business Plan. o 9
OOeODO.ﬂO :Dgll
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. . . [od c _o [og (=
Nomination Committee QO$E$ PSS SO0
Chairman - Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet eRS - 6810502069228 0§:005 (cgdBarbeoos SIddBom)
(Independent Director) emoeogogep: - ézoo{:ogéé: (03030)59000 s1§cbono)
Members - U Tin Htut Oo (Independent Director), RiQieQC
[og c _Oo [ @ O C ° N C [~} [og
U Tun Lwin  Rebesepoiqieqemdecial mppbidhing.o ()36
The Nomination Committee consists of the Chairmar@.ﬁ@“m‘@" Cem’wo’c"cﬂ ‘32599@0 CC\gm?SGO”S'ISJ‘?m?
(an Independent Director of the Board) and a minimum oP°c°8=c‘f 0310‘?0.26990903‘”00’3‘0']3)82 91‘3‘?“’2”8.?%”:
2 other members. The Nomination Committee currently®$20§PR¢ ‘?‘3“"’%"”"Jll°’°‘5[§°m‘1@9§‘9m"J”“’? ewd
ConSiStS of 3 members_ GSD’)&S]%S’BG‘;CD 818](730)’389%0.069'1’)3830’)63 S’BQ% C!g

N [ [
the Board in ensuring that it maintains the appropriat@®g*c9r§s S YV2R0DR ROCHIOPOT 9GS

balance of skills, knowledge and diversity to support th&@% 930"88"’:1?‘@805[‘;" 00, 9569995 qqesFe500553
Company’sstrategic objectives, and that a clear and transpare@®g2} 02010l
appointmenprocess for directors is in place. The principale‘m““"’% 20MO05QQ-

o
C C [ N s O o [of
1 1 i 1 i Q0 MYARIMN|CYE&C MQINREGIDD3260D32 [2les](('Ted GO']CSO
The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to asside3 DORL BOICRES OCEPC NGRS A &lﬂ# 3 <

L . o ¢ ~ (Y N Qe C [
responsibilitie®f the Committee are to: () 9'131‘”””"‘32"% ZYpeed 8.0 'C‘B‘?r]% Gc"']c"”‘)ﬁ
O’{S?O:Q):OJOSP?II CDCD.OD:ODOST)O’.)C 810002320
L L L L ] L [o4
. . e o N _C o C C ce (o4
(A) Review the size, structure and composition of the %C:gﬁ i:’g.of%‘ﬁ Ww@moeolfgu?gzl °°°£2='°ﬂc=
Board_, mclgdlng the skills, knowledge, experience (ge=<?jiglccg =ecoaocmscg,ga[§a[§]gogvgooop?gagiz
and diversity of Board members, and make 2R DVOQFES P00 eflsL]moaosago.ag »eged
recommendations accordingly; (3) s1§cB09g0E[gdes Bobpd sqpdsrcay
(B) Identify and nominate candidates for appointment 005005305 episE DD 09806 sr0pderqt:
to the Board, based on merit and against objective o—)ém&sﬁ,"
. . o

criteria; (0) ©298:06150:4:866[382§308E opSin&icdadgoe
. . L J L °QJL 1 ° L JL
(C) Make recommendations to the membership of the cmSedd mssfecemSecs cofeseposades:
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees conSecSoSepic o?mSaSé G(;fgecgeo;w;,&g

in consultation with the chairmen of those committees; ) sraLeS@mf:;oé-q%u i :
and (o) sr0ecSanglapimafeacyc qecdbeoncangpiged
(D) Develop and periodically review, any objectives le *r (qc S . qé A :E° e
QJO’)QJ’):S’J’D. GBG(TJ’)CS’QODQGGY) Gaoocam oC

established for the implementation of diversity on
the Board and monitor progress toward the
achievements of those objectives.

. . . . C. [o e..'OC Qo CN [o . N [o4 o
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC) o2 0-00'9?-5&-%"3@099%%&%&90@-‘”9@‘” Q60060

Chairman - U Aung Nyunt (Independent Director) RS - 5393”88% (cgodeode sl§os0m)
Members - Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet Gm89°%°g‘ﬂ°‘ - o’]seooges’]cﬁmcmgog%oaog
c < o c e C o
(Independent Director), U Min Oo (cgodeodean slgosom) precip:
C

The Audit, Risk and Complicance Committee consists c°’° oé“’c“c" S?‘ﬁ;ggésggéaﬁéﬁ‘?f OEC"”:S"-S’E"S‘?"S% . .
of the Chairman (an Independent Director of the Board?m°9°z°§° 99?@:3?‘3’%".0" (p)BrclocepdlgofG: ogodawd
and a minimum of 2 other members. The ARCC Currentlfi”‘;]%"”” »ogie ©

C

C Cc o
consists of 3 members. At least one member has to ha@?" DR OOYR

C o4 cC oC g ° C
recent and relevant financial expertise; the others must B’8°“i]°°_8“ DA DXL CDRRO
familiar with the issues of accounting and audit. In*¥&RIPOE: CP2E@RE O
discharging its responsibilities, it has unrestricted access & ¢ 64> 8- ffog’?@lcélwq? ¢, .o ¢
to the Company’s management, books and records. The . g o a?:%:siccgogz‘?‘%???c PRIPOIRPER
ARCC supports the Board of Directors in its supervisionecmemwe o089 ngcﬁoemoe’“"%qm?? o9

Q23 9030)8‘ QO’S GJ’J'CD 039380)03%06309 S Boc)o']oo c"
of financial controls through a direct link to Win Thin & i@ : 7P L - ¢ e
32

o

) . ) 50mq§:®59 o2 8:086&):@8:0‘% Gsooégmspogé 8’]830’30’)’3
Associates (external auditors) and the internal aud 31 SombaSonepial mapSionefiodcef 0vgfiod
department. °c ot v]c“' ¢ ¢ %¢cpe Nooas c, . C c .9

. . i GO’J’)QO’J? (IE:GO C:GSO’)Cg(DQ@@OO ODEII ch:OOGCD’DGO')
The ARCC regularly reports.to the Board on its 1.‘|n.o.llngsgae @5 mq&:o%eao:cog.glqoge,]'):?é 638 aJchecoT Q'E’Q"c’
and proposes appropriate actions. The responsibility fo&a@@[@,jdsqm
approving the Annual and Semi-Annual Financial
Statements remains with the Board of Directors.

[~74

o C C C o _C
(02] oeaome@oa s']qmoaosra
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o C (] C C C C
ﬂo']ooen O.E.QTJUgC sog'r}oeq:ﬂc:oae:l ?OO
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Board of Directors' Interest in Share

As of (17.8.2018 and 12.7.2019), none of our Directors hold Shares in our Company except of as set out below:

Holdings Registered in name Holdings in which Director is
of Director as at deemed to have an interest as at

17.8.2018 12.7.2019 17.8.2018 12.7.2019

U Win Aung 256,340 256,340 2,029,046 2,029,046

U Theim Wai = ; 643,503 643,503

U Khin Maung Aye - - 1,860,000 1,900,000

Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet % = . %

U Tin Htut Oo - - = -

U Aung Nyunt - - - -

U Thein Han - - 1,797,000 1,797,000

U Tun Lwin 523,850 523,850 1,921,[]15 1,921,010

U Aung Soe Tha - - 1,829,000 1,639,840

U Tin Maung Hlaing - - 1,948,640 1,948,640

Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing - - 1,684,110 1,409,994

U Myint Zaw 11,210 11,210 - -

* Rectification of previous data(1,971,000).

As of (17.8.2018 and 12.7.2019), none of our Executive Officers hold Shares in our Company except of

as set out below:
Holdings Registered in name Holdings in which Executive Officer is

of Executive Officer as at deemed to have an interest as at

17.8.2018 12.7.2019 17.8.2018 12.7.2019

U Kyaw Zaw Wai - - - -

U Thurane Aung 453,540 493,540 143,150 143,150

U Myo Myint Aung - - - -
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Board of Directors, Executive Directors, Senior Management and Compliance Officer

Remuneration

Kyat in Million
In capacity as In capacity as Total
BOARD OF DIRECTORS management Honorarium Director 2018-19 remuneration in
Salary Proposed Bonus all capacity
1 U Win Aung Chairman - MTSH, MITD & TPD 14.99 14.99
2 U Khin Maung Aye Vice Chairman - MTSH & TPD . 13.49 13.49
3 U Theim Wai Vice Chairman - MTSH & TPD - 13.49 13.49
4 Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet  Independent Director - MTSH - 24.00 11.99 35.99
5 U Tin Hiut Qo Independent Director - MTSH - 24,00 1199 3599
B L Aung Nyunt Independent Director - MTSH . 24.00 11.99 35.99
7 U Theln Han Director - MTSH & TPD - 1199 11.99
B U Tun Lwin Director - MTSH & TPD - 1199 11.99
9 U Aung Soe Tha Director - MTSH & TPD = 11.99 11.99
10 Dr, Nyan Thit Hlalng Director - MTSH , MITD & TPD 11,99 11.99
11 U Tin Maung Hlaing Director - MTSH , MITD & TPD . 1199 11.99
12 U Nyl Khin Director - MTSH & TPD (Apr 2018 - Sep 2018) . 6.02 6.02
13 U Myint Zaw Director - MTSH , MITD & TPD (Oct 2018 - Mar 2013) G602 6.02
SUBTOTAL 72.00 149.93 22193
Executive Directors for Management Role Salary Honorarium Bonus Total

1 U Aung Soe Tha MD-MTSH [Apr 2018 - Dec 2018) 6.40
2 66.40

2 Dr Nyan Thit Hlaing MD - TPD (Oct 2018 - Mar 2019) 34.61
: 3451

3 U Myint Zaw Sales & Marketing Director - MTSH & TPD, GM & 66.96 11.40
Admin & HR Officer of NUTD ! i 78.36
SUBTOTAL 167.97 11.40 17937
Senior Management
1 U Kyaw faw Wai CEOQ - MTSH & TPD {Jan 2019 - March 2019) 79,44 75.44
2 U Thurane Aung WP- MITD, Project Director - MTSH & TPD 74.99 12.77 B7.76
3 U Myo Myint Aung Head of Finance - MTSH, CFO - MITD 108.27 11.40 119.67
4 Mr. Law Teck Wee CO0 - MTSH, CEO - TPD (Apr 2018 - Sep 2018) 13353 28.08 161.61
SUBTOTAL 396.24 52.25 A448.48
Compliance Officer
1 U 'wWin Thinn Compliance Officer 12.00 12.00
SUBTOTAL 12.00 12.00
GRAND TOTAL 576.20 72.00 213.58 861.79
Legend:

MD-hManaging Director, CEO-Chiaf Executive Officer, VP-Vice President, NED-Non-Executive Director, ED-Executive Director, COD-Chief Operating Officer,
CFO-Chief Financial Officer, GM-General Managet




Board Meetings

Our Board and Board Committees have held the meetings to assess and evaluate Company’s business
performance, key activities and strategic policies. The meetings held by company from 1% April 2018
‘to 31" March 2019 are as follows:

MTSH BOD Audit, Ril::::d Nomination P ation
Mesting ﬂnmmlﬂm Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meeting

KriomzieimedkncomEuynccs

SiSorsasirotfi ol cgbofrosmnbgbaobapiam Bobopanbafyl cumagomepragcSiSafasoge jooo-
Joog >qgreessdogt -

SScmeigoagSisaons (o0) [B5: oorecd (5) oPogS orefod sinbialptt opbiorbicdobppyaoocty
mopdimco: ( ) [38 cpebesepus efeqrenduody mophianco: (2) [38s€ svecloegembucde maophimaco: () [056
8 0362088332005

Aucit, F.mk = Nomination | Remuneration Special tating
Board Compliance ; & Annual
Birector Meeting Committee Comnitiee Cummi'ttee General Meeting
Meeting Meeting Meeting
U Win Aung 10 1
U Theim Wai 7 1
U Khin Maung Aye B - T
Prof. Dr. Aung Tun Thet 6 2 # 1
U Tin Htut Oo 8 1 2 1
L Aung Nyunt 9 2 1
U Thein Han 7 1
U Tun Lwin 10 - 1
U Aung Soe Tha 8 1
Dr. Nyan Thit Hlaing 10 2 1
U Tin Maung Hlaing 9 1
U Nyi Khin (member until 6 1
29 Sep 2018)
U Myint Zaw (member 4 1
since 29 Sep 2018)
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Holding of 5" Annual General Meeting & ogesafipepadsbocicopdsrccgecgeropxeacost
Special Meeting s'aogzsaoé:sfaeo:

o

The 3" Annual General Meeting and Special Meeting  [§§¢293c00l9205(8)s3:a05 0313620050 926018 ¢

L

On

[

were successfully held on2September 2018 at Myanmar 33059856030 009(15&%30?03‘33 OE;@9@|§°a<39@1’3Ors §°0°5C\>e
Event Park (MEP). There were 1,902 shareholder§?e0363920p5:60:5¢ 92R:520p5:9260:03  j000 256!

attending the meeting. During the meeting, ChairmarPo°¢ Jg qosegcpé Myanmar Event Parf es»éfgéen

o N C o C [ C o [of
informed the progress, financial information and future™S:036loogd1 :Bdlmopdimeoicyé qaSenagieesdlé:
[of

O' [ o4 [ 9. O. C. o
(O,GOJ)E. 0’.)0’.)661’)(7)9_[3. B%DSB.OC.GGB’JC(? 02(3(‘3’)@1

n

o

business plans to the shareholders.fii\Bnual General
co [+ C C C
Meeting, 5 Directors have contested for re-election and 2’ PUSERCYAT LN PFIOPRDARDIPIRC P
UBQ(TCJS’BC\)Og :OQJ S D 8 p:zey ooé 5 r]OD c“
Directors were re-elected, 1 Director was newly electeg0 ° 9 PFR AP gacloops
cq§0’)®9'j’3 O’)Q)e SI(DQ)’JG]CQJ’J Q'ﬁ:DG(D’D(D’J CT) aoo§
to the board, and 4 Directors continue to serve for full tenure
oo ) ) .. %00 c:fsfacso:ooc wso:omso:@ma@o’]oaen sraoo:so:@c)qcﬁ
of their directorship. The AGM also re-appointed existing e e oc .
o6 @C §G’.)§ CO? QJ‘) 8088 JOO? 8261 S'DQ)O[(;]§C\)E
3 Independent Directors to the board for another term. o e o e e oo o
GG] tx=eleopH Q)e Oe mcﬁw_oe: 8’26@90880.]8302 sraoo@@lg
As Special Meeting’s resolution, the company’s new
r]:).)EII 08(98’3@

n

constitution in compliance with the 2017 Company law was

GC‘DC"{] s']qmooo(g)é:(]) s’]gllcrgmogac:g.oé :DQ%OD 035
approved. Several resolutions were passed at the Annuglmm ea:e(m(ﬁamg oéeqoo%ooé@ﬁ%@qos’]&lcﬁm (9)§ o
o (<2 <] 4 ° Li ]

General Meeting. The highlights of the resolutions We“@qﬁméeg:

approval of the dividend payment 230 Kyats per shareég,qo']wé,, oS §aySodeon d1§oSomn (p)disantcops:

. o [

1% of 2017-18 Financial Year net profit as Board ofmwémqgmgmogqs gag%o’]&éoo%megaoé:s’aeo:ogéog

Director bonus in recognition of their contributions to the[ggeopde§e263cloogdt s80cdod sreagecgsropisrcorFopt
(J

company's success and re-appointment of Win Thin anebgade gaeo@looo 0pd ﬂugwooof)?cgjé »[godcon
)

C oc ¢ o c o c c_¢C
S2202:00C 3 O’J(O) GP?C-§§: O? &EGgG’BB@ QJ:BQGI§§9 JOOO—
20

N

J
JOoR PE§8905 olilsé sagen: [gEoengiodsnyd

Gfcopdegedqsal

qoa3cloopdu

3o

(o4
C c O ﬁ Q C
§1(D03’.)q00‘361 ZDGO)’)O’I{EOJ(D
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Dividend

A final dividend at the rate of (25%) of the par value ~ joopasd g$co (op) qodegré mEioogd sl§odom
per share or (Ks 250) for every share has been proposes ssopiisaco:g oy
as per a resolution made at the Board of Directorsbeoom$é:ch ( ) o3 3
meeting of the company held on19une 2019. The g;@cﬁcg%@g o150 -,@cf,;}o’]mé" 939830'] %@cgcggp,
proposed dividend shall be paid from the company unrestrictag% J00p2561 a3 (o J) qade9eB 098§ 20qdSangl
retained profits to the shareholders who are share holdegﬁzoéai PeBS m§mcSemaiear popSiaiongd s§odes
at record date as of 12 July 2019.
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Timely & Continuous Disclosure
We are in compliance with YSX’s Disclosure Outline o,

oY

ccCc o o [+ C.Q. Co o ﬁ ° c o c _C

§6030pgadopé qé:&ifgo8opeprel Wdfogpdedeoqpss

and Requirements which were set up to build publiqé:?:@lﬁéﬁ s¢ ooogafééooé s@:@éqcﬁqo: q?ogspcgé
o co

confidence in the faimess and soundness of the Stock Tradigighdgooocn:qgeoqs q§msoconsiodg§:el [ggos:a0>9p:
and our best efforts have been put in disclosing our compagys: s2g&:an§c30550005 c8oées:géiodeon oda00d0[god
corporate information to the public and investors for thereoogengc,ggJo,mo, oocssng@em,qu glo']wé., 61$m$
to make informed investment decisions without delay. OWY¢oye30588:sS %) SS5BBepicné s
company’s corporate information is promptly disclosed o%wogwgqqgwmc "81'5’803‘”9“%‘;3 wsp(;ewq&;é:&
) H 3y . 5 L L o L L LO 4 4
YSX s.websne and our company’s website. Our Company §§o°m8qé E— Sos &wé“ co005d) o“ (%]%8015 00038
financial statements and annual reports can be accessed ¢ c ¢ ¢ ¢
X i [eJeslab) (?O) qooeq?'e JOO@ 980l G§C\) (?O)S]O’.)G%%CD
on both websites mentioned above. We have made thet . % PSR c c
. . C?(DGGY)(I)’J:E:G(D’) 8068§QGO&8'361 o?ooeooqmqo: @0(;]&)&)'"
following statutory and voluntary disclosures at YSX from s

30" August 2018 to 30June 2019.
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Date Disclosed Matter

3lst Aug. 2008 | Annual Report (FY 2017-2018)

31st Aug. 2018 [Inviiation of Special Meeting and 5th Anmal General Meeting

2nd Oct. 2018 Resignation of Chief Operating Officer

3rd Ol 2018 Resolutions passed at the Specil Meetmg and Sth AGM

3rd Oct. 2018 |Motice of Dividend Payment Date

Ind Mov. 2018 | Amendments of AGM Resolutions

25th Dec. 2008 |Unandited consolidated Fnancial Statements for the sm-month period ended Sep 30, 2018

28th Dec. 2018 Interim Resulis — Managemenl Discussion & Anahyss

Sth Jan, 20019 Rekease of Managmg Director and Appomiment ol Chiel’ Executive OlTicer

20th Jun, 20019 |Notice of Proposed Dividend for Financial Year 2008-2009, Record Date and Ex-Dividend Date

25th Jun. 20149 Motce of Fmancial Resuls for Financial Year 2008-20149

25th Jun, 2019 Management Ducussion and Analvsis
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Growth Centre

W& The Republic of the Union of Myanmar
o Ministry of Commerce i

Workshop on Implementation of

Special Economic Zones

17 Jan 2019 PARKROYAL Yangon

ANNUAL REPORT | 65



Major Beneficial Shareholders

“ il . -
As of 127 July 2019, the following are our 20 major beneficial shareholders

Certificate of incorporation!
Mo, Name aumber of certificate of Number of shares W
cifizenship
| [MYANMAR AGRIBUSINESS PUBLIC CORPORATION LIMITED,** 134/2012-2013 1,948,640 .00
2 |NEW CITY DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC CO., LTD 3053/2012-2013 1,500,000 488
3 |MYANMAR AGRICULTURAL & GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC LIMITED 2346/2012-2013 1,900,000 4.58
4 [MYANMAR EDIBLE OIL INDUSTRIAL PUBLIC CORPORATION(MEICO) LIMITED 2609/2012-2013 1,797,000 462
5  |Golden Land East Asia Development Public Limited. 115075667 1,771,546 4.535
& |MYANMAR TECHNOLOGIES AND INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED 3493/2012-2013 1,639,840 421
7 |NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY GROUP 567/1998-1959 1,404,834 inl
g [First Myanmar Investment Company Limited. 121398001 543,503 |.6%
§  |CO-OPERATIVE BANK LIMITED®** 184/1992-1993 567,806 |46
10 |NAING MOE 12/LAMATA[NIO11754 337,980 1.38
11 [TUN LWIN 12/LAMATAINIO13763 523,850 1.3%
12 JU Thurare Aung 12/KAMAY AN 050839 493,540 1.27
13 [ASTA MEGA LINK CO.LTD 1673 (2009-2010) 445,409 I.14
14 |Daw Ei Hnin Pwint 12/KAMAY AN OS0638 412,040 .06
15 [KYAW ZAW THANT,U 13fLAMATA[N)034754 277,220 071
16 |Daw Moe Mya Mya 12/KAMAY AN 45039 257,500 (.66
17 |U Win Aung 12/KAMAYA{N)DDB220 256,340 I
1% |Daw Ei Hain Khine 12/ KAMAYA{N)0S0840 236,830 061
19 |AYEYARWADY BANK LTD 397/2010-2011 222,008 057
0 |4 Zaw Min Thike 12/LAMANAIN 005039 217,200 156

== Dut of which 1,900,000 shares are being pledged to AYEYARWADY BANK LTD,
*=*pladged to Co-Operative Bank Limited,




Shareholding Statistics

We set out below our Company's Shareholder Statistics as at 12.07.2019

Range of Shares Number of sharcholders | Percentage (%0) | Number of shares | Percentage (%)
1-1.000 13,844 81.28% 4.092,683 10.51%
1,001-2,000 1,020 5.99% 1,698,746 4.36%
2,001-3.000 539 3.16% 1,450,443 3.73%
3,001-4.000 166 0.97% 591,804 1.52%
4,001-5,000 433 2.54% 2,123,507 5.45%
5.001-6,000 647 3.804 3.419.886 8.78%
6,001-7.000 76 0.45% 496,322 1.27%
7.001-8,000 44 0.26% 329.151 0.85%
®.001-9,000 29 0.17% 246,653 0.63%
9.001-10,000 27 0.16% 259 484 0.67%
10,001-100,000 171 1.00%, 4.129.640 10.61%
100,001-1,000,000 29 0.17% 7,555,603 19.41%
1,000,001 and above 7 0.04% 12,535,228 32.20%
Total 17,032 100% 38,929 150 100%

IStrat
ation ounter 15 g g5

. D5 M- g

" BN A
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Sustainability Policy cqqpdoopd0dcFes: vols
MTSH and our associate and subsidiary companies MTSH §¢ &l ooSebogadl coodesaadsmgads
have been working diligently in areas of sustainability sinced3®p> eocopbecné§geog) cqqpdopiosc[fessoaczod
C e

inceptions. Our leaders are some of the largest supporte@?-Qm@l‘O@‘Gmcngj %obé" "(%I‘g;f"’%.“"ﬁ 16500¢
of philanthropic causes and our company has led théReP:oRd :eprmad 05G:godes008eg(o3opepi(gs(d:

cc o (=] C [ [of [+ Q o [o4

industry in good governance and ethics practices for som@§6030gadwpbopd: comdiggesdoyeod 85obaGest
cC O C c oc¢C o N [of C. [o4 [o4 o

time. (T)'jCOU)O.B(D§')GO'JC(I>§.GOJ’) O.CO)‘D.G .C\EOC§.O’JO?9’3@O Gﬂ.ﬂ

C C
Our biggest opportunity lies in taking a strong position s3008 gobaayad§dloogd

in support of environmental sustainability. Recent studies ocbogioEheep eqgpdorpdorcd

C

(o4 c _Cc ¢crec C
have shown that buildings account for as much as 40% Rewrevifgtioogd oécieacaed magban: moﬁooc@ome"

C Q
the earth’s greenhouse gas emissions, which are believe
[ ocC C o OC C C
. . . SlQICIA0EO&CEIOD VWSV B00006C COOD
to contribute to climate change. As a leading real estate@ L PR ot
O.)é (T)Q’)GOTS?] sraeaooagsae:epze@oé BSGOTC\)JmﬁODéII
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services firm in Myanmar, our ability to influence how real
§6B0p5 [§§628E¢8§ Bbepefgesdesnnéadpd

estate is built, sourced, occupied, and sold, is unsurpasse@l‘ ¢ : ¥t

0’.)8 é:eeooce§oaémgc.%:oméa@gwé&é:s'aé 303(561’3

Climate change is a significant risk for Myanmar; ° ) Lot !

i i i S?GSO’JOSS’B@: O)&?G&)’J(‘DGG]:C\)E)C%:QJ’J:OB)SC\)&C)’:GO’)’J&I G§q0

extreme weather may impact our operations. We believe .

) ) . 3|C02:EEOCLPIEONCE ©

we can make a tangible impact on our environment by
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) ) . ) ogespoge ooésoogm omo§:cq508§cﬁegae[§soe§qo:o§
improving energy efficiency, reducing greenhouse gas o oc eme .
% OD’J:@:&iCQQBOOFICDeII

emissions. We will work with our tenants and business

partners to make greener environment, and contribute to . c
i ) i 83(73(7) :90:603’)99%@0361

the fight against climate change. ° c c o o
) ) ) ] GT)ODB LODE C?J&()O’JC% O'O’.)'GSTCL)OC&GSO’JCS ¢
MTSH recognizes the value of aligning with the . ¢ c c o _cpe._ ¢ orc c_c o
pEopd: wo>eepadegepdgdoopd Bgdoly géieadep:ad

international standards for sustainable and responsiblga o

business practices. MTSH is a member of the United
Nations Global Compact (UNGC) since 2015. The UNGC

was initiated in 2000 to promote global corporate ﬂsoeé Qg@éo mé“ (%]§5°%wé 615-%?- l‘c"?ai‘%l"'
responsibility with 10 guiding principles. We support the g, rgoteq: gmwéqg.&gmm 888&:m$=8@émé 003°$:(q5

Sustainable Development Goals (‘SDGs’), adopted in 2015@°°°T°°°°° 98

aplan to tackle the world’s most pressing social, economi(‘G@,)g,Qgsmm5$em$qugdgqageqmgmé, Slo&anpBog:
L o o

Ju

and environmental challenges. SDGs cover 17 topics angec RETYETY

propose appropriate targets for 2030. We are also  cqqa5oopSopfd: 0mo§Beom igoreqiarbe§ionds [§oos:

L

°
4

dedicated to complying with the United Nations UniversaleoTGo’]oSqumqg gigcmgmwﬁ oaﬁog§ o 59986

Declaration of Human Rights. coléopdiconiaopd §3:08 MTSH o comasa::os'acfcn@[

MTSH is commitments to the United Nations Global wpSs§9pd MTSH wpScoph: jooq 286¢

Compact (UNGC), the United Nations Sustainable Nations Global Compact (UNG&) gago »83:9gd

Development Goals, and strive to improve the integrationslo€3cloogst UNGC o}  jooo§dcpé o0& 0p5:3(§:
Q

principles into our culture, strategy and operations as amoé:g§ecls (0o) gbd[gé 999 s0p5:BEep 000§

2
o
&

. . . . . C o C C C cC O
ongoing commitment to being a responsible business. 92030 m=|§cesoocgm60=50']°3@" meﬁeoTCDC 0%

o
83961& 26202 COQGG]I OO')'GG] OD:TJ’DOOO’)O$'(DJéagLéqO




Our latest communication on progress report for 92905523103 BEopadefyqlicniiCond sadsropordqdely

C C oo c C C [*]
UNGC is available at thettps://www.mtshmyanmar.com/ cqqop00d¢ freqrapdeiqodep: (SDGS)o} joog 246
R¢ mopdgdclopdi og§s

n  On

_ _ ) oo%_s'ac}_s'aoé:e m»ad0l SDGs
non-financial-reporting/1092. c e o e R o oS, R

61@?§:9‘|(D9J’3:(TE m@as'aoeooomss'aozcomqjm aOWODEII
cqQRd o pd03é [Gpesiqpdosiadep: (SDGspRE sacfogné:
= Planted over 10,000 trees and 3,000 shrubs & bushes,ep ¢31E:0f (09) diloé: d>EeorSes qpesiqadep:

A few highlights of our contributions:

in Residential and Commercial areas B3] 000 9800E 26epHVEEEQS 0D §o5gudcon:d
2 JOPO 2§973 PPRRICHP RO oy S
cloopSu a&wgémeq:‘?éoogwcﬁﬁmé: United Nations

. : : o oc
» Established total 42 ha of green space in IndustriaIUmversaII Declaration of Human nghs'é'me RP

2028 godajab§cloopd
Park Zone A and Zone B p

MTSH 2p5 UNGCsé SDGsode gjecdconieans oals

)
C C. C . 2 cc o e, N N Y C
qe§>§.a|jooqo.c>? 03|§00?_ O.gO.Gq.OJGOJOODq’)J QCD’JC)J“(.D’)‘?(;

« No withdrawal from underground aquifer, all water coc§:eanégodegpiogé edlé:obsaadigaoja5§(: omo§ad
L Ju o L Ji

n
o)

. . C Qo c C C C C [of C
consumption from reservoir 0560 Bigoieqip6e§:00099(go qOo0pdgs 003G
@l:oozm:o?o‘sggozeé@ogoaén
. . . oglééag_mea%e e§oc7596:m5@ooo:eoao UNGC &
» Sewage treatment plant with daily capacity of 4,800 m boorre t . o e
Communication on Progress Reppi@gésooel s2620:805
0 , ,
treated 59% of consumed water before dlscharglngaaqagsgmogqo:(’% https:/www.mtshmyanmar.com/non-fi-
nancial-reporting/1092>g<°: o&;spo% wc%gea;mo%éo']wéu
« Implemented online weather monitoring system for

. C C o O0CI\ e S C [ ¢cc o (3
Thilawa SEZ cqqespbor§Eeqiaé ocdalg azfdaimgade
65028 god3 0P

« Committed equal employment opportunity, gender
[} 03(\)0’]%%283()03661:(:$§1 C\IEG§S%(S$TJ§§ 8:00336]:3&:)8&1’3

equallty o C C c C C C C
eqooos'aorgc:ogc Q)OOCG(.;]CS (O0,000) GCDJ’JI S'BOC(L)
']C o o o CO C O N '] C
colc: (?,000) 0?.(72 OI.SGGY.)CGL)CDOJ[:QO Q’)ell

» Giving back to the communities (e.g. support local

schools, blood donations) 288:eqpé e5epogodém(gd oocdlé: (g )
c o < cCOoC~N ’] c
OOV 6¥I630ICHCIOIRII
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Risk Management $0:§:8Ca[3069§30

Effective risk management is a key foundation of =~ Beepode§ea 5:4:886g (G 0rE859§3eq:00p5 386

delivering our strategy and integral to the achievement a1 s20qcbangEaps qE:&:{go§apepisacyod m§diesdesnnt

C

our objective of creating value for stakeholders. We haveo:[gé: qpdgodacdep: [Gie[goodesmigéeoqs comgonsé

established risk management framework comprising riskeoy c>daxniopdecléiopiesdeanieepd saeqiolea s26fgd

governance, risk assessment, risk response and monitorgpgagécodsfgdaopdi crgadsxg8Calgepiod 8e§3el eapan
[og C Q C

and reporting. Q?:ODOQI [§$c\> o?@§e| cmc@eemm’ae&c s'aoqcaooc[ge

o ’] [N [ o cc o (-] C
o0 OCQ')E 099§96q QGCD’)CCDOQO’) ('78]&00)(7)9(‘8)0)0
[ °0 LL L Lo (]

N\
Gq.agGG’DGSO')CCD’J.Or]:DeII

MTSH Risk Management Framework

Risk Risk Risk Response Monitoring &
Governance Assessment Reporting
Risk Poli Risk L Reportin
seEA Identification Control SPOIHIE
Risk Strategy Ri luc Residual Risk ot
isk Analysis : Review
MY Assessment
Risk Appetite Risk Residual Risk
Measurement Treatment
Guideline,
Methodology.
Tool
In our risk governance structure, the Board (as o3§503¢l sx&8Ec[g8oorb900el § opSionpdea0nabdane
assisted by the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee) is?1§0500928,¢ opeadeloaciipeond siipdlelg 869530900305
responsible for overall risk management of the compan;‘i”°°§@1[§ | 00qS:061 3:4:8Ce[gBoa5308¢ 0pbinsic305400
o C N O C N C [ [o4 [o4
The Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee takes responsmll|ty‘5°°"eooe "']‘J‘”"""”%’ RO 529 0pIRRC RO OQ
ocC o C N o O. C C o [*]
for overseeing the effectiveness of risk management ana7°°'1° 4¢ o1 §ci@:fea§ggq0-c% PORDPEPOPIR
internal control systems on behalf of the Board, and seniot” — |§ ' g:@ m§:°igf°9‘]l°°°°‘1° g g?:ﬂ:i:ce@ feaigﬁ
0?0(7) U)’JO§(D9’3€(TJ’JC%(I)EGOO Gsoocgmo']oo&)'n

management is tasks with implementing the system. e M o. cox
SI]S]CDCD’JSB(DCﬁ S'Bdm G)GGTJO’)QS}GOD’J S? JSJ:?CGE 099§.QQ
We adopted the three lines of defense system to allow s g ¢
C§ OBQJ’D H= CD’.)('DQ)GS] 0§OS’30’.)0’) Qo2
the Board effective oversights of risk management process Gmocmooeem Gmcgmqmqor]we"

In first line of defense, day-to-day management of risk momo:eqmﬁ 00o0S: oemc§@c G§°8°9°$59&5
°OdL 1 °

is embedded within operational management. Head QfoSooc5eoon adiéy 88cGoopS wbc§i8oeambgadanpioacyé:
o

L AU L

business units and departments ensure daily operatlczﬂbcg.§mmoge@ ep 8(39661(\)0C§ saaocg_me§wé el
compliance with established policies, SOPs, guideline anda@wm'}ep:? doscobes: Geoocoooep m meme sooo@[gl

LJ L

regulation.




Board of Directors

Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee

=
=
=
o
]
(=N
5
-

Business Unit
Head

3™ line of defence
Internal Audit

1% line of defence 2 line of defence
Internal Controls Risk Management

c _C C C

Risk management functions implement the establishegoieao ¢olsep: wSc§ies0oEgadodéap §pS:056ep
. . C [og C C C [ Q Qo C C C
risk management framework as second line of defense, Bye:$3J0>q: 0pOODG:EIECTR GV IYIFIVM$IEICYOD
. . . . . . C C C
assisting business functions in risk management proce%‘,@@o‘ﬂme"
reviewing risk management framework for improvement, 2
1[gSs 88eomniiggeonm

and reporting to senior management and the Audit, Risk §E]°J°'m memw’e OARFE €
@oeo eosﬁ [g§copdadadgéieé o2[03:00§:809963500ep
[»]

~Q On

Compliance Committee.

&:00! so:é]'gée@fiéac.g)e&é S:on&:cdab§o0em05003
The internal audit serves as third defense line byprowdlng o c. cAt oo T cmeme Eloe
moqcamc@@c 10303 [glopbeamncgad(glslge so:g:§calg

assurance to the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee og co c e e o c
9661 QG:D’)C('? 82602 S?CDEG(D’) GSO’)CgCDOr]ODEII
the effectiveness of risk management, controls and governance o c ¢ e
(epfesléblav i} 9’3@0 fe2]
practice. Key findings and internal audltorsrecommendatlongme :4:88c[sé
$C

C

C C Qe CN C o4
oooooooé OQQ?QQI oo§ QJlO 820 SJIOQ

.q.sce 39

L

forimprovement are regularly reported to the Board througgCSP g,o.,‘jl.mmeqo(,gge

g
di

the Audit Risk & Compliance Committee. §Ec[g8o0§308¢ 0pS:0né:

°QdL 1 °

L
o C C o o
GCDSJ’.)OOOﬁ O’JG[C.OOI SOL. 3
C e _0o C C
§'DQG(7)’)OO’.)OD O’)CBGO:C\)JO’)
b [

C C

Risk management function is responsible for effectiv§cloogbi oxéfgaonpy 28mepegecy §ajodgpisé 9203

J o

implementation and review of our risk management frameworhoqC'ooqvcﬁ Gooomsea@ﬁlqqu'm ooqc'of:l 0p88ag
while ultimate responsibility for oversight of risk managemen?99§§ﬁ§9 o -me-c?m§°ﬁsm°9®?°°09°9 Lo“%é]za
N O o
rests with the Board. Q.2 ¢S
048 ¢ e@gea aem @@ocsooc 05gepdes m
Risk appetite defined the amount of risk we are willing e 8 NSRS M

»o

LO

°o§ooos'ac\ocﬁl 20§00 & o@ooa gaoooz 0 "géc@
219 § 9 2 Q0%
C C

124
L

Lo}

to tolerate in pursuit of our strategy and objective and wec\ .o
6PV OC S0 Q’J.O’) ooe CDO’.) G)GO’.)’.)CS'DG) cW26302
have identified tolerance level for each of the principal rlsks,, BELROR 8 ! ° e

8qeé@5[§:| (T(DJSLO(DG% OD.G].SLCG@ OOG%gGGl.(EGU)’.)

on
3o

2
(B

It promotes consistent, ‘risk-informed’ decision-making an
it also supports robust corporate governance by setting clea?
risk taking boundaries. < <

In our risk assessment process, risk registers are u <5 5888 :
to document the risks identified, level of severity and prObablllt)équé 3 msgloqlggggaog(ys mo%ég&pé BB & monn

o

L
ownership and mitigation measures for each risk. We hagaogepicdaogh: og§88e aodecdaongéielogpéadé: &afg

L [ ° Jo
identified three major risks that may have negative impagBéep s5:[godaj05gpia3 mdoeodmpd: gec3§Eepd(gsS:
. . . . C. C.2 °,2,2C C C C o C Qe C
on executing our strategy and achieving our busineg§:coc:c3o3jeo00 g &Cegodeddajadepieo3ds 5696960

L og, . . c, cpe ¢
ObJeCt|Ve. SB(I?C.UJCQ) H 9?0.6(7)00.0)’)8098 BQ:D@II
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« Financial risk

(Foreign exchange risk, Credit risk, Market risk,

Liquidity risk and refer to note 4 of financial statement

for more detail)
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internal controls in place to bring the risk to as low as

reasonably practicable (ALARP) level, which will allow

the management to focus on treatment of residual risk.
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the occurrence of significant event where existing risk
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Directors' REPORT

The Directors’ Report for the Financial Year endeé Btarch 2019 has been prepared in accordance with the

Myanmar Companies Act and the Myanmar Financial Reporting Standard.

Risk Management Events Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date

The explanation on Risk Management are expressed There were no material events subsequent to the end

on page (70). of the financial year.
Dividends/ Distribution Auditor

The 2018 financial dividend/distribution of MMK A resolution will be tabled by the board of directors to
8,953,704,500 million ( MMK 230 per ordinary share) washe shareholders at the Annual General Meeting for the
paid on 17 October 2018. reappointment of Win Thin & Associates (Certified Public
f\ccountants) as the Company'’s Independent auditors for

. the Financial Year 2019/2020
distribution of MMK 250 per share, amounting to MMK

In respect of the current year 2019, final dividend

9,732,287,500 was proposed by the Directors at a Board
of Director Meeting held on 19 June 2019.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs Non-Audit Service

There has been no significant change in the Group’s We have engaged U Win Thin of Win Thin Consulting
state of affairs. The Company continues to engage in thémited (a related company of Win Thin & Associates as
business of investment holding. our Compliance Officer. The appointment took effect from

14" March 2016.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

WIN AUNG
Chairman
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH 2019

Currency — Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands)
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MTSH MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO. LTD.

Rooftop Floor, UMFCCI Office Tower, No.29, Min Ye Kyaw Swar Street, Lanmadaw Township, Yangon, Myanmar,

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

It is the responsibility of the management to prepare the consolidated statements of financial position of Myanmar
Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited (the Company) and its subsidiary (the Group) as at 31 March
2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group, consolidated statement of changes in equity
of the Group, consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the management
is required to:

— Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; and
—  Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group. We, as management commiltee, have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to us to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregu-
larities,

On behalf of Management

WIN AUNG
Chairman
MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO., LTD.
19 June 2019
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qp WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
HEAD OFFcE . Room (2B2C) 1* Floor, Rose Condominium, No. [82/194, Botahtaung Pagoda Road, Pazundaung Township
Yangon Region, Myanmar. Tel ; 95-1-201798, 296164, Fax: 95-1-245671 Email ; winthin9@myanmar.com. mm
WANDALAY BRANCH:-  Room (9/10), East Wing of Bahtoo Stadium, 70* Street (Between 29® & 30™ Street),
CFFICE Mandalay Region , Myanmar. Tel : 95-2-34451 , Fax; 95-2-34498

Ref:1690/ M-255/ March 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the Group of Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Myanmar Thilawa SEZ
Holdings Public Company Limited(*the Company™) and its subsidiary (*the Group™) set out on
pages 79 to 102 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group, consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Myanmar Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Myanmar Companies
Law. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Myanmar Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Myanmar Financial Reporting
Standards and the provision of the Myanmar Companies Law.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the provisions of the Myanmar Companies Law, we also report that:
(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and
(ii) books of account have been maintained by the Company and by its subsidiary as required by
Section 258 of the Law.

B
Saw Nelson (PA-400)
Engagement Partner

WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

19 June 2019
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MYANMARTHILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBS /

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Currency — Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands)

Mote 2019 2018
Restated*
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 2,575,168 956,973
Intangible asset 7 6,194 5435
Investment in associate 8 27,687,506 20,608,500
Other investment 9 10,000 10,000
Investment property 10 4,535,391 4,035,854
Deferred tax assets 11 12,060 8,179
Other assets 85,497 -
34,911,816 25,624,941
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 32,343,081 32,126,840
Trade and other receivables 13 2,886,191 4 867 485
Inventories 14 27,378,947 29,209,529
Construction contract work in progress 15 44,911 185,007
62,653,130 66,388,861
97.564.946 92,013,802
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Issued and paid-up share capital 16 38,929,150 38,929,150
Retained profits 45,515,833 38,982 052
84,444,983 77.911.202
Non-controlling interest 7.603.866 7.480,961
92,048,849 85392.163
Non-current liabilities
Advance from customers 2,761,465 2,509,402
2,761,465 2,509,402
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 2,460,639 4,066,518
Current tax liability 293,993 45,719
2,754,632 4112237
97,564,946 92,013,802

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Financial Statements.

Authenticated by Directors:

M

WIN AUNG Kyaw Zaw Wai TUN LWIN
Chairman, MTSH CEO, MTSH Director, MTSH

MYO MYINT AUNG
Head of Finance, MTSH

* MTSH = Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Publie Co., Ltd.
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
Currency — Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands)

Note 2019 2018
Restated*

Revenue 18 5,382,179 11,000,824
Cost of sales 21 (2,133,698) (5,770,569)
Gross Profit 3,248,481 5,230,255
Other income 19 1,412,902 344,098
Other gains/(losses) 20 2,683,506 726,114
Selling and marketing expenses 21 (206,6006) (53,221)
Administrative expenses 21 (2,618,492)  (2,481,408)
Profit for the year 4,519,791 3,765,838
Share of profit of associate 8 11,395,054 9,082,732
Profitbefore tax 15,914,845 12,848,570
Income tax expense 22 (304,454) (43,474)
Net Profit for the year 15,610,391 12,805,096
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 15,610,391 12,805,096
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 15,487,486 12,060,965
Non-controlling interests 122,905 744,131
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 15,487,486 12,060,965
Non-controlling interests 122,905 744,131
Earnings per share (K per share)
Basic earnings per share 24 398 310

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Financial Statements.
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
Currency — Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands)

Note 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 15,914,845 12,848,570
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Depreciation 380,565 307,913
Amortisation 2,119 1,320
Write-off 696 489
Reclassification - 10,919
Unrealised profit adjustment (122,573) 172,182
Share of profit of associate (11,395,054) (9,082,732)
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,780,598 4,258,661
Changes in working capital
Trade and other receivables 2,210,743 (3,084,273)
Deposit from suppliers - 3,053
Inventories (515,322) (4,696,647)
Construction contract work in progress 140,096 (175,811)
Trade and other payables (1,605,879) 761,193
Current tax liability - (497,536)
Advance from customers 252,063 (2,274,394)
Cash generated from operations 5,262,299 (5,705,754)
Income tax paid (289,510) (33,509)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,972,789 (5,739,263)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (62,231) (100,792)
Purchase of intangible asset (2,878) (2,204)
Dividend received from associate 4,347,763 21,734,100
Other asset (85,497) -
Purchase of shares from other investment - (10,000)
Net cash (used in) investing activities 4,197,157 21,621,104
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid to shareholders (8,953,705) (10,121,579)
Net cash used in financing activities (8,953,705) (10,121,579)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 216,241 5,760,262
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 32,126,840 26,366,578
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 32,343,081 32,126,840

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated Financial Statements.
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1. General information

Myanmar Thilawa SEZ Holdings Public Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in the
Republic of the Union of Myanmar on 3 May 2013 under The Myanmar Companies Act. The Act
has been replaced by Myanmar Companies Law 2017. As such, the Company has been re-
registered and issued Company Registration No.151830293 according to the new Law.

On 26 May 2013, pursuant to the Cooperation Memorandum, the Company signed a Memorandum
of Understanding with MMST LLP (MMS Thilawa Limited Liability Partnership) for the purpose
of establishing the Joint Venture Company for the development, marketing, sales and operation of
the Class A Project.

On 29 October 2013, pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding mentioned above, the
Company, the Thilawa SMC (Thilawa SEZ Management Committee) and MMSTD (MMS Thilawa
Development Co., Ltd) entered into the Joint Venture Agreement in connection with the
establishment of the JV Company to undertake the development, construction, marketing, sales and
operation of the Class A project. The Joint Venture Company was established as Myanmar Japan
Thilawa Development Ltd. (MJTD).

Under the Joint Venture Agreement, subject to the satisfaction of certain prescribed conditions
precedent, the Company will collectively subscribe for JV Company Shares of an initial aggregate
amount of US$50,000,000 in the proportions of 41%.

The principle business activities of the Company are to:

e invest in and participate in the management of the JV Company, which will engage in the
development, construction, marketing, sales and operation of the Class A Project;

e  market and sell the Class A Properties to Myanmar Related Entities as exclusive agent,
and market and sell the Class A Properties to parties which are not Myanmar Related
Entities or Japanese Related Entities jointly with the Japanese consortium members; and

e engage in the development of Thilawa SEZ (other than the Class A Area) or any part
thereof as may be determined by our Directors in their discretion.

For additional information about the Company, please refer to the Company’s Prospectus dated
27February 2014.

The registered office of the Company is No. (29), Min Ye KyawSwar Road (UMFCCI Tower),
Lanmadaw Township, Yangon Region, the Republic of the Union of Myanmar.

The Company is listed in Yangon Stock Exchange on 20 May 2016.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.
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2.2
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Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Myanmar Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS) and have been based on historical cost
convention.

In preparing these financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been
made in 2018 financial statements to conform to the classification used in 2019.

Foreign currency translation
(1)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the “functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Myanmar Kyat, which is the presentation currency as well as
functional currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousands,
unless otherwise indicated.

(2) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.

Group Accounting
(a)  Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has power to
govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally
accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to a majority of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date on which control
ceases.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions, balances and recognized gains on
transactions between group entities are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but are
considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a
subsidiary attributable to the interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the equity
holders of the Company. They are shown separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the non-controlling interests based on their respective
interests in a subsidiary, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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2.5

2.6

(b)  Associated companies

Associated companies are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control,
generally accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to voting rights of 20% and above but not
exceeding 50%. Investments in associated companies are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting less impairment losses.

(c) Equity method of accounting

In applying the equity method of accounting, the Group’s share of its associated companies’ post-
acquisition profits or losses are recognized in profit or loss and its share of post-acquisition other
comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income. These post-acquisition
movements and distributions received from the associated companies are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses in an associated company
equals to or exceeds its interest in the associated company, including any other unsecured non-
current receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has obligations to make or
has made payments on behalf of the associated company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associated companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transactions provide evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. The accounting
policies of associated companies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Investment in associate

Investment in associate is initially recognized at the transaction price (including transaction costs)
under the equity method of accounting and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss.
Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental and/or capital appreciation (or both).
Investment properties are initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated using a
straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful lives of fifty
years or the balance of land use right.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of investment properties are reviewed,
and adjusted as appropriate, at each statement of financial position date. The effects of any revision
are included in profit or loss when the changes arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property,plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
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replaced part is de-recognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets under construction commences when the assets are ready items of property,
plant and equipment less their estimated residuals values using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful life. The estimated useful rates are as follows:

Leasehold land 2.19%
Plant 5%
Transformers 2.17%
Building 2.17%
Waste storage house 5%
Machinery and equipment 20%
Motor vehicle 20%
Computer and equipment 20%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 40%
Office renovation 20%

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
the reporting period. The effects of any revision are recognized in profit or loss when the changes
arise.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognized within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets
Accounting software

Accounting software license is initially capitalized at cost which includes the purchase prices (net
of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its
intended use. Direct expenditures are added to the original cost of the software. Costs associated
with maintaining the accounting software license are expensed off when incurred.

Computer software license is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortized to profit or loss using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives of five years equivalent to 20%.

The amortization period and amortization method of intangible assets are reviewed at least at each
balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognized in profit or loss when the changes
arise.

Construction Contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and
contract costs are recognized as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the statement of financial position date (“percentage-of-
completion method””). When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognized to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately.



2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue when it
is probable that the customer will approve the variation or negotiations have reached an advanced
stage such that it is probable that the customer will accept the claim and they are capable of being
reliably measured.

The stage of completion is measured by reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred to
date to the estimated total costs for the contract. Costs incurred during the financial year in
connection with future activity on a contract are excluded from the costs incurred to date when
determining the stage of completion of a contract. Such costs are shown as construction contract
work-in-progress on the statement of financial position unless it is not probable that such contract
costs are recoverable from the customers, in which case, such costs are recognized as an expense
immediately.

At the statement of financial position date, the cumulative costs incurred plus recognized profits
(less recognized losses) on each contract is compared against the progress billings. Where the
cumulative costs incurred plus the recognized profits (less recognized losses) exceed progress
billings, the balance is presented as due from customers on construction contracts within “trade and
other receivables”. Where progress billings exceed the cumulative costs incurred plus recognized
profits (less recognized losses), the balance is presented as due to customers on construction
contracts within “trade and other payables”.

Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retentions by customers are included within “trade
and other receivables”. Advances received are included within “trade and other payables”.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost comprises cost of land
scraping cost, infrastructure development cost, direct labour and other direct cost. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable variable selling expenses.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in
profit or loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case the tax is also recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits with various local banks.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value, and subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade and other
receivables are reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable amount.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18
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Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Issued and paid-up share capital

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Dividends

Dividends to the Company’s shareholders are recognized when the dividends are approved for
payment.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service
rendered by employees. Employee benefits are recognized as payable in the period in which the
benefits is earned by employee. Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is a probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligations; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company. Revenue is shown net of sales (after deducting commercial tax)

(a) Rendering of services — Management fees and commission fees
Fees and commission are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided.

(b) Sale of goods — Land
Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered and title has passed to the
customer.

(c) Interest income
Interest income arising from deposit at financial institution is recognized when the effective interest
method.

(d) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

(e) Revenue from construction contracts
Please refer to the paragraph “construction contracts” for the accounting policy for the revenue
from construction contracts.

(f)  Rental income
Rental income is recognised when earned on a straight-line basis over the lease term.



2.19 Income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Thecurrent income tax is calculated on the
basic of the tax rate and tax law enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax is recognized in profit or loss.

2.20 Commercial tax
Revenues expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of commercial tax except:
- where the commercial tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case the commercial tax is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expenses item as applicable; and

-receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of commercial tax included.

The net amount of commercial tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

2.21 Comparative

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation
in the current year.

3. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimate and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future period
affected.

Infrastructure development costs

Infrastructure development costs of land are recorded as inventories during the construction stage
and an apportionment of these costs will be recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
upon the recognition of the revenue of the land under development.

These infrastructure costs comprise of awarded contracts and an estimation of future ones. The total
costs were estimated by a third-party professional Quantity Surveyor and periodically re-validated
internally.

Before the final settlement of the development costs and other costs relating to the land under
development, these costs are based on management’s best estimate. Where the final settlement of
costs and the related cost allocation is different from the initial estimates, any increase or decrease
in the development costs and other costs would affect the profit or loss in future years.
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Financial risk management

The Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are
available for the development of the Group’s business whilst managing its risks. In addition to the
risk factors as stated in the Company’s Prospectus dated 27 February 2014, the main areas of
financial risks faced by the Group and the policy in respect of the major areas of treasury activity
are set out as follows:

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has exposure to foreign exchange risk due to assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies. However, the Group does not hedge its exposures to foreign exchange risk as
the risk is not expected to be significant.

Credit risk

The maximum credit risk associated with recognized financial assets is the carrying amount shown
in the statement of financial position. However, policies had been established by the Group to
minimize such risks.

Market risk

The Group is not exposed to any market risk.

Liquidity and cash flow risks

The Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances deemed adequate by the directors to
finance the operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flow.
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Capital management

The Group’s objectives, when managing its capital, are to safeguard and maintain adequate working
capital to continue as a going concern.



€06956 TLILST vZ1°10T 868°L¢ 000°SST 626°CS - - - 068°TS¢ - 8107 WIEIN [€ IV
n[ea Jooq N
(s6T'18%)  (1LTTID) (00t'STT) (8€0°0€) (8cr'991)  (8+TTT) - - - (016'7¢) - 8T0T Y2IBl [ ¢ JE Sdue[eq
S - L8L 99 - - - - - - - J30 OIIA
- - - - - - - - - - - sso[ Juowreduy
(oz6'st)  (116°€S) (068°LS) (89z°CI) (680°69) (zLetn) - - - (06€°61) - uoneraidog
(808°857)  (09¢°8S) (L6T°8S) O1t°s1) (6£€°L6) (9L8°01) - - - (0zs‘s1) - L10T 11dy T e doue[eqg
s3sso[ Juduraredw1 pue uonerd.Idap pajenWINIIY
89T8EY' T £hP69C vTS9IE 968°L9 8THITE  LLISL - - - 008°L8€ - 810C UYOIB [€ J& ooue[eg
(126°1) - (ss6) (996) - - - - - - - J3o am
T6L001 - 18€%8 [1¥°91 - - - - - - - uonippy
L6E6EET  €hP69T 860°€€T 1S¥°CS 8TH1TE LLTSL - - - 008°L8¢ - L10T 11dy 1 18 doue[eqg
180D
801°CLS'T  T9T°€0I 667°T81 I8€°T€ L6V°16 [YaAR % 0LTY 86IVIT  L69%9T 800°6€T'T  TIT°66€ 6107 Y1\ [€ IV
n[ea Jooq N
(ssefesL)  (z81°991) (TTr'oL1) (6v6°th) (er'ver)  (LL6°EE) (TL) (TrL'y) (098°c) Fos18)  (9€1°9) 610T Y2IBIA T ¢ Je douefeqg
861°C - 0817 81 - - - - - - - J3o alm
- - - - - - - - - - - Sso[ Judureduy
@8sT'vL  (116°cs) (20T‘€9) (626F1) (€90°89) (6TLTD) (T (TrLy) (098°9) (r6S‘9v) (951°9) uoneraidog
(S6T°18h) (aLzzim (oo¥‘s11) (8€0°0€) (8z¥991)  (8+T°T0) - 016%v€) - 8107 [1dy 1 1e douejeg
SISSO] aﬂmﬂzmﬁmsm pue :omaﬂ_ov.:m@@ pajenuinddy
€7S'8TE°E  €¥P'69T 1TL'8S€E 0€SLL 886°STE €TI8L ey 0F6'8IT  LSS'0LT TIS0TE T  LIEVOV 610T YoIeJAl ] € J& doue[eqg
(680 - FLLD 0zn) - - - - - - - JJO I
816°0¢8‘T - - - - - ey 0v6‘81T  LSS‘OLT TILTE6 LIE YOV SOLIOJUSAUT WO PAIIJSULL],
1€27°79 - 1L6'V¥ ¥SL6 09S‘y 96T - - - - - uonIppy
89T8EY T €h69T pIso1e 968°L9 8TV IIE LLYSL - - - 008°L8€E - 8107 11dy 1 18 doue[eqg
amcU
jyudwdiba juwdwrdinba  asnoy (spuesnoy J, ug) jeAy JewuekA
uoneAouay pue anoEQ_SWH IIIYI A pue @wﬁhcam puej
[ejoq, NIJO Janjruan h@ﬁ-macU J0JOJAI %h@ﬁm:oﬁz IJSB AN w:mﬁ—msm— SJouLIojsued J, jueld PIoyased|

jyudwdinbs pue juerd ‘Ayradoag -9

ANNUAL REPORT | 91



7. Intangible asset

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) Software
Cost

Balance at 1 April 2018 8,617
Addition 2,878
Write off -
Balance at 31 March 2019 11,495
Accumulated amortization and impairment losses

Balance at 1 April 2018 (3,182)
Amortisation 2,119)
Impairment loss -
Write off -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (5,301)
Net book value

At 31 March 2019 6,194
Cost

Balance at 1 April 2017 6,413
Addition 2,204
Write off -
Balance at 31 March 2018 8,017
Accumulated amortization and impairment losses

Balance at 1 April 2017 (1,862)
Amortisation (1,320)
Impairment loss -
Write off -
Balance at 31 March 2018 (3,182)
Net book value

At 31 March 2018 5,435

8. Investment in associate

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Opening balance 20,608,500 18,460,621
Proportionate net profit for the year 11,395,054 9,082,732
Dividend received (4,347,763)  (6,701,040)
Unrealised profit adjustment 31,715 (233,813)
Carrying value as at 31 March 2019 27,687,506 20,608,500

The Company's share of profit in its equity-accounted investee (i.e, Myanmar Japan Thilawa
Development Limited) for the year was Kyats 11,395,053,319.22 (USD 7,521,983.84 @ Kyats 1514.9)
(2018: Profit Kyats 9,082,731,587 (USD 6,803,544.26 @ Kyats 1,335). The equity accounted investee is
not publicly listed entity and consequentially does not have published price quotations.
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The following amounts represent the assets and the liabilities and income and expenses of the associate.

USD (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Owner-ship 41% 41%
Current assets 63,773 57,423
Non-current assets 12,047 12,598
Total assets 75,820 70,021
Current liabilities 18,936 25,282
Non-current liabilities 1,632 833
Total liabilities 20,568 26,115
Net assets 55,252 43,906
Income 42,966 44,226
Expenses (24,620) (27,632)
Profit 18,346 16,594
Share of profit 7,522 6,804

Other investment (MMK 10,000,000)

The above amount represents investment in Myanmar KyaukPhyu SEZ Holding Consortium Public Co.,

Ltd by the Company.
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10. Investment property

Land and
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) Building
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2018 4,202,380
Transferred from inventories 674,842
Balance at 31 March 2019 4,877,222
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 April 2018 (105,059)
Depreciation (106,307)
Impairment loss -
Balance at 31 March 2019 (211,366)
Unrealised profit adjustment (130,465)
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 4,535,391
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2017 4,213,299
Transferred from inventories -
Commercial tax (10,919)
Balance at 31 March 2018 4,202,380
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 April 2017 (21,066)
Depreciation (83,993)
Impairment loss -
Balance at 31 March 2018 (105,059)
Unrealised profit adjustment (61,467)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 4,035,854

The company investment property at 31 March 2019 include three buildings of workers accommodation
at recreational and commercial area of Thilawa SEZ. The Directors are of the view that a fair value of the
property cannot be ascertained at 31 March 2019. The opinion is based on the following facts:

1. There is no such asset of this specification in Thilawa;

2. There is no history of such similar property transacted in Thilawa; and

3. No sales of any asset type have been recorded in the Thilawa SEZ.

As such, it is not possible for a valuation to be done on a willing-buyer / willing-seller basis. As such, the
market comparable approach cannot be adopted. To value the property using the income capitalization
approach, the property has to be given sufficient time for leasing, and stabilization of that yield, for the
capitalization rate to be applied. Since occupation permit was only quite recently obtained, the rental
process is only in the beginning stage. Hence, the income capitalization approach cannot be adopted.

Given that the first two valuation methods cannot be applied, the third would be the cost approach. This
assumes that a reasonable buyer would have to pay equal or more than the cost of constructing a
comparable building. The Cost Approach is probably the most prudent in estimating the book /
reinstatement value of such an asset at 31 March 2019.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019, two units of shop houses have been transferred

from inventory to investment property at their cost. As of 31 March 2019, the company investment
property includes:
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1. Three buildings of workers accommodation
2. One unit of type A shop house facing main road
3. One unit of type B shop house facing internal road

Details of the group’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March
2019 are as follows:

Fair Value

as at

31 March

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019

Investment property
- Workers accommodation - - 8,548,688 8,548,688
- Unit A — Main road - 433,785 - 433,785
- Unit B — Internal road 363,605 - - 363,605

For unit A — Main road, the fair value was derived using the market comparable approach based on recent
market price of similar property with adjustment made for frontage.

For unit B — internal road, the fair value was derived using the market comparable approach based on
recent market prices of similar property without any significant adjustments being made.

For investment properties categorized into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the following information is
relevant:

Investment Valuation Significant -
. . Sensitivity
Property Technique unobservable input(s)
Workers Income Capitalization rate Increase in the capitalization rate
accommodation capitalization used would result decrease in fair
approach value, and vice versa.
Occupancy rate Decrease in the occupancy rate

used would result decrease in
fair value, and vice versa.

Monthly rental Decrease in the monthly rental
used would result decrease in
fair value, and vice versa.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 and into or out of Level 3 during the period.

The fair value of investment properties is not based on valuation by an independent valuer.

The property rental income from the group’s investment properties all of which are leased out under
operating lease, amounted to MMK 185,257 (thousand). Direct operating expenses (including repairs and

maintenance) arising from the rental —generating investment properties amounted to MMK 131,726
(thousand).
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11.

Deferred tax asset

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown on the

financial position as follows:

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Deferred tax assets
To be recovered within one year - -
To be recovered after one year 12,060 8,179
12,060 8,179
12. Cash and cash equivalents
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Cash in hand 20,213 20,342
Cash at bank — current 30,951,037 30,352,812
Cash at bank — saving 1,358,119 1,465,809
Cash at bank — call 13,712 287,877
32,343,081 32,126,840
13. Trade and other receivables
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Trade receivables from
- Related parties* 260,866 229,887
- Non-related parties 399,106 12,490
Other receivable from
- Affiliates & related parties** - 90
- Non-related parties 9,559 -
Construction contract
- Due from related parties 325,196 2,761,793
Accrued income
- Related parties 588,936 590,049
- Non-related parties 12,198 -
Deposit 17,040 22,021
Prepayments & advance 56,274 119,391
Advance income tax 336,923 107,473
Advance commercial tax 880,093 1,024,291
2,886,191 4,867,485

* It comprises management services fees receivable from Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development Limited

(MJTD).

** It comprises expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of affiliates & related parties.
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14.

Inventories (MMK 27,378,947,000)

Inventories include cost of leasehold land acquired from Myanmar Japan Thilawa Development Limited
(MITD) for the development of residential and commercial area of Thilawa Special Economic Zone. It
also includes cost of land scraping, infrastructure development, shop houses construction, food court
development and fencing the water treatment plant during the period.

15. Construction contract
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Construction contract work in progress
Beginning of financial year 185,007 9,196
Contract costs incurred 1,565,921 4,154,843
Contract expenses recognised in profit or loss (1,706,017) (3,979,032)
End of financial year 44,911 185,007
Aggregate costs incurred and profits recognised (less losses 2,329,222 5,950,661
recognised) to date on uncompleted construction contracts
Less: Progress billing (1,904,527) (5,360,612)
Unbilled to customers current financial year 424,695 590,049
Due from related party on construction contracts (Note 14)
Billed to customer 325,196 2,761,793
Unbilled to customers — current financial year 424,695 590,049
Unbilled to customers — previous financial year 164,241 -
End of financial year 914,132 3,351,842

16. Issued and paid-up share capital
No. of ordinary shares issued  Issued and fully paid-up

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) share capital

2019 2018 2019 2018
Beginning of financial year 38,929,150 38,929,150 38,929,150 38,929,150
Issued of shares - - - -
End of financial year 38,929,150 38,929,150 38,929,150 38,929,150
17. Trade and other payables
Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Trade payables to non-related parties 8,442 2,053,769
Construction contract-due to supplier 634,866 36,267
Other payables to
- Related parties 149,932 93,314
- Non-related parties 145,478 105,086
Deposit from suppliers 380,547 408,856
Accrued expenses 136,515 4,160
Unpaid dividend 869,533 797,273
Deferred rental income
- Related parties 55,106 464,637
- Non-related parties 72,352 10,021
Commercial tax 7,868 93,135
2,460,639 4,066,518

ANNUAL REPORT | 97



18. Revenue

Myanmar Kyat ( In Thousands) 2019 2018
Management fees 1,040,846 915,507
Sales commission 1,335,889 203,687
Construction revenue 2,329,222 5,950,662
Sale of land 738,720 3,574,358
Sale of building - 797,390
Rental income 185,257 79,759

5,629,934 11,521,363
Less commercial tax* (247,755) (520,539)

5,382,179 11,000,824

Management fees

Management fees are received from Myanmar JapanThilawa Development Limited (MJTD) in
consideration of management services provided by the Company for the following personnel;

(1) Chairman

(2) Vice President (Myanmar Desk)

(3) Head of Finance & Accounting

(4) Head of Administration & Human Resources

Sales commission

The above comprises commission fees income from MJTD for the successful contracts between MJTD
and its customers whom introduced by the Company.

Construction revenue

The above mainly comprises of a road construction contract and construction of rental factory B
extension from MJTD.

Sale of land
The above comprise of sale of land to Myanmar Apex Bank Limited.
Rental income

The above comprises of rental of rooms in dormitory and shop house.

19. Other income

Myanmar Kyat ( In Thousands) 2019 2018
Interest income 1,337,809 336,537
Tender income 800 -
Utilities income 57,280 4,201
Miscellaneous income 17,013 -
Sale proceed — written off fixed asset - 3,360

1,412,902 344,098
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20. Other gains/(losses)

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Currency exchange gains 2,683,506 726,114
2,683,506 726,114

21. Expenses by nature

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Land Cost 278,963 958,586
Construction contract cost 1,706,017 3,979,032
Cost of rental and utilities 131,726 546,172
Write off - property, plant and equipment 696 489
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 274,258 223,920
Depreciation of investment property 106,308 83,993
Amortisation charge of intangible asset 2,119 1,320
Employee benefit expenses (Note 23) 679,747 611,978
Key management personal and director compensations (Note 25-b) 861,786 925,408
Advertising and agency fees expense 206,606 53,221
Rental expense 181,917 158,680
Transportation expense 83,327 31,515
Listing expense 6,393 14,747
Other expense 561,506 543,955
Unrealised profit adjustment (122,573) 172,182

4,958,796 8,305,198

22. Income tax expense

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018

Current tax expenses

Current year 293,993 45,719

Deferred income tax (3,881) (8,179)

Changes in estimates related to prior years 14,342 5,934
304,454 43,474

23. Employee benefit expenses

Myanmar Kyat ( In Thousands) 2019 2018
Wages and salaries 475,245 393,918
Other benefits 204,502 218,060

679,747 611,978
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24.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company (Myanmar 15,487,486 12,060,965
Kyat in thousands)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for basic 38,929 38,929
Earnings per share (shares in thousands)

Basic earnings per share 398 310
Per value of shares (Myanmar Kyat) 1,000 1,000

25.

Related party transactions

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the following
transactions took place between the holding company and the related parties at terms agreed between the

parties:

(a) Sales and purchase of goods and services

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Management fees from MJTD 991,282 871,912
Sales commission fees from MJTD 1,272,275 193,987
Construction revenue from MJTD 2,238,089 5,695,395

Other related parties comprise mainly companies which are controlled or significantly influenced by the

holding company’s key management personnel which are as follows:

Position 2019 2018
No.  Company Name Related Executives Kyats ’000  Kyats 000
Union of Myanmar Federation
1 of Chamber of U Thein Han Director 181,887 164,228
Commerce & Industry
(Rent of Head office)
) Sinma Construction Group Ltd U KyawKyaw Win ~ Alternative 2,177 2,614
(New office renovation) Director
3 Star City U TheimWai V1c§ - 28,894
Chairman
4 CB Securities U KhinMaung Aye Vice Chairman 2,500 2,500
5  KFC U TheimWai Vice Chairman - 15,000
Information Matrix U Thaung Su Nyein A!tematlve 26,378 29,596
6 Director
. Alternative
7 IM Ringer Co.,Ltd U Thaung Su Nyein Director 131,413 -

Outstanding balances of related parties as at 31 March 2019are disclosed in Notes 13 and 17 respectively.
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(b) Key management personnel and director compensation

Myanmar Kyat (In Thousands) 2019 2018
Director remuneration 72,000 72,000
Director bonus* 149,932 93,313
Key management personnel remuneration 576,203 744,175
Key management bonus 63,651 15,920

861,786 925,408

*The Company provided Ks 149,932,327 as bonus to the Board Members in relating to the performance
of the Company for the year 2018/19.

(¢) Significant agreements with related parties

Management fees

The Company entered into management memorandums with MJTD for which to provide management
services. Under the term of these memorandums, the Company is entitled to receive management fees as
stipulated in the memorandum and will expire in December, 2022.

Commission fees

The Company entered into marketing agreements with MJTD for which to provide with information in
respect to potential locators and coordination services. Under the term of the agreements, the Company is
entitled to receive commission fees at 6% of the contract price. The term of the agreements is for five
years and shall be extended for further period by notify in writing at least 30 days prior to expiration of
this agreement.

26.

27.

Events occurring after the reporting date

Board of Directorsof the Company has resolved on 19 June 2019 to propose a dividend of Ks.250 per
share for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Correction of errors

During 2018-2019, the management discovered that land cost per square foot that charges to cost of sales
for land lease and sublease of shop house is understated due to basis of valuation on gross land area. The
errors have been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for prior period.

i. Statement of financial position (extract)

2018 Increase/ Increase/ 2018
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Restated)

Myanmar Kyats (In Thousands) 1-4-2017 2018
Inventories 29,519,340  (193,960) (115,851) 29,209,529
Opening retained earning 39,229,901 (155,168) (92,681) 38,982,052
Non-controlling interest 7,542,923 (38,792) (23,170) 7,480,961

(193,960)  (115,851)

ii. Statement of profit or loss (extract)

2018 Increase/ 2018
(Decrease) (Restated)

Myanmar Kyats (In Thousands) 2018
Land Cost 842,735 115,851 958,586

ANNUAL REPORT | 101



28. Authorization of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019were authorized for issue on
19June 2019.
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MTSH MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO. LTD.

Rooftop Floor, UMFCCI Office Tower, No.29, Min Ye Kyaw Swar Street, Lanmadaw Township, Yangon, Myanmar.
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DIRECTORY

@  RESPONSIBLE ENTITY

MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO,, LTD.
Company Registration Mo. 151830293

MTSH OFFICE, ROOF TOP FLOOR, UMFCCI OFFICE TOWER,
MO, 29, MIN YE KYAW SWAR STREET, LANMADAW TOWNSHIP,
YAMGOM

@ ASSOCIATE

MYANMAR JAPAN THILAWA DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
Company Registration No, 103789454
ADMIMISTRATION BUILDIMG, MJTD OFFICE,

DAGON THILAWA ROAD, THILAWA SEZ,

THAMLYIN TOWNSHIP, YANGON

@  SUBSIDIARY

THILAWA PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
Company Registration Mo, 101952428
THILAWA DEVELOPMENT ROAD, THILAWA SEZ,
THANLYIN TOWNSHIP, YANGOM

REGISTERED OFFICE

@ AUDITOR

WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES (CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT)
ROOM (28/2C), 15T FLOOR, ROSE CONDOMINIUM,

MO, 182194, BOTAHTALUNG PAGODA ROAD,

PAZUNDAUNG TOWNSHIP, YANGON

@  INVESTOR INQURIES

MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO., LTD.

MTSH OFFICE, ROOF TOP FLOOR, UMFCCI OFFICE TOWER,

NO. 29, MIN YE KYAW SWAR STREET, LANMADAW TOWNSHIP,
YANGON

Tew: +9512301772, 2301773, 2301853
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MYANMAR THILAWA SEZ HOLDINGS PUBLIC CO., LTD.

Rooftop Floor, UMFCCI Office Tower,
No 29, Min Ye' Kyaw Swar Street, Lanmadaw Township,
Yangon Region, Myanmar.
Tel ; +95 1 2301772, 2301773, 2301853
E-mail : info@mtshmyanmar.com
www.mtshmyanmar.com
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